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Financial Highlights
BT 15 2

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Revenue Revenue by Business Segments
R (HK$'000 Fit57) REB D HEID 2 WE DT (% B5Ht)
[ Hotel Operation ] Property Management
TBIEE MEEE
100,000 100
© Q _497% || _489% | _473% _481% _40.1%
© : I
80,000 £ > e S 80
5 &
60,000 60
[$)]
@
40,000 ® 40
w
20,000 20 _503% | _51.1% | _527%  _51.9% | _59.9%
0 0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Revenue by Geographical Regions Loss Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
Rt &S M8 Z WD (% EHL) FNATERRRELER (HK$'000 Fi#7L)
[ PRC [l Canada
hE mEx
100
. . . . (78,780)
50.3% @-51.1% @ 52.7% R51.9% R 59.9% I 2020
80 (30,444)
e 2019
60 (21,820)
IEee—— 2018
40 (8,529)
mm 2017
49.7% || -489% || -473% [|_481% || _40.1%
20 (26,074)
I 2016
0 -80,000 -60,000 -40,000 -20,000 0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Basic Loss per Share (including both continuing and discontinued operations)

BREFER BESRCERCRILEEEEE)

(HK cents &1l )

(8.52)
[ 2020
(4.00)
I 2019
(Restated &7/ )
(4.11)
e 2018
(1.87)
[ 2017
(6.41)
[ 201e
12 10 ) 6 4 2 0 (Restated E71| )

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BARRERZRERAH




Financial Highlights

BT 7518 &

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_ZT-ZEF+-_A=+—HIFE

Note 2020 2019 % Change
Mo —ECERE —E-NF EFHH DL
(restated)
(E%))

Results E
HK$'000 FHET
Revenue Wz 58,803 92,228 (36.24%)
Loss before income tax MrPTIS R RIS 18 (79,969) (30,816) 159.50%
Loss for the year attributable AN E AR A A

to equity shareholders AR ER

of the Company FE1h B8 (78,780) (30,444) 158.77%
Assets and Liabilities EEHEE
HK$'000 TET
Total assets BERE 190,920 218,406 (12.58%)
Total liabilities BaE 155,194 157,286 (1.33%)
Shareholders’ equity AR R 35,726 61,120 (41.55%)
Per share data BREE
HK cents (Il
Basic and diluted HAR K #58

(loss)/earnings (E518) /&7 (8.52) (4.00) 113.00%
HK$ BT
Net asset value BEFE 0.04 0.08 (50%)
Financial Ratio B #g L =&
Current ratio MENLL 1 0.69 0.36 91.67%
Quick ratio REPLEL K 0.68 0.35 94.29%

Notes: BEE -

1) Current ratio represents current assets divided by current liabilities.

2) Quick ratio represents current assets excluding inventories divided by

current liabilities.
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The Group has been exploring
investment opportunities in hotel
operation, property investment in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other
overseas countries, with an aim to
deliver satisfactory returns to the
shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEWES

YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The year 2020 was a challenging year for Times Universal Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”). Nuofute Property Management Co., Ltd.* EE
HEEYEEEERAT (“Nuofute Property Management”)
continues to be the key source of income to the Group. Its
success strengthen the confidence of the Group to become
an integrated property related service provider and investor.
Management will continue to explore new property management
projects and expand this segment through acquisitions.

Owing to the COVID-19 pandemic, our Brentwood Bay Resort
located in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada, was closed for
prolonged periods. Through the efforts of our management team,
the financial impacts to our hotel operations were minimised
without sacrificing our quality of services. Although management
expects that a full recovery of the hospitality industry will
take several years, the Group will continue to explore other
investment opportunities in hotel operation, property investment
and development in Hong Kong, the PRC and other overseas
countries.

The board of directors (the “Board”) and the management will
continue to adjust the Group’s business strategies with an aim to
deliver satisfactory returns to every shareholders.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Revenue represents hotel operation income and properties
management income, which accounted for approximately 40.1%
(2019: 48.1%) and 59.9% (2019: 51.9%) respectively, of the
total revenue. Revenue decreased by 36.2% to approximately
HK$58,803,000 from approximately HK$92,228,000 in
2019, which was mainly attributable to the impact from the
COVID-19 pandemic which forced the hotel operation closed
for prolonged periods this year. The Group'’s net loss increased
from approximately HK$30,444,000 in 2019 to approximately
HK$78,780,000 in 2020 due to the losses incurred in the
Group's interests in joint ventures of HK$44,858,000.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

FHEE

—EoTEHRARREEZERARAR ([K
NE EREMBARGE [ AEE]) 5L
AIAKEN —F  BEEREEVEERGRA
m ([REFYEER)) BBERAEENT RN
AKR > ERDINBARKEBR IR BEEYE
B RGREEERKREENEL -  BEB/E
BYENMEERIAL  WRBWET AKX
BEERFS -

Z2019F A BRASEIBFE  BRMUAME
N B EHm tb I2 & # % F1| 26 T &Y Brentwood Bay
Resort M E KIS - B EBEEEKD
TR BPIETFERBEZMATRE T
N BELEMZINYBEERERE - &
EEREEMAEXESTHERETEEEE
POAEEBFEBERANEL  FEREME
MNERZBIELE MEREREBRMHEAR

5 (HFe)) REREREEREALE
MBRGLER - 2 ARERESRIED
% -

ETE 3]

WS BE R ERARDEERIRA - H5lbG
HUTZEH40.1% (—ZE—N4F : 48.1%) 59.9%
—E—NF:519%) c WEHR T —NFY
92,228,000 7T i 4> 36.2% % #758,803,000 i
T EFERAR019FATRRSRIBEATE
MEAEEEELSERSRER  AEENE
BFE M -~ T — N F 430,444,000 T e
—T-TF4)78,780,000E T - TERANAK
EBRE SN E 7R E LR 44,858,000
TCRTER ©

BARRERZRERAH



PROSPECTS

The property management segment is one of the key sources of
income for the Group. Management believes that the property
management industry in China will continue to grow steadily
and this segment will bring stable income to the Group. While
exploring new property management projects, the Group will
actively consider expanding this segment through acquisitions.
The hotel operation business in Victoria, British Columbia,
Canada continues to generate revenue for the Group, of which,
however, is expect to contribute less due to the slow recovery of
the hospitality industry. The Group has been exploring business
opportunities in hotel operation and property investment in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other overseas countries, with an aim
to deliver substantial returns for shareholders of the Company
through a series of acquisitions and proposed cooperation.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere thanks
and appreciation to our shareholders, business partners and
dedicated management as well as staff for their continued
support and valuable contributions to the Group.

CHOI Yun Chor
Co-chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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The success of property
management segment
strengthens the confidence

of the Group to explore new
property management projects
and expand this segment
through acquisitions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R W AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents hotel operation income and property
management income. Revenue decreased by 36.2%
to approximately HK$58,803,000 from approximately
HK$92,228,000 in 2019 was mainly due to the impact from the
COVID-19 pandemic which forced the hotel operation closed for
prolonged periods this year.

Direct Costs

Direct costs decreased by approximately HK$13,814,000 or
25.0% to approximately HK$41,533,000. The decrease was
mainly due to the closure of the hotel operations.

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased by approximately HK$19,611,000 or
53.2% which was in line with the decrease in revenue and direct
costs.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R AT

The Group has been exploring investment opportunities in hotel
operation and property investment in Hong Kong, the PRC and

other overseas countries.

AEBLREBEENEL - PENREME

RENRERS -

Other Income and Gain, net

Other income and gain, net increased by approximately
HK$6,444,000 from approximately HK$1,860,000 in 2019 to
approximately HK$8,304,000 in 2020. The increase was mainly
due to government grants of HK$4,691,000 received as a result
of COVID-19 pandemic.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately
HK$19,795,000 from approximately HK$48,154,000 in 2019
to approximately HK$28,359,000 in 2020 was mainly due to
the decrease in equity-settled share-based payment expenses
and staff costs in hotel operation in response to the outbreak of
COVID-19.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately HK$992,000
to HK$4,979,000 from HK$5,971,000 in 2019 was mainly
attributable to the repayment of bond interest in July 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R W AT

Revenue of Hotel

Operation Business
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Taxation

Income tax credit increased from approximately HK$372,000
in 2019 to approximately HK$1,189,000 in 2020 was mainly
attributable to the recognition of deferred tax assets for the year

ended 31 December 2020.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing combined effects of the above, the
Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$78,780,000 for

the year ended 31 December 2020.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current liabilities
and current ratio were approximately HK$27,316,000 and 0.69
respectively (net current liabilities and current ratio in 2019:

HK$64,030,000 and 0.36 respectively).

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s land and buildings
held for own use of approximately HK$84,733,000 (2019:
HK$84,759,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities

granted to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group financed its
liquidity requirements through a combination of cash flow as
generated from operations, secured loans, bonds and loans from
controlling shareholders.

Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitment and contingent liabilities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hotel Operation Business

Revenue from hotel operation accounted for approximately
40.1% of the total revenue. Hotel occupancy rate decreased
to 39.1% in 2020 from 84.6% in 2019 owing to the COVID-19
pandemic which caused the hotel to close for prolonged
periods. The revenue was therefore decreased by approximately
HK$20,763,000 from approximately HK$44,372,000 in 2019 to
approximately HK$23,609,000 in 2020.

Property Management Business

Revenue from property management business amounted to
approximately HK$35,194,000, representing a decrease of
26.5% comparing to approximately HK$47,856,000 in 2019. The
decrease was mainly due to reduction in property management
fee of HK$12,662,000 of certain properties under management.
The segmental revenue accounted for approximately 59.9% of
the total revenue of the Group.

Net Gearing Ratio

The net gearing ratio was 1.58 as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: 1.62). The net gearing ratio was measured
by net debt (including secured loans, loans from controlling
shareholders, and bonds, and deducting bank balances and
cash) over total equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R W AT

Staff and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 254
employees, including 182 based in the PRC, 13 based in Hong
Kong and 59 based in Canada. Staff costs for the year ended
31 December 2020 were approximately HK$30,259,000,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$17,896,000 as
compared to approximately HK$48,155,000 of last year due to
the decrease in equity-settled share-based payment expenses
and staff costs in hotel operation as a result effect of COVID-19.

Employee remuneration is determined in accordance with
prevailing industry practice and employees’ performance and
experience. Discretionary bonuses are awarded to employees
with outstanding performance with reference to the performance
of the Group. Employees are also entitled to other staff benefits
including medical insurance and mandatory provident fund.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation and Hedge

The Group is not subject to material foreign currency exposure
since its operations in the PRC and Canada are mainly
denominated in RMB and CAD respectively and the Group’s
revenue and operating costs in the PRC and Canada are
denominated in the functional currency of the Group’s entity
generating the sales or incurring the costs. Accordingly, the
directors consider that the currency risk is not significant. As
such, no hedging instrument is considered necessary by the
Board during the year. The directors will monitor the Group’s
exposure on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging the
currency risk should the need arise.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group did not enter into any forward foreign currency contracts.

Prospects

The property management segment continues to be the key
sources of income for the Group. Management believes that
property management industry in China will continue to grow
steadily and bring stable income to the Group. While exploring
new property management projects, the Group will actively
consider expanding this segment through acquisitions.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2020 was a difficult year for the hotel operation business and
the global tourism industry has been devastated. Although
management believes that demand for hotel will return once the
economy recovers, management expects that travel restrictions,
quarantine and safety concerns will continue to deter people
from travelling for the foreseeable future and that a full recovery
will take several years. After all, management is confident in
hotel operation and will continue to explore suitable business
opportunities, with an aim to deliver substantial returns for
shareholders of the Company through a series of acquisitions
and proposed cooperation.
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Corporate Governance Report
RN
PEERRESE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of
practices of corporate governance so as to ensure the protection
of shareholders’ interests with better transparency. The Company
has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted Appendix 10, Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of practice for
carrying out securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Company, having made specific enquiries to
all directors of the Company, confirmed that all directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board,
which currently comprises nine members, coming from diverse
businesses and professional backgrounds. The biographical
details of directors are set out under the section “Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 68 to 71 of this annual
report. The Board currently comprises executive directors
Ms. Yeung So Mui (Co-Chairman), Mr. Choi Yun Chor (Co-
Chairman), Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny, Mr. Chen Jian, Mr. Tai Kwok
Keung Kenny and Mr. Lin Junwei; and the independent non-
executive directors are Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie, Mr. Ting Wong
Kacee and Dr. Loke Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam).

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies.
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Corporate Governance Report

To facilitate the operation of the Board, the Board has
established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
The specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include (a)
setting the Group’s strategy and dividend policy; (b) approving
budgets, reviewing operational and financial performance; (c)
approving major investments and divestments; (d) reviewing the
internal control system of the Group; (e) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (f)
approving appointments of and remuneration policy for directors
and other senior executives; (g) approving corporate social
responsibility policies; and (h) ensuring effective communication
with shareholders.

For the financial reporting accountability, the Board has an
ultimate responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial
statements. In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the Board has ensured that (a) the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong have been adopted; (b)
appropriate accounting policies have been used and applied
consistently; and (c) reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates have been made. Moreover, the Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Being part of good corporate governance practices, a number
of board committees have been established. These committees
include four corporate governance related committees namely
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee as well as one ad hoc committee namely
the Independent Board Committee which is responsible for
advising the matters in relation to the continuing connected
transactions. These committees operate within specific terms of
reference as prepared by the Company and report their work and
findings to the Board regularly.
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Corporate Governance Report
RN
PEERRESE

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee as a whole is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession planning
of Directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. Each of the executive Directors is
appointed with no fixed term of service. The appointment may
be terminated by not less than one months’ written notice or
payment in lieu of such notice. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a specific term of three years and is subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years. And they should
be re-appointed at any annual general meeting of the Company
during their term of office. The appointment may be terminated
by not less than one month’s written notice or payment in lieu of
such notice.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, one
third of the Directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation every year and any new director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting or the first annual general meeting respectively after
appointment. The Nomination Committee reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board regularly to ensure that the Board has
a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. Where vacancies
on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry out the
selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other
relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment
and selection process where necessary. The recommendations
of the Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board for
decision.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment
of the Directors Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny, Mr. Chen Jian and
Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie standing for re-election at the next
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The
Company’s circular contains detailed information of the directors
standing for re-election will be despatched to shareholders for
consideration.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS EENHERE

The attendance records of the directors at Board Meetings, BHE_ZTZ-_ZTF+_A=T—BLFERN-
Audit Committee Meetings, Remuneration Committee Meetings, NEEREEFLE2H BEXZESLE - T

Nomination Committee Meetings and General Meetings during ZEgeE REZESEEMRERZ 2L
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below: [ERLERUNT -
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee meeting

Exg ENZEE FMZEE REHZEE EVN-

Executive directors HITES
Ms. Yeung So Mui BRIBLL 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 17
Taf TEH TEH
Mr. Choi Yun Chor 2B E 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 11
NEA NEFA TEF
Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny REGL A 4/4 n/a n/a n/a in
TEA TEH TNEH
Mr. Chen Jian PR{R S 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 11
TEF TEF TEF
Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny B EE LA 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 1/1
TEF NEH NEH
Mr. Lin Junwei WEERE 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 11
TNEF TNEF TNEF
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Dr Loke Yu BEEmiE L
(alias Loke Hoi Lam) 4/4 22 1/1 1/1 1/1
Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie RE+ 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee TExE 4/4 212 ! 171 171
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four board committees, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Independent Board Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
board committees should report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations made.

A. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors Dr. Loke Yu
(Committee Chairman), Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie and
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

1. to monitor the integrity of financial reporting of the
Company;

2. 1o review the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group; and

3. to review the corporate governance practices of the
Company.

There were two Audit Committee meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to discuss and review the
following matters:

1. the 2019 annual report and accounts;
2. the 2020 interim report and accounts;

3. the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

4.  the financial reporting and relevant compliance with
external auditor; and

5. the auditor’s remuneration and recommended the
Board to re-appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited as the auditor of the Company in the year
2021, which is subject to the approval of shareholders
at the forthcoming AGM.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors Mr. Ting Wong Kacee
(Committee Chairman), Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie and
Dr. Loke Yu.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are:

1.  to review the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration structure; and

3. to review and guide the formulation of the Group’s
remuneration policy for directors and senior
management attributable to performance-driven
compensation commitment as well as market trend
and industry norms.

There was one Remuneration Committee meeting
held for the year ended 31 December 2020 to review
the remuneration packages of directors and senior
management according to the Group’s employment policy,
nomination policy, remuneration policy, and training and
development policy.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee can be viewed on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Details of the remuneration to the directors on named
basis and members of senior management by band are
disclosed in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu
Cherrie (Committee Chairman), Mr. Ting Wong Kacee and
Dr. Loke Yu.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors;

2. 1o review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment or re-appointment of directors;

3. to propose the appointment of such candidates to the
Board for consideration; and

4.  to review the qualifications of the relevant candidates
for determining the suitability to the Group on the
basis of his/her qualifications, experience and
background.

There was one Nomination Committee meeting held for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to discuss and consider
the following matters:

1. the composition of the Board with reference to certain
criteria. These criteria included qualifications required
under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws
regarding characteristics and skills of the directors,
professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as
well as ability to devote sufficient time to the work of
the Board and its committees and to participate in all
Board meetings and shareholders’ meetings;

2. the re-appointment of the retiring directors for
re-election at the previous general meeting;

3. procedures for election of directors and by
shareholders; and

4. independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee can be viewed on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the CG Code:

1. todevelop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior
officers of the Group;

3.  toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct
applicable to employees and the directors; and

b. 1o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board considered
the following corporate governance matters:

1. review of the compliance with the Code Provisions of the
CG Code; and

2. review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Group through the Audit
Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretary of the Company is a full time employee of
the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
Secretary, Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie, has duly complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. The biographical details of the
Company Secretary is set out on in the section entitled “Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives a comprehensive and
formal induction to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group, his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements, the CG Code of the Company
and the Model Code.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for directors will be
arranged at the expenses of the Company whenever necessary.
The directors are committed to complying with Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code on directors’ training effective from 1 April
2012. All directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided their training records to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS' LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the directors. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
no claim had been made against the directors and the officers of
the Company.

The Separate Roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer, is clearly defined and has
been approved by the Board. The Chairman provides leadership
of the Board, ensures the effectiveness of the Board and
oversees the corporate development; while the Chief Executive
Officer, as head of the executive directorate, is responsible for
managing the business development and strategic planning of
the Group.

Their separate roles reinforce the continuous enhancement of

the Group’s corporate governance in terms of corporate fairness,
transparency and accountability.
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Directors’ Independence

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) among members of the Board.

The directors are given access to independent professional
advice at the Group’s expense, when the directors deem it
necessary in order to carry out their responsibilities.

The Board also advocates the participation of independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors in various
board committees to safeguard objectivity and independence.

The Company has received the confirmation letters from each
of the independent non-executive directors, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control system to ensure adequate
control in place to safeguard the Group’s assets and
stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to
address and handle the all significant risks associate with the
business of the Group. The Board would perform annual review
on any significant change of the business environment and
establish procedures to response the risks result from significant
change of business environment. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to mitigate the potential
losses of the business.
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Management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors
and events which include political, economic, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritised based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opportunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follow:

— Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

— Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so
as to avoid the risk;

— Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the
risk or allocate to different location or product or market;

— Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third

party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit
function to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. There is
no significant deficiency and weakness on the internal control
system which has been identified by the external advisory firm
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December
2020, the risk management and internal control system
and procedures of the Group, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions were reasonably effective and adequate.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group has put in place the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information. The
Group complies with requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls
within any of the safe harbours as stated in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.
The Group is committed to ensure that information contained
in announcements or circulars are not false or misleading as to
a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of
a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive
and negative facts.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as
the Group’s external auditor. The statement by Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited regarding their reporting responsibilities to
the shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
81 to 93 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees paid/payable
to the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
by the auditor to the Group were as follows:

1% B0 6 i B

E-E-EF+- A=+ —ALEE B
BT 0K S BIR GR BR SR BRI 2 B X
SRS T RBE RN

HK$’000

Nature of services REMHE FHETT

Audit services Z 8RS 1,088
Non-audit services IERZERTS

Other services H b AR FS 150

Total 48%8 1,238

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. Annual reports and interim
reports provide shareholders with comprehensive information
of the Group’s operational and financial performances; while
general meetings offer a platform for shareholders to state and
exchange views with the Board directly.

The management continually communicates with analysts and
institutional investors and provides them with up-to-date and
comprehensive information regarding the Group’s development.
The Company practices timely dissemination of information
and makes sure its website www.timesuniversal.com contains
the most latest information, including but not limited to annual
reports, interim reports, announcements, monthly returns and
press releases, and is updated in a timely manner to ensure
transparency.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there had been no
significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

A.

Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”), shareholder(s) holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition at least 5% of the
voting rights at general meetings of the Company, may
request the directors of the Company to convene an
EGM. The written requisition must state the objects of
the meeting and must be signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of chairman of the Board or the
Company Secretary. The requisition may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
shareholders concerned.

If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene an EGM for a date not more than 28 days after
the date on which the notice convening the EGM is given,
the shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
general meetings are to be convened by the directors of the
Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong.

The Company Secretary will forward the shareholders’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the shareholders’ questions in writing.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals
at General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 551 to 554
(written resolutions), section 579 (notice of resolutions),
sections 580 to 583 (statements), section 615, section
616 (resolutions for AGMs) of the Companies Ordinance
for including a resolution at AGM of the Company. The
requirements and procedures are set out as follows:

1. A member of a Company may request the Company
to circulate a resolution that —

(a) may properly be moved; and
(b) is proposed as a written resolution under
section 549(b) of the Companies Ordinance.

If a member requests a Company to circulate a resolution,
the member may request the Company to circulate with the
resolution a statement of not more than 1,000 words on the
subject matter of the resolution.

However, each member may only request the Company to
circulate one such statement with respect to the resolution.

2. A company must circulate a resolution proposed
as a written resolution under section 549(b) of the
Companies Ordinance and any statement mentioned
in section 551(2) of the Companies Ordinance if it
has received requests that it do so from the members
of the Company representing not less than 5% of the
total voting rights of all the members entitled to vote
on the resolution (or a lower percentage specified for
this purpose in the Company’s articles).
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A request —

(a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form
or in electronic form;

(b) must identify the resolution and any statement
mentioned in section 551(2) of the Companies
Ordinance; and

(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it.

If by any provision of the Companies Ordinance
special notice is required to be given of a resolution,
the resolution is not effective unless notice of the
intention to move it has been given to the Company at
least 28 days before the meeting at which it is moved.

The Company must, if practicable, give its members
notice of the resolution at the same time and in the
same manner as it gives notice of the meeting.

If that is not practicable, the Company must give its
members notice of the resolution at least 14 days
before the meeting —

(@) by advertisement in a newspaper circulating
generally in Hong Kong; or

(b) in any other manner allowed by the Company’s
articles.

If, after notice of the intention to move the resolution
has been given to the Company, a meeting is called
for a date 28 days or less after the notice has been
given, the notice is to be regarded as having been
properly given, though not given within the time
required.
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Pursuant to Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, no person other than a director retiring
at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
directors for election, be eligible for election as
director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be processed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the registered
office of the Company provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least seven days and that the period
for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

Reporting Scope

Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (“Times Universal”
or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
the “Group”, “We”, “our” and “us”) are pleased to present the
annual environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report
(the “Report”). The Report provides an annual update of the
Group’s ESG management approaches, environmental and
social performance and efforts during the period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period” or “2020"),
unless otherwise stated. For the details of corporate governance,
please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 16 to page 32 of our 2020 annual report.

The Report covers the hotel operation in Victoria, British
Columbia, Canada (i.e. Brentwood Bay Resort (“BBR")
where offers hotel resort and spa services) and the property
management in Chongging (i.e. Nuofute Property Management
Co., Ltd. (“Nuofute Property Management”)), the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), as well as Hong Kong office
where provides administrative support to the Group companies.
There is no significant change in the reporting scope compared
to 2019 ESG Report.

Reporting Standard

The Report is prepared in accordance with the second version
of ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX") as well as adhering to the reporting
principles of materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance.

The Report has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide. With the exception of the
provisions that the Group considers are inapplicable to our
business operations or provide partial disclosure, explanations
are illustrated in the corresponding section.
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ESG Management

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has responsibility for
the oversight of the ESG-related strategy (including risks and
opportunities) and reporting. An internal ESG working taskforce
has been set up to collect relevant ESG data, coordinate the
compilation of the ESG report and provide information to the
board with annual ESG performance. The Report has been
reviewed and approved by the board of Directors of the Group (the
“Board”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group has identified the key stakeholders: the government
and regulatory authorities, shareholders, customers, business
partners, employees, media, the environment and the
community. We have set up various communication channels
and maintain constant communication with our key stakeholders
to better understand their needs and expectations in ESG and
enhance our initiatives and strategies. The communication
channels we adopted to stakeholder engagement are illustrated
as follows.

Stakeholders Communication Channels

K&

R - HERERERE

Exe((£5g)) aEEERE H2kER
HEXRE (BREEREESE) RS A5E
MERZAIIRE (L REARIENE - |
£IRIE ?i‘\&%f)\ KR SR - TR EEIR
R HekEARE TRESSREFER
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Bxg ([E5g)) S8 RME -
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o AKERIZEEBERE HIBRFNE

SEBE NWEMHTHRERERE HEKE
BTHENFERRAL PRI IEERLR

B o AREBAER D E 2 EP RN B RBRED
TREATR e

Stakeholders’ Concerns and
Expectations

FOENEERGE

Government and regulatory ® Regular documentation submission e Qperation in compliance
authorities TE B sRsR SCF aHgE
B REEHE e Regular communication with e Fulfilment of tax obligations
regulatory authorities BIREE T
i BE MR TE BRI 5E e Creation of job opportunities
e Forum, seminar and conference HrEpL e
wiE - ek
Shareholders e Company website e Sustainable investment returns and
8 NGIE R business development
e Annual general meetings AIEHEIRE DR N EFERE
M RAFE RS o Transparent financial information
e Corporate announcements, circulars FHARBT IS E R}
and reports
PEAE - BEEEWE
Customers e Customer satisfaction surveys e Privacy protection
TR EPREEAL FLEBRIZ
e Customer feedback and complaints e Upholding high quality of services
B P REBRIEF HREE RIS
e Online Commenting platform
BREBERTAE
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Business Partners
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Employees
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The Community
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Communication Channels
BERE

e On-going direct engagement
FEEE2 N

e Procurement
RES

e Public tendering
UNGEEE

e Sit inspection and assessment
B E = RaTE

e Supplier performance evaluation
e R AR AT

e Emails and suggestion box
EHRERME

e Employee meeting
EEE:

e Annual performance review
FREASE

e Employee training
EEE

e Team building activity
B ERIEE

e Email and phone call
BENEFE

e Meetings

o
==

e Sponsorship and donation
= EU)SE

e Company website
NGIE D

e Media enquiry
HEEH

e Email and phone call
BEEHNES

e Press conference

FEEhE
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Stakeholders’ Concerns and
Expectations
BFHENRIEIRBAE
Business integrity
ESv
Mutual cooperating relationship

HEAERE

Career development

BEER

Remuneration and benefits
FrftE A

Occupational health and safety
BEREEZE

Corporate support

hEE

Participation in local community
AL [ 2 E

Support for community welfare and
investment

Xt EAERIEE

Information transparency

BEH
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group conducted a materiality assessment, facilitated by
the external consultant, to determine the ESG topics significantly
impacting the Group and our stakeholders, as well as the
direction of report disclosure.

We have identified 26 ESG topics with reference to the HKEX
ESG Reporting Guide and global reporting standard (e.g. GRI),
along with considering the current business operations and
development, market trends and local policies and regulations.
We invited our internal stakeholders (i.e. the senior management
and employees) to share their perspectives in ESG and rate the
materiality of ESG topics towards the stakeholders themselves
as well as the Group’s business operation through online
questionnaire surveys.

According to the results provided by our stakeholders, we carried
out an internal assessment prioritising the material ESG issues,
to which the result is illustrated in the below materiality matrix.

Moderate importance

MEERM

HEOENEEMN

Importance to the stakeholders

Low importance

BEEEM%

©
O ch
®

EEMEFE
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HEREREE  UNREEEN SR

RSEBBHIMERE - L@ RERARERES
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EENER MEBEBEREMEERKEESR K
EECHPI26HERE HEMEREHE - A&
BE#FEATFOE (AL EREEREER) »F
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EEEREAEBEREENERNE -
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High importance
EEEEH
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-
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Importance to the business operation of the Group

HAGREXRBEENEEN
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Aspects ESG Topics
=] BB HERERSBE

Environment
RiE

Employment and labour practices

BRREIESR

Operational practices

EEER

Community investment

HERE
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Energy efficiency

BEIR

Greenhouse gas emissions and management
RERBHRRERE

Response to climate change

JE T RIS L

Air emissions

BE R

Waste management

FEEMERR

Wastewater management

VIKETR

Water use

IKE R

Materials consumption
BEMELERE

Natural resources and biodiversity
RABRREMEEMN
Employment rights and benefits
BB KAz A

Employee recruitment and retention
EEHEREE

Employee engagement

EEHRAE

Diversity and equal opportunities
Zilb Rk TFEKSE

Occupational health and safety
BERRRZE

Employee training and career development
EEEIIRBEER

Elimination of child and forced labour
HBRET R4 T

Customer services quality

EEREEE

Customer health and safety
EPRERER

Customer data privacy
BEPERILE

Customer satisfaction

EEMEE

Tenant and customer engagement
HPREP2H

Supply chain management
fHresEE s

Intellectual property rights protection
N E R AE

Anti-corruption and business ethics
R&[REFEER
Anti-competitive behaviour
REFITHR

Community investment

HERIRE
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OUR PEOPLE

Employment Practices

As a property management service and hospitality service
provider, employees are an integral part of delivering exceptional
services to our customers and sustaining our strategic business
development. Hence, the Group strives to offer a collaborative,
motivating and inclusive working environment to our employees,
with learning opportunities for career and personal growth.
The Group has formulated and implemented human resources
management policies, in order to comply with all relevant labour
laws and regulations (e.g. Labour Law of the PRC (A% AR £
FEI L4 &%), Labour Contract Law of the PRC ({2 A R F0
Bl &5 Eh A RISE)), Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors ({7
B ARTER)), Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour (ZEH{FEAZET#E)), Cap 57. Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) {{&
BB, Cap 608 Minimum Wage Ordinance (&KL & &
#1) of HKSAR and the Employment Standards Acts of British
Columbia, Canada, etc.) in the regions where we operate. During
the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any breaches
of related local labour laws and regulations.

Remuneration, Compensation and Benefits

As stipulated in internal human resource management
procedures, employee handbook and employee contract,
the Group has clearly defined the remuneration and welfare
composition for employees working in the property management
sector and Hong Kong office. Apart from basic salary and post
salary, our employees are entitled various statutory benefits such
as medical insurance, life insurance plan, mandatory provident
fund or “five insurance and one fund” — pension, medical,
unemployment, workers’ compensation and maternity insurances
and housing fund, as well as allowances and subsidies such
as transportation allowance and accommodation allowance,
depending on the position categorises. Besides, our employees
are entitled to paid annual leave, sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity/paternity leave, bereavement leave, breastfeeding leave
and jury duty leave, apart from statutory leaves. Our employees
are also granted cash gifts for birthday, marriage and condolence
as a gesture of care and goodwill. The Group implemented an
eight-hour standard work system at the headquarter of Nuofute
Property Management and Hong Kong office. Each property
management centre is arranged irregular working shifts and/
or integrated working hours varied in different posts, with a
maximum of 40 hours per week to fit into the purpose of actual
business needs.
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Employees in our hotel operation are entitled to standard
remuneration package and paid vacation leave, sick leave,
and maternity/paternity leave, as outlined in the employee
culture handbook and employee contract. The Group also
offers insurance premiums, retirement plan and overtime pay
to our employees pursuant to the Employment Standards Acts.
Staff perks such as discounted hotel stays, spa services, free
paddle sport rentals, meal allowances and industry discounts
are granted to the eligible staff in reward their contribution.
The hours of employees’ work vary depending on seasonal
factors and business levels. Scheduled work shifts and rest day
is offered to our employees ensure they maintain a work-life
balance.

The Group maintains regular review on employee remuneration
package with reference to our peers in the industry, employee
performance evaluation result and the prevailing regional market
level. Employees with excellent performance may award salary
increment, promotion and/or discretionary bonus to recognise
their achievement and ensure they are rewarded with fair and
competitive compensation.

Equal opportunity, diversity and anti-
discrimination

The Group is committed to providing a fair, open and impartial
employment opportunity. The Group does not discriminate on the
ground of gender, age, race, religion, national origin, ancestry,
disability and any other classification protected under the
relevant laws. The Group has formulated employee recruitment
and staff performance review management procedure in each
business segment to govern recruitment, transfer and promotion,
performance appraisal, wage practices and dismissal, and
ensure all decisions are made solely taking into account the
objective criteria such as candidates’ individual work experience,
qualifications, merits and competencies. The Group strictly
prohibits any form of bullying and/or harassment across our
business operations to offer a respectful and secure workplace
for employees. All employees oblige to abide by the Group’s
policies in equal employment opportunity, diversity and anti-
discrimination.
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Labour Standards

The Group respects and protects human rights. The Group
strictly prohibits child labour, bonded labour and forced labour in
our business operations. For instance, the Group strictly prohibits
employment of any person under the age of 15 in Canada or
any person under 16 across our property management business
in China. Our human resources department of each business
segment conducts comprehensive background checks for
successful candidates during the recruitment process, including
but not limited to validate the identity documents, work visa
or permit and other personal information to ensure they meet
the legal working age and are eligible to work locally. Besides,
our employees sign the labour contract with the Group only
on a voluntary basis to protect their legitimate labour rights
and interests. We strictly abide by the statutory working hours
and rest period to ensure the physical and mental health of
our employees. When necessary to arrange employees to work
overtime due to the occurrence of emergency and business
needs, overtime compensation will be granted to eligible staff
under the labour laws. The Group requires our suppliers to follow
our labour standards in our business dealings to prevent any
violation of the use of child labour and forced labour. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any violation of the
use of child and forced labours.

Employee Communication

The Group maintains open and constant communication with
our employees in each business segment through meeting,
performance review interview, email, e-newsletter and employee
engagement survey to better understand their concerns and
expectations at work, optimise the current employment practices
working conditions and address their needs promptly, so as to
enhance employee satisfaction.

In addition, staff complaint and grievance system is in place and
allow our employees to report any complaint(s) in workplace,
grievance and conflict(s) at work. The relevant department(s) will
take proper action and address the reported issues in a timely
manner.
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Employee Profile

As of 31 December 2020, the Group has 204 full-time
employees and 50 part-time employees. The breakdown of
the total workforce divided by gender, age group, employment
category and geographical region is indicated as below.

RIE - g NERHS

1’ SR

BE-T-TH+-A=1—A0 £EEE204
£2WEBRS0LRBIES - BHR - FHE
Bl EBEREMEHHEHNE TABS 6
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Total workforce by gender

BIERIBID IS TR

46%
54%

= Male =Female

Sh i

Total workforce by age group

BRF ARSI NE THS

26r \25%

49%

= Under age 30 = Age 30 to 50 =Over age 50
30 AT 30-50%% 50m A £

Total workforce by employee category

BESFHEDNETHAR

10%

~, ..
\

78%

= Senior Management SREEE
= Midde Management HREEE
= General Staff —RET

Total workforce by geographical region

BHES MBI NE THES

5%

23% .

72%

= Hong Kong = Mainland China = Canada
BH HPER it mEX
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BRI e MERTRE

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group attaches great emphasis on workplace health and
safety. The Group has set up a clear safety and health policy and
management procedures in each business segment in achieving
“zero accident” in the workplace as our ultimate goal.

Property Management Services

The Group has implemented an ISO45001:2018 certified
occupational health and safety management system, to
systematically identify and manage the safety risks and hazards
in the workplace. We conduct safety risk assessments and
determine the potential risks that could occur in the working
environment with mitigation measures in protecting the
employees and workers from occupational safety hazards and
minimise workplace injuries. Regular safety inspections are
arranged to ensure the safety control measures are effectively
implemented and maintained. We have established an
emergency response working team and outlined emergency
preparedness and response procedures for our employees to
follow and deal with the emergencies (e.g. fire, earthquake and
flooding).

To foster the safety-focused culture in our workplace, regular
internal training, covered with the topics such as workplace
hazards, chemical and hazardous substance handling, fire safety
and emergency response plans and drills, and external training
programmes are offered to our employees to increase their
safety awareness, knowledge and skills in emergency response
and evacuation. For employees who perform high-risk activities
such as electrical work and elevator maintenance work, they
are required to attend specific training courses and become a
qualified person before commencing the work.

In case of any incident and accident happened, we follow the
incident, accident handling and investigation procedure to carry
out a comprehensive investigation, find out the root cause(s)
of incident/accident and proactively take rectification based on
the findings. When appropriate, the Group improves the existing
safety management approaches and safety practices in order to
prevent the recurrence of similar cases.
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Hotel Operation

We have established Environmental Occupational Health and
Safety (“EOHS") programme with policies, procedures and safety
guidelines for our employees to follow to prevent and minimise
the safety risks and hazards in performing our daily operation. We
have set up a health and safety committee in BBR and arranged
regular meetings to review the adequacy and effectiveness of
EOHS programme, the root causes of incidents or accidents
that have recently occurred and address any concerns that
impacted the wellness of the staff and guests. Safety inspections
by each department and safety training sessions (including the
emergency drills) are arranged on a regular basis to enhance
their awareness and knowledge of workplace safety and join
hand with efforts in fostering a safe working environment.

Maintaining workplace safety under the
COVID-19 disease

To ensure employee safety in our business segment, the Group
strictly follow all government policies, regulations and guidelines
as well as the health advice related to COVID-19. The following
key preventive measures that have adopted in our business
segments to reduce the risk of contacting of COVID-19 are
highlighted as follows:

° Outline the safety protocols for COVID-19 to each
department and require all staff to strictly follow the safety
working procedures and cleanliness and hygiene measures
during their shifts to safeguard their health and safety;

° Require employees undergo a daily health check/body
temperature to ensure they are fit to work prior to starting
their work shift and maintain good personal hygiene;

o Maintain adequate epidemic prevention materials in our
operations and provide appropriate personal protective
equipment (“PPE”) (e.g., gloves, goggles/face shield) based
on the work duties or the risk assessment for cleaning and
disinfection;

° Organise training session and emergency drills to frontline
staff on new enhanced hygiene protocols including
cleaning and disinfection working guidelines, performing
hand hygiene and avoiding touching their eyes, mouth,
nose, ears and face;

° Wear surgical mask when employees need to enter the
tenant/resident/guest spaces;
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e Post up signage and notice to remind employees on e RENFERERETREEERBFIFEE -

hand hygiene, cough etiquette and COVID-19 infection WS 0 K FB G 2019 ML Bk iR S A E
prevention; 18 ;
e Keep social distancing when having meals and meetings. o  EBNHERIRIFLER -

The Group has complied with all the relevant health and safety AEBECETHAERBORERZ 2AFRE
laws and regulations (e.g. Cap 509 Occupational Safety and ] MEBFNITRE (B EL 2 RN
Health Ordinance of HKSAR, Law of the PRC on Prevention and (E509%) ~ (HFZEARLMBEIBZERLAE)
Control of Occupational Diseases % A R HEMBEB ¥ HE A MINEREBE mima ) CBRREEZ 21K
y%) and Occupational Health and Safety Regulation in British Bl o PAIRE BRI - ANER B 8 A0 A ) L2 BR
Columbia, Canada). During the Reporting Period, the Group was MRz ZRRERBRNERSEN -

not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant health and

safety laws and regulations.

2020 2019 2018
—g-2f —2-nE —2-N\f
0 0 0

Work-related fatalities

I%T

Work-related accidents 6 N/A N/A

I8 TiER NiE A

Lost days of work-related injury 49 N/A N/A

AIGEATHEAH NiE R NiE R
DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING R EIEA

The Group endeavours to offer training and development RNEEBRHAREIRHEEIINERE#KE - WA
opportunities to our employees and creates space for their WENEE EAAKRENRKIEAIEZR - A&
career and personal growth and fulfilment. The Group has B ATRBENEERHEZERNSERNE

provided a variety of internal universal and topic-specific training BIEIERE RIS EEFIARTE - IR ARENE
programme for employees in different career level, as well as AR NI AE o

external training courses to enhance their professional expertise
and technical skills.
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Property Management Services

The Group formulates the annual training plan based on our
employees’ needs and feedback collected. We offer in-house and
external training courses to the employees in equipping both their
technical knowledge and soft skills for delivering excellent quality
of services and meeting customers’ needs. Orientation training
is arranged to our newcomers with the introduction of corporate
culture and regulations, service etiquette, basic safety knowledge
in property management, specific job functions, staff code of
conduct and staff benefit and welfare to assist them in adapting
to their position. Various types of on-job training, covering the
topics, among others, elevator safety management, maintenance
of high voltage electricity, fire safety control and monitoring,
corporate management and leadership skills, customer services,
building services and facilities maintenance and cleaning
working procedures, are provided to our employees to enhance
their work efficiency and performance. We also encourage our
employees to supplement their training in their leisure time via
attending the external training and seminars offered by industry
institutions. Besides, the Group continuously reviews the training
outcomes and standards through soliciting staff feedback after
training, in order to ensure the training effectiveness, continually
optimise the training arrangement and further determine tailor-
made training sessions for our employees to suit their ongoing
development.

Hotel Operation

To attract and retain the best and most productive employees
to the hotel operation, we offer a series of training programmes
such as “The Human Element” and “The Implicit Career Search”
to assist our employee discover their career purpose and career
aspirations, clarify their work purpose and improve their way
to work with others for the greater accomplishment of goals
and better individual, team and organizational performance. In
addition, a 13-month career development program named “The
Emergent Leaders Program”, designed to develop individual's
technical skills and leadership abilities through coaching and
goal setting, is mandatory to the managerial staff. All the training
programmes are mandatory to the managerial staff, while they
are open for all employees in order to create space for career
growth and fulfilment and obtain greater personal satisfaction.
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2020
—g-%%

Total number of hours of employee training? 9364.5

REE AR

Percentage of Average number of
employee trained training hour
ZIESEH employee completed
& & 55 B35 3| 19 B
Property Management Services 100% 289
Y EEE R
By gender
&R 85
Male 62% 26.2
B
Female 38% 33.3
pegis
By employee category
REEERE S
Senior management 2% 0.9
BREEE
Middle management 12% 1.4
HREEE
General staff 86% 33.7
—MRET
Hotel Operation? 104% 39.5
B IEARE 2
By gender
b2 ko
Male 39% 45.3
B
Female 61% 36.4
7%
By employee category
ZEEERE D
Senior management 8% 16
SRERE
Middle management 5% 22.2
FARERE
General staff 87% 43.7
—MRET
1 The data of employee training covers the business segment of property L ZEEFIEREREMETERS LBELE
management service and hotel operation only. KIZEH5 8B o
2 The percentage of employees who have received training exceeding 2 ZHEE L FIFRiB 100% - TEHmANREHANEES
100% is mainly due to the employee turnover during the Reporting MARLLEE - BlEBRHEANEZIREREHH
Period. The training programmes provided to the employees cover SEEIHREENIRERERSEEIE

the internal training for new hired employees and the management
leadership retreat.
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OUR BUSINESS OPERATION

Services Responsibility

The Group strives to uphold excellence in the service quality
and optimize the comprehensive experience for our customers,
with an aim to enhance customer satisfaction. The Group
strictly complies with the Product Quality Law of the PRC
# NRAMEE RGD E)X), Law of the PRC on the Protection
of Consumer Rights and Interests P ZE A RFELFEH & &

ZRIREL) as well as the Business Practices and Consumer
Protection Act. During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any non-compliance regarding health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to our service
provision.

Property Management Services

Adhering to the service philosophy of “Customer first, service
with heart and five-star service to accompany you in your
lifetime” (BRF 2 » AORBEAEFRBEHEE—E), we strive
to build a warm, harmonious and comfortable environment
and offer customer-oriented, sincere and attentive property
management services in exceeding the customer’s growing
needs and expectations.

Nuofute Property Management has established a quality
management system accredited with the international standard
of ISO 9001:2015. We have implemented a series of working
procedures in aspects such as customer service greeting,
grooming and telephone etiquettes, customer complaint
handling, value-added service, environmental management,
hygiene management and security and fire prevention, etc,
and clearly defined our committed service standards, in order
to satisfy the personalised needs of our customers, and enrich
the customer experience and service values in our property
management services.

We regularly organise topic-specific training sessions and
morning briefing sessions to our employees in order to facilitate
them to better understand the evolving needs of our customers
and equip necessary knowledge and communication skills
in upholding professional and flawless services. Besides, we
utilise the latest technologies such as the internet, property
management system and artificial intelligence to improve our
service efficiency. In July 2020, we carried out smart parking
lot refinement work in one of our managed properties, Forebase
Convention International Building, to resolve the problem
of traffic congestion in peak hours and provide smart and
convenient service to our customers.
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BRI e MERTRE

We value our customers’ feedback on our property management
services and this drives us to explore new opportunities for
continuous improvement on service efficiency and quality. We
have formulated customer satisfaction management procedure
to monitor and analyse the level of customer satisfaction. Apart
from regular tenant visits, meetings and workshops, we conduct
annual customer satisfaction survey, with an aim to further
understand the concerns and expectations of our customers in
our services, evaluate our service performance to find out our
downside, and obtain customers’ opinions and suggestions for
further improve our services quality. During the Reporting Period,
we received 539 valid responses of customer satisfaction survey
and the overall score of service satisfaction is over 91%.

Upon receipt of any customer complaints regarding customer
service, service quality and/or facility operation deficiencies,
we follow the “Customer Complaint Handling Procedure” and
record the complaint issue, conduct investigation to verify and
confirm complaint case, determine relevant solutions and take
the remedial actions by the respective departments in a timely
manner to ensure that the received customer complaints are
properly resolved and our customers satisfied. During the
Reporting Period, we received no complaints in the operation of
property management services.

To ensure the safety of our customers, we have set up an
engineering team, comprised of experienced engineers and
technicians with relevant qualifications, to arrange regular facility
inspections and maintenance on the building and equipment,
fire safety equipment and property facilities to ensure they are
functioned properly and prevent the occurrence of incidents and
accidents. Besides, we maintain daily security services, including
routine security patrols, visitor registration and entrance gate
control, to prevent crime and suspicious people entering our
managed properties. Meanwhile, we have developed emergency
response plans and conducted regular emergency drills for our
security guards to ensure that they have adequate awareness
and knowledge to cope with emergency situations.
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With the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, the Group has
taken prompt response to this pandemic and implemented a
series of preventive measures to safeguard the customers’ health
and safety, which are shown as below:

o Implemented “closed-off” management in our managed
premises in accordance with the requirements of the
District Pandemic Prevention and Control headquarters;

° Cleaned and disinfected frequently touched surfaces and
areas with frequent access by members of the public such
as washrooms, escalators, corridors, lifts garage and lobby
entrance for infection prevention;

° Required in-out register and body temperature check for
all persons and vehicles that enter the premises at the only
entrance of buildings;

° Provided adequate hand hygiene facilities at the only main
entrances of buildings and reception;

° Developed emergency response plans for pandemic
prevention and control base on to the actual situation of the
managed projects;

° Placed a special garbage bins for mask disposal to prevent
the virus transmission;

° Maintained good ventilation by regularly monitoring the
fresh air ventilation system and regularly cleaning of air
conditioning systems;

o Provide regular indoor disinfection value-added service
for office tenants to ensure the environmental hygiene
standards in their workplace after the work resumption;

° Increased signages, posters and publicity notices in the
premises to ensure all customers and visitors are aware of
precautionary measures to minimize the risk of spreading
COVID-19;

° Maintain regular inspections to report the situations of
infection control work on a regular basis with the owners’
committee and governmental departments to combat the
COVID-19 disease together.
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BRI e MERTRE

To safeguard our customer data privacy, we have outlined the
requirements of data privacy in our employee handbook and
employee contract. All employees strictly exercise their due
care regarding the collection and use of personal information
of customers and such information is used exclusively for
matters relating to property management operation only. All the
customer data is securely kept in our internal system with access
control and managed by designated personnel of corresponding
department to prevent unnecessary accidental information
leakage, processing or other use. Employees who review
and copy the contents and files of customer data due to the
operational needs must obtain prior approval by the management
and oblige the confidential requirements. Moreover, employees
are not allowed to disclose and communicate any information of
the Group, tenants and residents to unauthorised external parties
or the media.

Hotel Operation

With the mission of enriching the lives of our guests and our staff
and promoting wellness and relaxation in the business of hotel
operation, the Group is dedicated to offering our guest a unique,
extraordinary and memorable experience with joyfully graceful
hospitality. We have formulated a set of internal guest service
manual to standardise the quality of our committed services,
including but not limited to greetings, telephone etiquettes and
attitude in customer care and handling guest complaint and
special requests, in order to optimise the customers satisfaction
for attracting more guest return visits and comply with the
applicable laws and regulations (e.g. the Hotel Keepers Act).
Meanwhile, we offer a full range of featured spa packages
and all spa treatments are served by our team of exceptional
aestheticians and spa practitioners to ensure the attentive and
intuitive spa services are offered and maintained.
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We always put the safety of guests as our priority. Our
facility management team arranges regular inspections and
maintenance on property facilities (e.g. elevator and fire safety
equipment, etc.) in BBR to prevent the safety hazards for our
guest as possible. Besides, we offer dining, meeting and banquet
services in hotel operation and hence food safety is the issue
that we fundamentally concern. Our food and beverage team
has formulated a kitchen manual to standardise the food service
offered in our hotel resort and outline the best practices for food
handlers regarding the food storage, food hygiene and food
handling according to the applicable local laws and regulations.
All the employees of our food and beverage team have
completed the training 100% to ensure they have full knowledge
of the food product preparation, food serving and food hygiene.
The managerial staff of food and beverage team conducts regular
inspections to make sure vigorous control on food handling and
kitchen sanitary is maintained.

With the global outbreak of COVID-19 disease in 2020, we
strictly followed the all government regulations and guidelines,
provincial restrictions order and direction of the Provincial
Health Officer under the Public Health Act to reduce COVID-19
transmission and spread related to social interactions. Regarding
this, the hotel operation was forced to be temporarily closed
for three months from March 2020 to June 2020. After the
resumption of hotel operation, we have made strategic decisions
and adjusted the operating hours of our hotel, restaurant, marina
and spa services in which go above and beyond provincial
guidelines, with an aim to limit the exposure of COVID-19
while upholding our quality of service and fostering joyful and
experiences to our guests in a safest manner.

We have also formulated the COVID-19 response plans and
strengthened our internal safety protocols with control measures
in order to enhance the cleaning and sanitization within the
hotel premises and ensure providing a safe environment to our
guests during their stays. Some key precautionary measures we
have adopted in BBR to safeguard the safety of our guests are
illustrated as follows:

° Accept only Vancouver Island residents for stays and
require our guests to declare their recent health status
and travel history upon check-in. Any guests who exhibit
COVID-19 related symptoms will be asked to return when
they are well;

° Set up hand sanitising stations throughout BBR and
encourage our guests to sanitise their hands frequently;
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° Keep distancing requirements between guests (e.g.
furniture arrangement, Installation of appropriate plexiglass
barriers, and tapping line on the floor in front of the front
desk, etc.) to maintain social distancing and reduce
contact;

° Request all guests and employees to wear a mask or face
covering in all public spaces at all time and sanitise their
hands as they enter the building;

° Increase cleaning protocols in both public spaces and
guest rooms. High touch point areas and soft surface in
rooms are sanitized/steamed on a routine basis;

° Enhance the cleaning procedures by our housekeeping
team in between each guest’s stay and implement a 24-
hour waiting period in between one party’s departure and
the next guest’s arrival;

° Maintain social distancing throughout BBR at all time and
regulate the number of guests for check in /check out the
hotel and accommodate parties of up to a maximum of 6
people only;

° Display signages and posters throughout BBR to ensure all
guests are aware of the requirements of COVID-19 infection
prevention in hotel resort and the importance of frequent
hand sanitisation;

° Alter/limit the maximum capacity of spa and dining services
and wellness facilities to minimise the risk of virus spread
of COVID-19;

° Wipe and sanitise the equipment of shared workstations,
key cards and pens before and after use.

When any complaint(s) or negative feedback that we get from
guests, we firstly listen and understand the matter we need
to pay attention, record the details of complaint issues in the
complaint log and follow up with prompt response by the
relevant person or department to ensure that the complaint(s)
are properly understood and addressed. During the Reporting
Period, we received a total of 819 complaints in hotel operation
related to guest rooms, food and beverage and spa treatment
services and all cases have been resolved.
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To protect the customer data privacy, we have complied with
the Business Practices and Consumer Protection Act and only
collect the essential and necessary guests’ personal information
in a lawful mean for day-to-day operation and understand of
certain guest preferences (e.g., amenities or any other services
requested) for service delivery. All employees in hotel operation
require to abide by the confidentiality obligations as stipulated
in employee handbook and contract and prohibit to disclose
any customer data to unauthorised persons. To better secure
the customer rights and interests, we ensure the information
published in the marketing materials and promotion brochures is
accurate, factual and unbiased, as well as compliance with the
applicable provincial and federal laws in marketing promotion.

BUSINESS INTEGRITY AND ANTI-
CORRUPTION

The Group is committed to upholding the highest standard
of business integrity. As stipulated in the code of conduct
in employee handbook and/or employment contract, all
employees in each business segment are required to observe
the confidentiality obligations to keep the corporate sensitive
information, including but not limited to the business plans,
financial budget plan and information, pricing, client information
and contact, strict confidential and prohibit to disclose any form
of such information to unauthorised third parties during and after
their employment without prior approval by the Group.

The Group has zero-tolerance on corruption, fraud, money
laundering, bribery and extortion and complied with the relevant
laws and regulations in the operating regions such as Cap 201.
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of HKSAR, the Criminal Law of
the PRC, the Anti-money Laundering Law of the PRC and the
provisions of the Combating Crimes (Money Laundering) and
Terrorist Financing Act. The Group strictly forbids our employees
to solicit and/or accept any advantages (e.g. gifts, entertainment
and commission etc.) directly or indirectly. Additionally, the Group
has set up the whistle blowing mechanism and grievance system
with clear reporting channels (e.g. reporting mailbox, e-mail) in
each business segment. Employees can report any illegal act or
potential misconducts to the designated management personnel
and the identity of the whistle blower is kept in secret to protect
against any unfair dismissal, victimization and reprisal. In the
event of any case upon receipt, we will handle and investigate
the reported case a timely manner and report the results to the
top management.
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The Group has maintained sound internal control mechanism to
taken specific measures to detect and prevent money laundering
and terrorist financing activities, such as:

(i)  establish and maintain financial service provider records
and customer identification requirements;

(i) request for reporting suspicious financial transactions and
currency cross-border movements; and

(iii) establish an agency dedicated to ensuring compliance with
all the acts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in the regions we operate
and there was no legal case regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or our employees.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group strives to maintain mutually beneficial collaboration
with our suppliers and contractors as their products and
services provided can directly impact our quality of service and
competitive advantages in the industry.
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The Group has set up a strict supplier management system to
standardize the selection, engagement, performance evaluation
of the new and existing suppliers and service contractors. We
take into consideration when assessing the qualification and
competency suppliers and service contractors, in term of legal
compliance, management level, product and service quality,
financial stability, corporate reputation and sustainability
performance, and determine the on-list approved suppliers.
The Group also gives priority to local suppliers with good track
records in environmental and safety management when possible,
to reduce the carbon emission of material transportation and
minimise the adverse impact on the environment and the
society. We arrange regular performance evaluation (at least
once a year) to our existing suppliers and services contractors,
in aspects such as product quality, delivery capability, price level
and services quality, to ensure their product and service quality
and performance up to standard. For the suppliers and service
contractors who consecutively fail to meet our standard, we will
discontinue the business cooperation. To advocate the greener
operation, we strive to purchase the products and services that
with higher energy efficiency, high recycled content and zero/low
chemical or toxic substances during installation or use. Hence,
we also give priority to the suppliers and service providers who
can provide the greener and environmentally friendly products
and services.

The Group is committed to open and fair procurement practices.
The Group requires the departments in different business
segment to obtain adequate quotations for cost and performance
comparison. We also inform our suppliers and service
contractors about our requirements of several ESG issues such
as environmental protection, health and safety and business
ethics in the service contracts and require them to maintain
proper management systems and control measures to minimise
the environmental and social risks in our business cooperation
as well as their business activities.
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As of 31 December 2020, the Group has engaged 34 suppliers
and service contractors in total. The number of suppliers and
service contractors by geographical region is shown below:

Suppliers! by geographical region
R E D HE D 2 HERE!
Mainland China — Chongqing

PERM - EE
Canada - Victoria
MEXR - #SRE
us

xH

! The scope of suppliers only covers the number of direct suppliers of
the business of property management and hotel operation.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

Environmental protection is one of the prerequisites for
sustainable development. The Group pays greater attention
to environmental impacts during our business operations
and mitigate our negative impacts on the environment. The
Group has formulated a series of environmental management
policies and procedures in managing the emission and use
of natural resources in the responsible manner, to advocate
clean, comfortable and environmental-friendly operations and
meanwhile to reduce the adverse impacts on the environment.
For instance, Nuofute Property Management has established and
implemented an environmental management system with 1SO
14001:2015 certification to manage the environmental issues
and performance in a well-planned manner and continually seek
opportunity for improvement.

The Group has complied with the applicable environmental laws
and regulations (e.g., The Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC, The Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC and
The Environmental Management Act in British Columbia, Canada
etc.) in the regions where we locate. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of material breaches of relevant laws
and regulations relating to the air and greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emission, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste.
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Emissions

The air emissions generated in our business segments are
mainly the exhausted gas from fuel-powered stationary plants
and motor vehicles and the cooking fumes in hotel resort. To
mitigate and reduce the air pollution, the Group strives to select
the cleaner and superior fuels for all fuel-driven stationary plants
and company vehicles. We have installed the pollution control
equipment such as grease filter and hydrovent in the kitchens
of hotel resort to reduce the cooking fumes emission to the
surrounding environment.

The main sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are derived
from fuel combustion from stationary equipment (e.g., boilers
and generators), fuel combustion from vehicles owned by the
Group and the fugitive emissions from the use of refrigerants
(“Scope 1 emission”), the consumption of purchased electricity
(“Scope 2 emission”) and the air business travel by employees
(“Scope 3 emission”) in our business operations. The GHG
emission of the Group is directly linked to the energy use in
our day-to-day operation in each business segment and the
management measures had adopted to control the emission
are further explained under the section of “Energy Use”. During
the Reporting Period, the total GHG emissions of the Group is
5,619.04 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO_e").

Waste Management

The Group has formulated waste management procedure
and working guideline in each business segment to manage
and handle the hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste
generated in our daily operation, with the application of 3R waste
management principles (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle) in order
to minimise the harms and pollutions the environment.
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Certain amount of hazardous waste such as light tubes/bulbs, dry
batteries, waste fire extinguisher and containers with waste paint
and detergent are indispensably generated in our operations
of property management services and hospitality services. All
the waste is properly segregated and consigned to the qualified
waste collectors for further handling. For non-hazardous
waste, such as general waste, paper, plastic, construction and
demolition waste, oil and grease and used amenities is produced
in our managed premises and BBR. To reduce waste at source,
we limited the use of single-use disposable items such as paper
cups, plastic utensils and containers and regularly review the
stock records and analyse the amount of materials used in
service provision in order to prevent the unnecessary waste of
materials. Besides, we also reuse the materials (e.g. single-side
printed paper) as many as possible in our operations and set up
recycling facilities nearby the working area for waste recycling.
All the harmless waste is properly collected, sorted in recyclable
and non-recyclable waste and handled by qualified waste
collection company for recycling and disposal.

USE OF RESOURCES

Energy Use

Gasoline, electricity, kerosene and natural gas are the main
types of energy consumed in business operations of the Group.
Gasoline is mainly supplied to vehicles owned by the Group.
Electricity and kerosene are mainly supplied to building services
and lighting in our managed properties and our resort, while
natural gas is used by the boilers for heat generation. To enhance
the energy efficiency and in turn reduce our carbon footprints,
the Group has taken various saving measures to reduce the use
of energy and continually look for energy saving opportunities,
which are highlighted as below:

° Install and replace conventional lighting to energy-efficient
LED lights;

o Replace the old or malfunctioned building facilities and
equipment with high energy-efficient models and searching
for higher energy-efficient models when new purchasing;

° Conduct regular maintenance and commissioning of the

building plants and equipment to ensure the machinery
maintains the optimal function and energy efficiency;
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° Develop the equipment switching schedules to regulate
the central air-conditioning systems, lighting systems and
elevator systems based on the operational needs and user
utilisation rate in daytime and night-time;

° Switching off the office appliances, lighting and air-
conditioning when they are not in use;

° Maintain the room temperature at comfort level about
24-26 °C.

Water Use

Water connects every living, and everyone shall take steps
to reduce the water footprints to save this finite and valuable
resource. The Group has taken various water-saving measures
to reduce our water consumption in the daily operation of
each business segment. We install the water appliances (e.g.,
water faucets and toilets, etc.) with higher water efficiency and
maintain regular checks and maintenance of the water plumbing
and flushing systems in our managed buildings to reduce the
water use, prevent water leakage and ensure water quality and
safety. Our BBR provides bedding change card and encourages
our guests to reuse bed linens and towels during their stay so as
to lower the water consumption for laundry. Regular inspections
on water facilities and irrigation system are conducted in BBR
to ensure the equipment and systems are functioned normally
and no occurrence of water dripping and leakage. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any water sourcing
problem in our business segments.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group is committed to offering high quality services and
simultaneously to maintaining the balance between operational
efficiency and environmental conservation. Apart from
implementing the environmental management system with
certified with ISO 14001 standards and/or relevant management
approaches and measures in our business segments, the Group
continues to arrange employee training and jointly make efforts
in reducing the environmental footprints in our operations
by enhancing our employees’ awareness on environmental
protection and resource saving.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BRI5 - e MERRE

e REARMEBRNETERLNAFER
o HIERERERE - AESHFRE
FEG - RARGREBERR

i

e TEAKBRAMAEMRME &
EEIE

oy

AR K ZE

s  REEREHNBER24E26EMNEEAKTF -

3P/

KEEY - SEAMERRITENIR DK -
NEELERMEENER - AEBDRIZ
BEiKER AR BRXB DB T BK
B AEERESRKBUEKE (/KEER
KERE)  UTHFERREREERRERE
EEFHIKE RORKEGAR D BAK - B R
Ko REERKREERZE - AEERBBR
RHUBAFBRFR  YEBEAEAEHMHEERS
RERFEM - AR ALK AKE © BBRE K
Rt M ERRGETTERRE - UERRER
EREFET  WATEBEHKEIR/K - R
BEHR > XEESTAERB D BLBREM
SKEGER KRR °

RIERXAER

AEBHENORREHRSEENRY - ASRKRETE
BRR BIRG R E 2 [ R T o BRAEETE 0 &P
REBAEISO 14001 RAEREMNIREEEER
N/ SRBEAERIDERERIN - AEBDBAEE
ZHHREEEI  YHABHRBIRESEEHR
BRENERBONRBHEIBDEE HHIRE
R




60

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI e MERTRE

To manage the possible noise nuisance such as arising from the
building facilities and equipment operation and fitting out in our
managed buildings, we have set out the working instruction of
renovation activities for both tenants, and service providers to
follow. For example, all the renovation and building enhancement
works can only be allowed to carry out in designated hours (e.g.
during specific time period or during non-office hours) to prevent
unnecessary noise nuisance to another occupants. Regular
inspections are conducted by the property management team to
ensure all parties strictly abide by the regulations and maintain
the clean environment to all the tenants and residents. Besides,
we have implemented practical engineering solutions such as
replacing the noisier equipment and machinery to low-noise one
and installing the noise enclosure to the noise equipment and
plants to reduce noise level.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group strives to contribute to the community where we
operate through enriching community culture as well as building
close social bonds with the neighbours and creating harmonious
community living environment.

On 26 December 2020, we organised a fun garden party named
“We exercise, We happy and healthy” (FRiEE) - FHRE -
) to the residents in Xiushan Haosheng International
Community Project to welcome the healthy, happy and safe
new year of 2021, enhance their sense of belonging of the
community and maintain a friendly relationship between with
property owners and tenants. Besides, we held a New Year's
Eve celebration named “Warmth deep into my heart” on
31 December 2020 at Forebase Financial Plaza and offered free
hot drinks to our tenants to advocate the caring culture across our
tenants and express our sincere and warm greetings for new year.

The Group purchased 30 orange shirts from the local indigenous
community to support the Orange Shirt Day (30 September)
event in Canada, in which promoting awareness of the concept of
“Every Child Matters” and the individual, family and community
inter-generational impacts of Indian residential schools.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEARELNRSTTE (WERERELRE
BREALREAREEENZEYTREMSIE
MRE)  RNEBECHIERETIERES - HEP
KRB HERZ2E - flmn - B REREFT M
B TR E R TR E (R TR BRI
NEE) #1T - ABRHEMEREERN T LR
RS T2 - MEEEBRETERRE - A
BREDBBETER  YRMEEPMER
REFBRHRE - I AEBECDERERW
TR - PINiSE BB R B REWE
BAERERE UERBRELZRKBZTEMN
FRARRR B IKF o

HEHRE

AEEFOARBAEELR  BHERY
) E) L BB DA K B R AL R AR IR
B RAKBEERENMLERERTR

R-ZTE-_ZTE+-_A=-+8 XEEAEIL
SEBBRTREAENERSEMN [ HES  {R
% . RiER] OBKERS - OEER - R
TEN_T—FHF  HRFFHLENS
BR G WEHEEFTRBEFRERLTER - LI
MR-ZT-TE+-_A=+—0 A"EBRHHE
CRESRIT DABRMNL ] BRSIESES) - I
MASENHEFRERERER - UEHEFEE
BRAE bW RENEBEFHT —FHE2ZRRD
ﬁ:ﬁ 'ﬂ% °

AEERENRERCEBE=THREER
o DXBMERRAR=ZTEN [ REME
BlA® EtMEL BEZTHER] 0%
o UIREYHHEFTEERPEA - REIE
B ER BRI -

BARRERZRERAH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ESG DATA

Environmental performance

GHG emissions?

BERBHERK?

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)3
EERAEREHR (S8E1)3
Energy Indirect emissions (Scope 2)*
BER R HERR (SEE 2) ¢

Other Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3)°
HitEEoR = REHEN (HE3)°
Total GHG emission
BEREBHHEE

GHG intensity®

AERERES

Hong Kong office

BEERAE

Property management

MRER

Hotel operation

HERE

Air emission’
BERBERR7
NOx
a/1W
SOx
wED

PM

BEN T

Waste disposal®

R BRI

Hazardous waste

BEEEY
Hong Kong office
ERBAE
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WS L EE
I

g
iy
g
AR
g
AR

Tonne
7

RiE gk

RiE - HERERER

RIERR
2020! 2019
—g=%%!| =—T-hE
397.72 1,232.96
5,218.68 5,708.81
2.64 2.52
5,619.04 6,944.29
0.62 0.87
0.01 0.01
0.055 0.043
2.29 -
0.06 -
0.17 =
No available No available
data data
=] A EE = 0] 8K

/\-/-\—\\ =+
E/ﬁ#&%

2018
—2-N\fF
554.39
8,946.36
0.88

9,501.84
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RIE - 8Kk

Property management
MEEE

Hotel and resort

B IE R E R

Total hazardous waste

BEBRRYEE

Non-hazardous waste
BEBEEY

Hong Kong office
BEBRLE

Property management
E 3§53

Hotel operation

BIE R

ZEIUN

B /A $|§%:

Total non-hazardous waste

BEEBERYRE
Energy consumption?®
BEIRUH #E 10

Gasoline

7

Natural gas

RAR

Kerosene

oy

Electricity
L ¥

Total energy consumption

REFUHERE
Energy intensity
BEIRE B

Hong Kong office
EERRLE
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Unit
By
Tonne
7
Tonne
U7
Tonne
Mg

Tonne
7

Tonne
U7

Tonne
Mg

Tonne
7

L
DT
Gigajoule (“GJ")
HEE
m3
SR
GJ
HEH
L
DT
GJ
HEE
kWh
TR
GJ
HEH
GJ
HEH

GJ/employee
TEE RS

2020!
—B_BF!
1.94

0.16

2.10

No available
data

& s
629.51°
50.10

679.68

3,940.01

129.16

194,084.56

7,611.16

360.00

12.74

6,619,946.00

23,831.81

31,584.87

3.99

2019
—E-hE
12.20

0.16

12.36

No available
data

=] FEUE
240.75
64.24

304.99

8,350.53

273.75

423,675.10

16,614.71

460.00

16.28

6.963.267.61

25,067.76

41,972.50

8.35

2018
—EB-N\F

18

2,221.77

72.83

200,556.10

11,002.20

10,231,182.00

36,832.25

47,907.28
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Property management
MEEE

Hotel operation

BIE R

Water consumption!!
AxEYN

Hong Kong office
EBRRAE

Property management
MEEE

Hotel operation

BIE R

Total water consumption
HBAKE

Water intensity
RAXKEBE

Hong Kong office
EERLE

Property management
YIEEE
Hotel and resort

BIERERN

Type of resources use
BERERAER
Refrigerant!?
B HE 12

Paper!3

mgﬁ s
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Unit

B

GJ/m?
EEE TR
GJ/guest night
TEE/BEAE

m3/employee

AV VA

ms3/m?
SMFRS K
m3/guest night
SNHKSBEANE
i

N
g
AF

2020!
= SE I3
0.03

1.67

No available

data
A A B
68,661.00
13,332.00

81,993.10

No available
data
& ARE
0.10

2.60

30.00

81.80

2019
—E-hE
0.041

1.13

No available
data

= 0] AR
72,739.00

11,861.00

84,600.00

No available
data
ER] AEUE
0.11

0.90

400.00

93.95

2018
—E-N\F

No available

data
] AR
78,873.31

14,516.00

93,389.31

No available
data
&R AR
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Social Performance HERE

Unit 2020
By —g-%%

Employee profile

EERR

Total workforce!* Number of people 254
BTHEE N

Employees by gender

RUERESHIER

Male Number of people 136
B N

Female Number of people 118
gegid A

Employees by employment type

REREREINES

Full-time Number of people 204
28 AEL

Part-time Number of people 50
R AZ

Employees by age

RFERESNER

Under 30 Number of people 65
30T AZ

Age 30-50 Number of people 126
30-50 5% AEL

Over age 50 Number of people 63
508 A £ AE

Employees by employee category

RESERESHNES

Senior management Number of people 25
BREEE AZ

Middle management Number of people 32
PREEE AZ

General staff Number of people 197
—RET AZK

Employees by geographical region

RWESMHEID ZREE

Hong Kong Number of people 13
gE AZ

China Number of people 182
i AB

Canada Number of people 59
mEX AZ
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Unit 2020
B —EEHF

Employee turnover?s

BERARS

Total employee turnover Number 158
EERLEH HE

Total employee turnover rate % 53
EERRKE

By gender!¢

R R| 1

Male % 45
Bt

Female % 62
gegid

By age!”

RERY

Under 30 % 82
30T

Age 30-50 % 53
30-50 5%

Over age 50 % 23
508 £

By geographical region

R E D

Hong Kong % 0
5B

China % 21
HE

Canada % 114
YN

Health and safety

BERZR

Number of work-related fatalities Number 0
EITAZ =

Rate of work-related fatalities % 0
EIRTE

Cases of work-related accident Number 6
IHEEN HE

Lost days due to work injuries Day 49
EIGEAXIEEY HEk
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oo s v A kk\
BRI - tg NERWE

Supply Chain Management!®
fitpEgE g 1
Number of suppliers by geographical region

ZESHElD 2 HEEHE

China Number 13

B e

Canada Number 20

mExX HE

us Number 1

E 3z e

Anti-corruption

RES

Number of concluded corruption-related legal Number 0
cases against the Group or employees s

HHHAEERESREVEFLNBRFARGHE

Note: Bt %

1. The coverage of GHG emissions, waste, energy and water consumption 1. ZZE_ZFERERBHMN - BEY  EREKE
data in 2020 includes the office in Hong Kong, four managed property REBOREHECETENRAE PEAME
projects in Chongging, Mainland China (Forebase Financial Plaza (£ ENEmEEEDEEEMERNMERR (FE
H4FIES), Forebase Convention International Building (A& R TRES  PEIRBEAE  RYEHERE
B2 KJE), Liangping Daisi International Community Project (32 & Hr JEit R RIS ERBORME R ) RASEERAN
BXBJE L&) and Xiushan Haosheng International Community Project SANBT ML EMELTTETHBBR - ZRY)
(BIIZEBESEERR)) by Nuofute Property Management and XERRELBIERBSOESEE  ARAER
our BBR in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada. Due to the business WIRERIEE  WAKENEB S W EFH
nature in property management services and hospitality services, no R BEME -

packaging materials are utilised in our business segments as we are
not engaged in manufacturing industry.

2. The greenhouse gas emissions are defined and calculated according 2. RERBHERBEAZERERZ (GHG Protocol)
to the GHG Protocol and “How to prepare an ESG Report - Appendix 2: &E/’é EAFTEA R [N AR IRE e RER
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEX. - Mg — : BRIBEAREBIEEERES T&

&u Ee— ©

3. Scope 1 emission covers the direct GHG emissions generated by the 3. HEIFRREREE R %‘IE’]IE/J? IRE) et
combustion of fuels for stationary source (cooking stove) and motor B EMRRIRETEENERE R EREHR -
vehicles controlled by the Group.

4. Scope 2 emission covers the purchased electricity in property 4. EBHE2EIMREBEBNAE - WEEERE LB

management service and hotel operation. The calculation is based JEEERHINEE N - ZATE AR (2019FF
on the emission factors from 2019 Hong Kong Electric sustainability BENAIFENRSE) PREBRRIEML
report, 2017 Emission Factors for purchased electricity within 2017 FHhBIARREBE S R PERE T) KIRERM
Mainland China issued by Ministry of Ecology and Environment of RIEZBRBEELRN_ZT-NLFEFEEER
the PRC and 2019 B.C. Best Practices Methodology for Quantifying BN EEREERETHHNRE -

Greenhouse Gas Emissions published by Ministry of Environment &
Climate Change Strategy.

5. Scope 3 emission covers the emission from the business travel of 5. HEIBEMEREREBEROPER -
employees only.

6.  The intensity of GHG emission is the sum of Scope 1 and Scope 2 6. REREHNEEHHELRHBE2F RO
emission divided by the respective organisational units. LA B AR BT o

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED BRRREEZERERLT



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The air emission includes the vehicle use in Hong Kong and PRC only.

The hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste generated in
Hong Kong office is collected by the service provider and property
management company for further handling, thus no data is available
for reporting disclosure.

The amount of non-hazardous waste generated in 2020 is significantly
increased compared to 2019 as the scope of calculation included
the records of domestic waste of Forebase Financial Plaza and the
construction waste of Liangping Daisi International Community Project
and Xiushan Haosheng International Community Project.

The conversion factors from volumetric units of gasoline, kerosene and
natural gas consumption to energy units are with reference to CDP
Technical note: Conversion of fuel data to MWh in 2020.

The water charge in Hong Kong office is included in the property
rental fee and thus no records are available to reporting disclosure.

The data covers the consumption in the business segment of property
management services only.

The data covers the consumption in Hong Kong office only.

The figure of employee number is calculated based on the number of
headcounts of the Group as of the end of the Reporting Period.

The employee turnover rates cover voluntary resignations, retirements,
dismissal and other reason during the Reporting Period. The hotel
operation business was influenced by the outbreak of COVID-19 due
to the local government travel restrictions, quarantines and lockdowns
in the first quarter of the Reporting Period and resulted from the
reduction of employee headcount.

The figure refers to total number of employee turnover of the gender
group, divided by the total number of employees of the corresponding
gender group.

The figure refers to total number of employee turnover of the age
group, divided by the total number of employees of the corresponding
age group.

The figure covers the business of property management and hotel
operation only.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Yeung So Mui (Co-Chairman)

Ms. Yeung, aged 45, is experienced in corporate management.
Ms. Yeung is an executive director of Imperium Group Global
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 776), a company principally
engaged in household furnishings business which also operates
property investment and various loan products and services,
as well as the mobile game business, and the issued shares
of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Ms. Yeung was also an executive director of Suncity Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1383), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from 5 October 2010
to 20 July 2017. Ms. Yeung is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Ting
Kong, a controlling shareholder of the Company. Ms. Yeung is
deemed to be interested in 379,683,837 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 34.74% of the issued share capital of
the Company, held by Rich Vision Developments Limited which
is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng Ting Kong.

Mr. Choi Yun Chor (Co-Chairman)

Mr. Choi, aged 39, started as the general manager, and currently
as the executive director, at Realway Investment Limited and
Key Target Investments Limited, each a company principally
engaged in the trading of lifestyle fast-moving consumer goods in
local and overseas market. At Realway Investment Limited, Mr.
Choi manages to provide professional global lifestyle fast-moving
consumer goods trading services to worldwide countries. He
established different distribution channels and target segment
in the past 15 years. He leads a team to explore new markets
in Southeast Asia and maintain a stable growth in the well-
developed market in the European Union and Middle East. Apart
from the trading business, Mr. Choi has been and is still working
in a family business in property management, with a team of
about 10 talents in Hong Kong for over a decade. He is the
director of the leasing and property management company and
is responsible for planning business strategies and managing
the local and overseas operation teams. Mr. Choi owns the entire
equity interest in Great Match International Limited which holds
379,683,837 shares of the Company, representing approximately
34.74% of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Choi
graduated from Seneca College, Toronto, Canada in General
Business in 2003.

Mr. Choi is also a vice chairperson of Yan Oi Tong, one of the
biggest charity organizations in Hong Kong.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

HITES
BRtELt (BEERE)

BT 45 REXEERFTEEREELR
BB ATEESBERKZERERAA (K
MR 776) WITES  ZRRETERS
RERMEL  TRKEMERERZEERE
mE R - ARBBHEREY - HE TR,
RERFTERET - BLETNMR T —FF+
AEHZE-_ZT—+tFtA-_+HHIKEH
SEERBR AR (RMHMR : 1383) MITE
EZAARBRAERLT - HRETREAR
AIRIERRRE T B EEZBE - B TR
/& ¥ A HRich Vision Developments Limited
5 #9379,683,837 I A R A I n Ay RE 25 - 4915
AR A BT AR 34.74% ¢ 1 Rich Vision
Developments Limited A& T B A2 E B mlE
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny

Mr. Ng, aged 41, is the founder and managing director of
Davisons Group, a business and private equity consultancy
services organization based in Hong Kong, and has over
20 years of experience in corporate restructuring, mergers
and acquisitions, project financing, loan and investment
management. Mr. Ng started his career at the transaction
advisory services department of Ernst and Young, and has
previously served as investment director and consultant to a
number of listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong and
overseas. Mr. Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce degree
in actuarial studies and accounting from the University of New
South Wales, Australia and is a member of both the Certified
Practicing Accountants of Australia and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Chen Jian

Mr. Chen, aged 64, joined Realway Investment Limited in 2014
as the director of sales and marketing. From 2009 to 2014,
Mr. Chen worked as the sales and marketing manager of Great
King International Limited. Mr. Chen served as the marketing
executive of Nippon Tsusho Co., Ltd.* (AR € 1+ B 2 @ )
from 2005 to 2008, and worked for Ideal Properties Corp.
as the department manager from 1997 to 2005. Mr. Chen is
a professional in sales and marketing. He is experienced in
business development in both developed and emerging markets
including Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore, Egypt, Greece and
Pakistan etc. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor of engineering from
Shanghai Nautical College (now known as Shanghai Maritime
University) in July, 1982.

Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny

Mr. Tai, aged 59, Mr. Tai started his career with his expertise
in the information technology department in Hong Kong at
the Bank of China Group in the 1980s. Since 2014, he is the
general manager of Gold Companion International Limited, a
trading company of lifestyle fast-moving consumer goods, and
since 2006, the director of the Realway International (Phil.)
Co. Rp., managing over 100 employees in Hong Kong and
the Philippines. Mr. Tai obtained a bachelor of electronic and
communication engineering from the De La Salle University, the
Philippines in 1985. Mr. Tai is appointed as the deputy manager
of the executive committee of The Fukienese Association Limited
(BBRERAS).
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAE

Mr. Lin Junwei

Mr. Lin, aged 25, is currently the chief financial officer of
Imperium Green Power Limited and his primary responsibilities
includes the planning, implementation, managing and running of
all the finance activities, including business planning, budgeting,
forecasting and negotiations. Mr. Lin is a nephew of Ms. Yeung
So Mui, an executive Director and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong, a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Lin obtained a
bachelor of science in accounting and finance from University of
East Anglia in 2018.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie

Ms. Lai, aged 40, obtained a Master’s degree in Civil Engineering
from University College London, United Kingdom in 2004 and
was qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 2013. In
2016, Ms. Lai was also qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong.
Ms. Lai has more than 14 years’ management experience in the
construction and engineering industry, both as a civil engineer
and qualified legal practitioner, including project management,
project planning and implementation, financing and resourcing,
litigation, dispute resolution, contracts and corporate governance.
Between 2016 and 2017, Ms. Lai held the position of legal
counsel of SUEZ (Asia) Limited. Between 2017 and 2018, Ms. Lai
held the position of legal counsel of SUEZ NWS Limited. Ms. Lai
is promoted to the position of senior legal counsel of SUEZ
NWS Limited in 2019. Ms. Lai previously held the position of
graduate engineer for Halcrow Group Limited and the position of
senior engineer for Mouchel Limited, United Kingdom and Legal
Counsel for Ove Arup & Partners Hong Kong Limited from 2012
to 2015 and Gammon Construction Limited from 2015 to 2016.

Mr. Ting Wong Kacee

Mr. Ting, aged 45, holds a Master of Laws and Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from City University of Hong Kong. He is
currently a member of The Hong Kong Bar Association. He
is also the independent non-executive director of Imperium
Group Global Holdings Limited (Stock code: 776), a company
principally engaged in household furnishings business which
also operates property investment and various loan products
and services, as well as the mobile game business, and the
issued shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Interested in various issues of social concerns, Mr. Ting has
been an active pro bono adviser in the last 10 years. In 2020,
the HKSAR has awarded the honour of Chief Executive’s
Commendation Public Service to him in recognition of his
contribution to the society.
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Directors and Senior Management

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam

Dr. LOKE Yu, alias LOKE Hoi Lam, aged 71, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 21 December 2021. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. He has over 42 years of experience
in accounting and auditing for private and public companies,
financial consultancy and corporate management. He holds
a Master of Business Administration Degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration
Degree from University of South Australia. Dr. Loke is a Fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is
also a member of The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Director Association. Currently, he serves as a non-executive
director of Veson Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1399) and
also serves as an independent non-executive director of Chiho
Environmental Group Limited (Stock Code: 976), Hang Sang
(Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited (Stock Code:
3626), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2882), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005), China
Silver Technology Holdings Limited (formerly TC Orient Lighting
Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 515), TradeGo FinTech Limited
(Stock Code: 8017), V1 Group Limited (Stock Code: 82), Zhenro
Properties Group Limited (Stock Code: 6158) and Zhong An Real
Estate Limited (Stock Code: 672), all of these companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange. He also served as an independent
non-executive director of Lamtex Holding Limited (Stock Code:
1041), Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619) and
CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 445) until
23 March 2020, 31 May 2020 and 1 February 2021 respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie

Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie, aged 47, is Chief Financial Officer
and company secretary of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Commence from University of Adelaide, Australia.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and CPA Australia. He has held managerial and
financial executive positions in various listed companies and
financial institutions in Hong Kong. He has more than 25 years
of experience in financial management, taxation, and corporate
finance.
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The directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2020, the name of the
Company was changed from “Forebase International Holdings
Limited” to “Times Universal Group Holdings Limited”. The
change of Company’s name became effective on 16 July 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are hotel operation in
Canada and provision of property management services in PRC.

The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by schedule 5 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
can be find in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set
out on page 8 to 15 of this annual report. This discussion forms
part of this directors’ report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenue and cost of sales for the year ended
31 December 2020 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers from continuing operations are as follows:

Revenue
The largest customer 4%
Five largest customers in aggregate 13%

Cost of sales
The largest supplier 8%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 13%
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At no time during the year, have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the directors, owns
more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) has a
beneficial interest in the five largest customers or suppliers of the
Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are
set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income” and “Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position” on pages 94 to 96 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” on pages 97 to 98 and page 205 respectively
of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2020, calculated under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HKSNil (2019: HK$NIl).

No dividend was paid or declared for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: HK$Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the laws of the Hong Kong
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of the Group during the year are set out in notes
15 and 16 respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
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SECURED LOANS

Particulars of secured loans of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BONDS

Particulars of bonds of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Ms. Yeung So Mui (Co-Chairman)
Mr. Choi Yun Chor (Co-Chairman)
Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny

Mr. Chen Jian

Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny

Mr. Lin Junwei

Independent non-executive directors

Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee
Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)

The biographical details of the current directors are set out under

the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LS EN

AEER-_F_FTF+_A=+—HBZEAHRE
R EENER A P MAME29 -

AEER-_Z_ZEF+-_A=1+—B2ZEHF
B EN AR A M IERAMFESL -

AREEBRARBE_T-_FTHF+-_A=+—H
IR 2 BB FBHNR A M RRMIFE26 -

BE - HESEEFAQRA LHES

ARRREMLHBADNRBE-E-BF
oAt AL FEBEME - R E

AREWEAA] EHRES

BF
AMBRFREARBERAREBRZERTNT

PITESR

BEEZLT (BELE)
ERVEE (BEEE)
BRiE A

BB A
MERIZSEE

BIAIERNITES
RN+
TiEEAE
BESMIBE L

REEENERERENAFR [EERDE
EEAB| &

BARRERZRERAH



In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny, Mr. Chen Jian and
Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie shall retire from the Board by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of the Directors has entered
into a service contract or an appointment letter (as the case
may be) with the Company for either no fixed term of service
or an initial fixed term of three years commencing from their
appointment or re-designation, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company
pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company, and will
continue thereafter until terminated by (i) in cases of executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors, not less than
one months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other
or payment in lieu of such notice, or (ii) in case of non-executive
Directors, not less than one month’s notice in writing by the non-
executive Director or the written notice issued by the Company
with immediate effect.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board of the Company with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which were required
(i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company (the “Model
Code”) (collectively “disclosure interests”) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Directors’ interests in Issued Shares of the
Company

EERESITHASRRM - HER
MRESZEDRXE

RZE-ZEF+_A=+—H EEFXARQF
BSTBRAEBRARR S ETMEE LR (F
FEABLFRPEED ([FHRBEIED]) EXV
) 2B - AR S EEES  BEEOR
TJ’:% EENMHIEIEHIEXVERET7 R8D I ME K
RA R AT 2 R AR (BIERIEES RS
B BEBIEXEERBIESIRABEE 2R

FORR) (i) IRIEFE 75 S B 15 P1| 58 352 {67
ARZIGPT B ROt 2 #as MoK A+ 3k (iii) IR IR A

NEIFTERMN ETRAMEE+E EEITAE
BETBEFRFHNIZE #E‘J(Hi‘? E5FAl]) A
AARIRBRFIZEmRAR (R [ATHEE
Bz T

EERARRACHITROZESE

Interest of
controlled Approximately
Personal corporation Interest Percentage of
Name of directors Interests FEHEE of spouse Total shareholding
BEEpE AR ZRE [T A REBNESH
Mr. Choi Yun Chor - 379,683,837 (L) - 379,683,837 (L) 34.74%
EBIEE (note 1)
GEAY
Ms. Yeung So Mui - - 379,683837(L) 379,683,837 (L) 34.74%
Y (note 2)
(FtzE2)
Note: PiE -

(1)  These Shares are held by Great Match International Limited (“Great
Match”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Choi Yun Chor.

(2)  These Shares are held by Rich Vision Developments Limited (“Rich
Vision”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng Ting Kong, who is
the spouse of Ms. Yeung So Mui, the co-Chairman of the Company.
Pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
Ms. Yeung So Mui is deemed to be interested in those Shares.

(L)  Long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors and/or the chief executive of the Company, or their
respective associates had any other discloseable interests as
required.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or long
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company were as follows:

Report of the Directors
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FEREREMA LRGN RERR
ZEmERE

NZE_TF+ZHA=1T—H BREAQAIZE
EdmEEITHRAEN  THATRARTZK
MREERNT  HBEARRREBEESLPE
1619128 336 1678 T 17 2 B e Frrc ks B e
AR ZHEZITEWT ¢

Ordinary shares

ZER

No. of ordinary % of issued
shares held Nature of share capital
Substantial shareholders FEZ interest/Capacity BT
FERR ZEREE EntE 55 BABESH
Great Match (Note 1) (BfsF1) 379,683,837 (L) Beneficial owner 34.74%

EmEEA
Rich Vision (Note 2) (FffzE2) 379,683,837 (L) Beneficial owner 34.74%

EnHEAA

(L)  Long position L wge

Notes:

(1)  Great Match is wholly-owned by Mr. Choi Yun Chor.

(2)  Rich Vision is wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng Ting Kong, who is the
spouse of Ms. Yeung So Mui, the co-Chairman of the Company.
Pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
Ms. Yeung So Mui is deemed to be interested in all the ordinary shares
in which Mr. Cheng Ting Kong is, or is deemed to be, interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no other
interests required to be recorded in the register kept under
Section 336 of the SFO had been notified to the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the directors
confirmed that the Company has maintained the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules during the year
and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT
ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” and note 40(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance, to which the Company or any of its holding
Company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors and his/her respective associates had
interests in the businesses which competes or was likely to
compete, whether directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

There has been no material change in directors’ interests in any
competing business subsequent to 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group had not entered into any connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions.

Details of the material related party transactions during the year
are set in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes participated by the Group are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the year under
review. The Company has also taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance cover to indemnify the Directors for
liabilities that may arise out of corporate activities of the Group.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, no claims were made
against the Directors.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 218 of
this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor
of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Choi Yun Chor
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Q Grant Thornton
2 [=]

To the members of Times Universal Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Forebase International Holdings Limited)
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Forebase International Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to
217, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As explained in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements,
Triple Market Limited and its subsidiaries (together, the “Joint
Ventures”) are considered as joint ventures of the Group which
mainly holds investment properties for rental business.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all of the investment
properties of the Joint Ventures were seized by the Intermediate
People’s Court of Chongqing (EEE—FHARET) (the
“Court”) in relation to a loan dispute with a financial institution
(the “Court Case”). The directors of the Company inquired the
management of the joint ventures in relation to the Court Case,
including the court orders, the reason for the seizure and the
latest development of the case, but they were not able to obtain
all relevant information as at 31 December 2019. Therefore,
we were unable to assess the likely outcome of the Court Case
and the financial impact associated with the Court Case, and to
assess whether any adjustments relating to the understatement
of liabilities of the Joint Ventures and whether impairment on the
interests in Joint Ventures was required for the year ended 31
December 2019. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of interests in Joint Ventures amounted to HK$44,516,000.

As at 31 December 2020, as advised by the Company’s PRC
legal advisor, the Joint Ventures do not possess control over the
seized investment properties because the seized investment
properties of the Joint Ventures are held under a compulsory
auction as ordered by the Court during the year ended 31
December 2020. The management of the Company is of the
opinion that the Joint Ventures are unlikely to repossess the
investment properties and therefore impairment loss on the
interests in Joint Ventures of HK$29,523,000 was made during
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

In respect of the abovementioned events, we were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence and there were no
alternative audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy
ourselves as to whether adjustments on interests in Joint
Ventures as at 31 December 2019 and accumulated losses as at
1 January 2020, which would affect the Group’s financial results
and related cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020,
were necessary. Our audit opinion on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
modified accordingly because of the possible effect of the audit
scope limitation in the audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 and therefore
the financial results and related cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2020 may not be comparable with the corresponding
amounts.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that as at 31 December 2020
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$27,316,000. Such event or condition indicates that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The validity
of the going concern basis depends on the management’s
arrangements to address the going concern issue as described
in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments
that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis

FREZER

RREZFHASRBERMNEXRAE By
ARG AV BRRNEZRAEENEE - &
LEHEERMBZBREAMBHREALHHE
HARRBETREREN  ARMATHEL
FEEHEBNER - REEER AR M
AEFEIRSN - BPITREE Tl FR DA E
TEENBEREZER -

for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated

in our report.

Loss Allowance of Trade Receivables

872 BYRRERRE

The Key Audit Matter
BREEXEE

Please refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies as set out on note
2.11.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
Group’s trade receivables amounted to HK$5,915,000
after netting off loss allowance of trade receivables
amounted to HK$44,346,000.

The Group’s loss allowance of trade receivables are based
on management’s estimate with reference to the valuation
performed by an independent external professional valuer
for the expected credit losses to be incurred, which is
estimated by taking into account the credit profile of
different customers, the ageing profiles, their knowledge
about the customers, past settlement patterns and
current market conditions.
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How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit
RPESEPNMMEEZEE

Our audit procedures in relation to the loss allowance of
trade receivables included the following:

° Assessing the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent professional external valuer, and
the scope of the valuer’s work;

° Assessing the valuation methodologies;

° Assessing the accuracy of the ageing of trade
receivables on a sample basis by tracing to the
respective invoices; and
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Loss Allowance of Trade Receivables (Continued)

ESRWRRBERE (8)

The Key Audit Matter
BREXEE

Management also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses of customers.

The loss allowance of trade receivables is sensitive to
key underlying assumptions applied by the management
such as credit-rating of the customers, default rate and
recovery rate which involves significant management
judgement.

We identified this area to be a key audit matter due to
significant management judgement and estimations
involved.
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How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit
ROEESFZH N EEZEE

Assessing the assumptions and estimates made
by the management for the loss allowances with
reference to our understanding of the debtors’
financial condition, the industry in which the debtors
are operating, the ageing of overdue balances and
historical and forward-looking information.
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Impairment of land and buildings

T REBFZRE

The Key Audit Matter
BREREE

Please refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies as set out on
notes 2.5 and 2.12.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment of the Group were
HK$85,533,000, of which land and buildings amounted
to HK$84,733,000.

Management carries out an impairment assessment of
land and buildings on an annual basis. The impairment
assessment requires evaluation as to whether any
impairment indicators existed in the land and buildings.
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How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit
ROEESEP N EEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment testing of
land and buildings included the following:

o Understanding the impairment assessment process
of the Group with involvement of the independent
professional external valuer engaged by the
Company to estimate the recoverable amount of the
land and buildings;

o Assessing the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent professional external valuer, and
the scope of the valuer’s work;

° Assessing the valuation methodologies;
o Assessing the reasonableness of the key

assumptions and estimates used against general
market practice; and
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Impairment of land and buildings (Continued)

T REFZREE (F)

The Key Audit Matter
BRERSEE

Where there are indicators, management is required to
assess the recoverable amount of the land and buildings
with reference to valuation performed by the independent
professional external valuer using the discounted cash
flow method for resort hotel and direct comparison
method for development land, which involves significant
judgement and estimation in determining the appropriate
valuation methodologies to be used, use of subjective
assumptions and various unobservable inputs.

We identified this area to be a key audit matter due to
significant management judgement and estimations
involved.
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How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit
ROESFEH N EREZEE

o Evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by
the management by making adjustments to key
assumptions in the impairment assessments and
considering whether any reasonably possible
adjustments would result in material impairment.
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Impairment of Intangible Assets

BILEEZRE

The Key Audit Matter
BRERSEE

Please refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies as set out on
notes 2.8 and 2.12.

The carrying amounts of intangible assets amounted to
HK$20,520,000, net of impairment loss of HK$385,000,
as at 31 December 2020. Management reviews the
carrying amounts of intangible assets annually or more
frequently when impairment indicators are present.

Where there are indicators, management is required to
assess the recoverable amount of the intangible assets
with reference to valuation performed by the independent
professional external valuer based on a value in use
calculation using future cash flow projections, which
involves significant judgement and estimates made by
the management. The impairment assessment involves
management’s estimations in certain areas including
the discount rate, retention rate and the underlying cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management. Any changes in the management’s
estimations may result in significant financial impact to
the Group.

We identified this area to be a key audit matter due to
significant management judgement and estimations
involved.
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How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit
ROEESFEP N EREZEE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of the Group’s intangible assets
included the following:

° Understanding the impairment assessment process
of the Group with involvement of the independent
professional external valuer engaged by the
Company to estimate the recoverable amount of
intangible assets;

° Assessing the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent professional external valuer, and
the scope of the valuer’s work;

° Assessing the valuation methodology adopted by the
independent professional external valuer;

° Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions,
in particular those relating to the five-year period
cash flow forecasts, the discount rates and retention
rates, based on our knowledge of the business and
industry;

° Reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and considering the
reasonableness of these budgets; and

° Checking the mathematical accuracy of the

valuation.
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Valuation of Interest in an Associate

R—EBEQT 2EE 2 GE

The Key Audit Matter
BREREE

Please refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies as set out on
notes 2.3 and 2.12.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of interest
in an associate amounted to HK$16,865,000. The
associate mainly holds investment properties which are
stated at fair value.

The fair values of the investment properties owned by
the associate were estimated by the management of
the Group with reference to the valuation conducted
by an independent professional external valuer using
direct comparison approach, which involves significant
judgement and estimation in determining the appropriate
valuation methodologies to be used, use of subjective
assumptions and various unobservable inputs. They are
sensitive to market comparables with adjustments of
other individual factors by the valuer which may have
significant impacts to the valuation. The fair values of
these investment properties held by the associate would
affect the Group’s share of result of the associate and
the carrying amount of interest in an associate under the
equity method.

We identified this area to be a key audit matter due to
significant management judgement and estimations
involved.
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How the Matter was Addressed in our Audit

BEMESERPOAREZEE

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of
interest in an associate included the following:

o Assessing the appropriateness of the management’s
accounting for interest in an associate;

o Assessing the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent professional external valuer, and
the scope of the valuer’s work;

o Assessing the valuation methodologies; and

o Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and estimates used against general
market practice.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the 2020 annual report of the Company, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. As described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, we are unable to
satisfy ourselves as to whether adjustments on interests in Joint
Ventures as at 31 December 2019 and accumulated losses as at
1 January 2020, which would affect the Group’s financial results
and related cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020,
were necessary. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether
or not the other information is materially misstated with respect
to this matter.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other matters under sections 407(2)
and 407(3) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence as described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report above:

° we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting
records had been kept; and

° we have not obtained all the information or explanations
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary
and material for the purpose of our audit.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

29 March 2021

Han Pui Yu
Practising Certificate No.: PO7101
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
reElEmMEMEE RS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—ECEHF —T-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$' 000
BRE FERT FAT
Revenue Yz 5 58,803 92,228
Direct costs BEKAKR (41,533) (55,347)
Gross profit EF 17,270 36,881
Other income and gain, net H b Ug A K U5 7 8,304 1,860
Share of (loss)/ profit of an associate bax i )i /NG| 19 (4,349) 1,171
(B18) aF
Share of losses of joint ventures DEEETEEE 20 (15,335) (94)
Impairment loss on interests N R EEE
in joint ventures 20 (29,523) =
Impairment loss on intangible assets BEEEZREREE 16 (385) -
Expected credit losses allowance B 5 RHE M EUERRTEH
on trade and other receivables EEEEEE 9 (22,613) (16,509)
Administrative expenses THRAX (28,359) (48,154)
Finance costs BB A A 8 (4,979) (5,971)
Loss before income tax MRATSBiATE 18 9 (79,969) (30,816)
Income tax credit Frisiii & 12 1,189 372
Loss for the year REFEEEIE (78,780) (30,444)
Other comprehensive income for the year ZXFEH b2 H Uk
Items that may be reclassified HiEngte g o7
subsequently to profit or loss: EBamAEE -
— Exchange differences on translation - MEIGINETS 2 BA TS
of financial statements of overseas WMEERERE
operations 577 885
— Share of other comprehensive income - D{E& S EA
of joint ventures FHERE 20 342 6
— Exchange reserve released upon - HEHBARR
disposal of subsidiaries B RO R RS - gcs
Other comprehensive income for the year 7N fE Hth 2 E S 919 1,284
Total comprehensive expense RAREZRREN
attributable to the equity shareholders AEEREPXAE
of the Company for the year (77,861) (29,160)
Loss per share attributable to equity RA T RERRREN (Restated)
shareholders of the Company BRER (&%)
Basic and diluted BERNEE 14 (8.52) (4.00)
HK cents &1l | HK cents &1l

The notes on pages 101 to 217 are an integral part of these HRNE 101 2217 BEWMIEET) RZ SR E MG ®
consolidated financial statements. KEMEKE D -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

4= A

wiINET 7

VIEIR IR

As at 31 December 2020

RZZEZZF+-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—EEHF —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHT T

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E =N 15 85,533 86,724
Intangible assets mEEE 16 20,520 25,467
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 2,894 2,853
Interest in an associate 1) kNN P ey 19 16,865 21,070
Interests in joint ventures REERE 2 ER 20 - 44 516
Deferred tax assets RETRIEE E 28 3,875 1,749
129,687 182,379

Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 21 584 828
Trade and other receivables B 5 LA YRR 22 12,818 28,301
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB RIS 23(a) 47,831 6,398
61,233 36,027
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5N EM IR 24 23,228 25,202
Contract liabilities BHEE 25 4,284 4.407
Current taxation BIEAFR IR 14,671 13,246
Secured loans EHER 29 33,667 34,275
Loans from controlling shareholders ERERR R E K 30 - 11,187
Bonds &5 31 10,181 10,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 2,518 1,740
88,549 100,057
Net current liabilities REBEERE (27,316) (64,030)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRRBEE 102,371 118,349

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIEEE 28 5,355 5,849
Loans from controlling shareholders TR R E K 30 20,558 =
Bonds &5 31 40,000 50,181
Lease liabilities HEAaE 32 732 1,199
66,645 57,229
Net assets EEFE 35,726 61,120
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“ra MIEARILR

As at 31 December 2020
RZEZFF+_A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EHF —T-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P FER FAT
Capital and reserves BEARRHE

Share capital &7 26 441,350 388,883
Reserves G 27 (405,624) (327,763)

Total equity attributable to ARATERRREGAER
equity shareholders of the Company 35,726 61,120

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on R_IE_—F=ZRA-_t+hBEESFgERK

29 March 2021. REREAT -

Choi Yun Chor Yeung So Mui
) BES
Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 101 to 217 are an integral part of these FHNE 101 £ 217 BRI T RZEERE B
consolidated financial statements. FIAERKE D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company

RAAERRRER
Share
Share Merger  Contribution Statutory options Exchange  Accumulated
capital reserve” reserve’* reserve’ reserve” reserve* losses* Total

BA AHEET  LERET  ieRRE BRERR  EiRE  ZHEE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TAL AT TAL AL AL TAL
(note26)  (note 27(a))  (note 27(b))  (note 27(c))  (note 27(d))  (note 27(e))
(zr2e) (o)  (MsE2z)  (W&ore)  (He2rd)  (HE2re)

Balance at 1 January 2019

Loss for the year

QOther comprehensive income
for the year

RZB-NE-B-BH&H 36898 (124,635) 8478 2903 12579 (40,454)  (163,764) 64,091

TEEFR - - - = = (30,444) (30,444)

AEERMEENE

- Exchange differences on - BEBNEBRUBERN
translation of financial BRER
statements of overseas
operations - - - - - 85 - 835
— Share of other comprehensive - MERELEEMZERR
expense of joint ventures - - - - - 6 - 6
~ Release of exchange reserve upon - HENTB A FIEE LA
disposal of subsidiaries i3 - - - = = 393 = 393
- - - - - 1,284 - 1,284
Total comprehensive AEELERTES
expense for the year - - = = - 1,284 (30,444) (29,160)
Transactions with owners: HEEANRS
Recognition of equity-settled TNRELE 2R
share-based payments NEEY)
fransactions - - - - 6,290 - - 6,290
Issuance of shares i relation to S -RNEARE RN
acquisition of a subsidiary 19,899 - - - - - - 19,899
Transfer upon cancellation of HiEEREREE
share options - - - - (18,869) - 18,869 -
19,89 - - - (12579) - 18,869 26,189
Balance as at 31 December 2019  R=Z-h&E+=A=1-A
ke 388,883 (124,635) 8478 2,903 - (39,170) (175,339) 61,120
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company

KATEERFER
Share
Share Merger  Contribution Statutory options Exchange  Accumulated
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total

BE  AfRE LERE  iERE BRERE  EXRE  ZEE £

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TiEn TiEn TR TiEx TiEn TR TR
(note 26)  (note 27(a))  (note 27(h))  (mote 27(c))  (mote 27(d))  (note 27(e))
(FE26)  (ME27G)  (ME27(0)  (REE27(c)  (W&E27(d)  (ME27(e))

Balance as at 1 January 2020 WZE-F%-f-A 388,883 (124,635) 8,478 2,903 - (39,170)  (175,339) 61,120
iofe
Loss for the year TERER - - - - - - (78,780)  (78,780)
Other comprehensive income TEEEMEENE
for the year
- Exchange differences on - BE RIS
translation of financial BROERZE
statements of overseas
operations - - - - - 577 - 571
— Share of other comprehensive RELCEH
expense of joint ventures %EB'%EZ - - - - - 342 - 342
- - - - - 919 - 919
Total comprehensive AEERARTAE
expense for the year - - - - - 919 (78,780) (77,861)
Transactions with owners: HEEANRS
Issuance of shares under rights RERRETRG
issue (note 26(a)) (B3t 26(a) 52,823 - - - - - - 52,823
Share issuance expenses (note 26(a)) M3E1Tx (356) - - - - - - (356)
(H726(a)
52,467 - - - - - - 52,467
Balance as at 31 December 2020 R=Z=ZF
TZA=t+-AMEH 441,350 (124,635) 8,478 2,903 - (38,251)  (254,119) 35,726

*

The total of these amounts as at the end of reporting period represents ZEREHRSBERERAMBEIRARP O [
“Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position. #l-

The notes on pages 101 to 217 are an integral part of these HMNE 101 £ 217 BEWMIsE T RZFERE MW
consolidated financial statements. KEMEKE D o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
eRERER

;\\/ \

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
“ECEF —NE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BsE FET FAT
Operating activities REEE
Loss before income tax BRET{S TR EIE (79,969) (30,816)
Adjustments for: A
Interest income S MBA 7 (10) (15)
Finance costs BEKA 8 4,979 5971
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment - % - EERRERE 9 2,821 3,150
~ Right-of-use assets - ERREE 9 2,111 1,723
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 9 4,562 4562
Expected credit loss allowance of 5 K H A e UBR R
trade and other receivables HHEEBEREE 9 22,613 16,509
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, HEMHE « MR RERE
plant and equipment W) /BB 7 (54) 34
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARMNERE - 885
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses  JAEZR & E 2 NG 9 - 6,290
Gain on amount due to a shareholder VIsERRE AR BEZT
stated at fair value upon initial recognition FE — B AR FIE 2 Wezs 7 - (241)
Gain on loans from controlling shareholders ~ #IAIERR R AR BEZ5IZ
stated at fair value upon initial recognition ERIREE R M 7 (1,564) -
Recognition of income attributable RAREACD B RS EIE WA
to unused gift certificates 7 - (781)
Share of loss/(profit) of an associate Db —REE AREE (CaFl) 4,349 (1,171)
Share of losses of joint ventures ‘tﬁAEE\%EETﬁ 15,335 94
Impairment loss on interests in joint ventures AR EMNE 7 SR EEE 20 29,523 =
Impairment loss on intangible assets BREERERE 16 385 =
Currency exchange translation HNGE 5 3 (710) (781)
Operating cash flows before movements HEESEBHNLERENE
in working capital 4,371 5,413
Decrease in inventories TERD 246 42
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N E b FR IR FUE N (6,408) (8,053)
(Decrease)/Increase in contract liabilities BHEE (RD) (128) 35
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables & 5 & £ i & {+ BR 7% (3,527) 3,406
CRA) /i
Cash (used in)/generated from operations meEX (FTR) /FiiBzRe (5,446) 843
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid BERPBREEMSH (116) (136)
Net cash (used in)/generated from TR (FTA) BTisz
operating activities BaFEE (5,562) 707
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mealleRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
“ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BsE FET FAT
Investing activities REEE
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME « BBRRRE
plant and equipment FTiS 508 419 6
Interest received [SE &SN 10 15
Net cash outflow from disposal HEMRBARRFRER
of subsidiaries - 9)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BBEWE¥ - #ENRE 15 (607) (1,742)
Net cash used in investing activities KREZEFTAHEFE (178) (1,730)
Financing activities RMEEE
Advance from shareholders &R B R 23(b) 10,903 11,187
Repayment of secured loans BREAER 23(b) (1,132) (3,168)
Repayment of bonds BEES 23(b) (10,000) -
Repayment to a director BE—RESEHE - (546)
Repayment to related companies St N B - (298)
Payment of lease liabilities YHHEEEE 23(b) (1,854) (1,665)
Interest paid ERFE 23(b) (4,270) (5,366)
Proceeds from the issue of AR TR TS RIE
new shares under right issues 26(a) 52,823 -
Share issuance expenses BRHBEITI 26(a) (356) -
Net cash generated from A ZBFTG He FEE
financing activities 46,114 144
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRESEEN2Z
cash equivalents #hn/ GRd) B 40,374 (879)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BzREERSEED 6,398 7,757
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes PR BB B 559 20
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-A=+—HZEBER
31 December, represented by bank Be%EY > BRI
balances and cash ERREE 47,831 6,898

The notes on pages 101 to 217 are an integral part of these BN E 101 2217 BEWMIsET) RZ SR E WS W
consolidated financial statements. KA E D ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Forebase International Holdings Limited) (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in section headed
“Corporate Information and Shareholders’ Calendar” of
the annual report. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The controlling shareholders of the Group are Mr. Choi
Yun Chor and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) upon the disposal of approximately 60.2%
of the total issued share capital of the Company (the
“Disposal”) by Ultra Harvest Limited (“Ultra Harvest”) (the
then ultimate and immediate holding company) and other
shareholders of the Company in September 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are hotel operation
in Canada and properties management in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”").

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2020,
the name of Company was changed from “Forebase
International Holdings Limited” to “Times Universal Group
Holdings Limited”. The change of Company’s name
became effective on 16 July 2020.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"). For the purposes of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the Group adopted HK$
as its presentation currency as its shares are listed in Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of HK$ (“HK$’000”), unless otherwise stated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. FEEFESR
1 REIE%E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

102

These annual consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new and amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 3. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis. The measurement bases are fully described in
the accounting policies below.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$27,316,000. Such event or condition indicates
the existence of material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, and thus, the Group may not be
able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 WEEE ()

Going concern basis (Continued)

In order to ensure the Group’s ability to operate as
a going concern, certain plans and measures have
been taken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and
to improve its consolidated financial position which
including, but not limited to, the following:

(i) the Controlling Shareholders have given an
undertaking to provide continuing financial
support to the Group to enable it to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due and to
enable the Group to continue in operational
existence; and

(ii)  the directors have carried out a detailed review
of the working capital forecast of the Group for
the twelve months ending 31 December 2021,
which took into account the projected future
working capital of the Group.

The directors believe the Group will have sufficient
cash resources to satisfy its future working capital
and other financing requirements as and when they
fall due in the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors believe
that the Group will continue as a going concern and
therefore consider it is appropriate to adopt a going
concern basis in preparing its consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BB HRRWN

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

21

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue its business
as a going concern, adjustments would have to be
made in the consolidated financial statements to
restate the values of the assets to their recoverable
amounts and to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
as current assets.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power over
the entity, only substantive rights relating to the entity
(held by the Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 2.2 REHRE (&)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised
losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e., reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss (see note 2.12) unless the subsidiary is held
for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. EEEFEER ()

b}

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 2 GRERE (&)

106

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the end of the reporting period.
All dividends whether received out of the investee’s

B AR 2 REBARTIRHRE AR
Z BN KA B - FRBRE
(R E T KRB R B 1R

E A R JEER) AR AR R

pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the R o
Company’s profit or loss.
Business combinations XBEEH

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are
accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value on the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase
gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Interests in associate or joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control of those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions relating about relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

In consolidated financial statements, interest in an
associate or interests in joint ventures is initially
recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for
using the equity method. Any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate or joint ventures recognised
at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed and equity instruments issued by the
Group, plus any costs directly attributable to the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the determination of the Group’s share of the
associate or joint ventures’ profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Interests in associate or joint ventures 23 RBERRAINESELEZES

108

(Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the
associate or interests in joint ventures is carried at
cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the associate or joint ventures’
net assets less any identified impairment loss,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate or joint ventures for the year, including any
impairment loss on the interest in an associate or
interests in joint ventures for the year. The Group’s
other comprehensive income for the year includes
its share of the associate or joint ventures’ other
comprehensive income for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interests in the associate
or joint ventures. Where unrealised losses on assets
sales between the Group and its associate or joint
ventures are reversed on equity accounting, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from
the Group’s perspective. Where the associate or
joint ventures use accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where
necessary, to conform the associate or joint ventures’
accounting policies to those of the Group when the
associate or joint ventures’ financial statements are
used by the Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
or joint ventures equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate or joint ventures, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint ventures. For this
purpose, the Group’s interests in the associate or joint
ventures are the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
ventures.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(&8
RRERR  NEBERZEE AR
ZESECENRERIER AN - I
RAEEEIGZBERRRZSERE
ENEEFERTMD BRI ERE
BRIEEZNEENELEE - H55
BEHEE (SRt ABELEERNN
HEARIAE) BRI o FEECEREM
T§ﬁ§@$§$%l%$$rf1£éi it
NAIRZER L ENKIEEL LR/
BEE (BERAFEERERNN—E
B N RS SN A B A RERS
RERIREEE) o A5 B (G %
BRRRZECECEIAFEHM
2EKEFAANEEREEEMEE
Y2k o

AEEEAEBERRREEDEZH
R AREE WA S M - AR
KBRS AR AR ERNELD
AR - MASEREBENFHSE
ERZBEEHENRERERLE
SEFDARE  ARENEHERE
EERERR - e EmAest
BRI SR ARERFEBR T8
URZREMFERBE - RIAKEZR
IRER AR 2R A M 5 A RX B 2 A R 3k
ERECXVBBRRFIELLEH
B UEZBEARSZFAEEE

VERTBREAKEAAE B -

EAREBEGHENRREEREN
%Eﬁﬁﬁiiﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁji
ZERBLEMERR  RIFEER
RTE K MEE B E SRR E QR
ZERLEREN  BAAKETE
BHEREE - BLItm s - NEBERZ
BENRHZFREEENED IR
EEDAFTERENEREE  ERE
E%ﬁﬁ*lﬂ&%%@?&&ﬁm
ERENREFBNRPESE D

BARRERZRERAH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Interests in associate or joint ventures

(Continued)

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s interests
in its associate or joint ventures. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group determines whether
there is any objective evidence that the interest in an
associate or interests in joint ventures is impaired. If
such indications are identified, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as being the difference
between the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) of the
associate or joint ventures and its carrying amount.
In determining the value in use of the investment, the
Group estimates its share of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associate or joint ventures, including cash
flows arising from the operations of the associate or
joint ventures and the proceeds on ultimate disposal
of the investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method
from the date when it ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a
joint venture. If the retained interest in that former
associate or joint venture is a financial asset, the
retained interest is measured at fair value, which is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a
financial asset in accordance with HKFRS 9. The
difference between (i) the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a partial
interest in the associate or joint ventures; and (ii)
the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the equity method was discontinued, is recognised
in the profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint ventures on the same basis as would have
been required if the associate or joint ventures had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by the investee would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method
is discontinued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEFER (&)
(CONTINUED)
2.4 Revenue recoghition 2.4 W zHER
Revenue arises mainly from service income from FTEARNKGEEERENBEELE R
hotel operation and properties management. VHEERR o
To determine whether to recognise revenue, the RETEEER N AEEEER
Group follows a 5-step process: EZREF
1. Identifying the contract with a customer F—H BAEEPIIN 2G4
2. ldentifying the performance obligations FH BRBHEMR
3. Determining the transaction price F=H: BERSHE
4. Allocating the transaction price to the FMF : BREGESPEZERHNEMR
performance obligations
5. Recognising revenue when/as performance FhP: N (KEE) THRBOEF
obligation(s) are satisfied iR e
In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract EFBBAT @ 6ANBRS5ERBIR
is allocated amongst the various performance BEAEEYHNHEEERIRESRE
obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling HEE - é%’?ﬂ’\]ﬁ?%@%?\@%ﬁi‘%
prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes FE=H BB EA]EFE ©
any amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over E (3R ARERARKARENE M
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance jﬁ&ﬁ%%iﬁ@ﬁ%@ﬁ@ﬂf&
obligations by transferring the promised goods or e - WA T 3 108 By ] B ok B e
services to its customers. R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Revenue recoghnition (Continued) 2.4 YrzmEsR ()

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than twelve months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”) and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of
a significant financing component if the period of
financing is twelve months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income and gain recognition policies are as follows:

(@) For hotel operation, service income is
recognised over time in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered because
all of the benefits are received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer as the Group
performs.

(b)  For property management services, the Group
bills a fixed amount for services provided on a
monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has right to invoice
and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

(c) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(d) Sales of goods are recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised goods
in the contract. This is usually taken to be the
point in time when the goods are delivered and
the customer has accepted the goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEFER (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 2.5 %k  WBERBH
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical Y5 - IS MR B TIRE SN R
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated SHTERRFTREEEYIER (RME
impairment losses (see note 2.12). Historical cost 2.12) - BEKABIEWEEBIER
includes purchase price and expenditure that is BEEEHENBABLAX -
directly attributable to the acquisition of the item.
Depreciation of item of property, plant and equipment P - W NREREIR B T ERMAET
is provided to write off the cost less their residual A {58 FA 6F B A B AR V25 i S8 P A R L
values, if any, using the straight-line method over HREE (W) sHEWT :
their estimated useful lives as follows:
Freehold land Not depreciated KA SERE LT HD TTIE
Buildings held for own use 25 years BH1EE BriEF 254
Leasehold improvements 3 years MEMFEE 34
Motor vehicles 5 years RE 5%
Other property, plant and equipment 3-5 years HAnWsE - e MR 3-54F
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods BEMENFRE  EFERAE
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if AFHERRERRT AR REHE
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. RIBERAT TLAFE o
The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal REZE ok B I E A R e sk B 1B IR 8H
is determined as the difference between the sales EMERREERAERNERE
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is TE - WRIBRMER °
recognised in profit or loss.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s HI R ZANE T8 B AH R R R A
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, R ERARNEE RS SEETRIE
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future BAARE - A EEEEBRTFAR
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ_ﬁﬁu RBNEE - BIREL
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured DHREERIEER - #ERRES
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is FIEEMSTH - HREENTRFR

derecognised. All other expenses, such as repairs BE&ER o
and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during
the financial year in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.6 Inventories 2.6 7&
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net TFE AR K o] B35 ) FE /R & P AV
realisable value. KB ZRSIER o

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. EEEFEER ()

b}

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Foreign currency translation 2.7 MR E

114

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the end of
the reporting period retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates and are not retranslated (i.e. only
translated using the exchange rates at the transaction
date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into
Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
rates at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expenses have been converted into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, or at the average rates over the
reporting period provided that the exchange rates
do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the “exchange reserve” in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation or loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
accumulated exchange differences in respect of that
operation attributable to the Group are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at
cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2.12). Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation
commences when the intangible assets are available
for use. The following useful life is applied:
Customers relationship 10 years
The assets’ amortisation method and useful life are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

b}

2.9 Accounting for income taxes 2.9 ﬁﬁ Sz e ERIE

116

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.9 Accounting for income taxes 29 sz EstEE (&)

(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, interest in an associate and interests
in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items
that are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of
taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the average tax rates that are
expected to apply to the taxable income of the periods
in which the temporary differences are expected to
reverse.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.9 Accounting for income taxes

(Continued)

The determination of the average tax rates requires
an estimation of (1) when the existing temporary
differences will reverse and (2) the amount of future
taxable profit in those years. The estimate of future
taxable profit includes:

(a) income or loss excluding reversals of temporary
differences; and

(b) reversals of existing temporary differences.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if:

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets 210 £RUEE -

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial asset
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are
transferred.

Classification and initial measurement of
financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component and are measured
at the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS
15, all other financial assets are initially measured at
fair value, in case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset.

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost.
The classification is determined by both:

- the entity’s business model for managing the
financial asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.

Expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade and other
receivables is presented as a separate line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.1

Subsequent measurement - financial assets
at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and
collect its contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in “other income and gain, net” in profit
or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The Group’s bank balances
and cash, trade and other receivables, amount due
from an associate and amount due from a joint
venture fall into this category of financial assets.

Credit loss and impairment of financial
assets

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more
forward-looking information to recognise ECL — the
“ECL model”. Instruments within the scope included
loans and other debt-type financial assets measured
at amortised cost and trade receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including past events, current conditions and
reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the
expected collectability of the future cash flows of the
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.11 Credit loss and impairment of financial 211 eREEERBERRBE (8)

assets (Continued)

In applying this forward-looking approach, a
distinction is made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage
17); and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 2").

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have
objective evidence of impairment at the end of the
reporting period.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1
category while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the
Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the
expected life of the financial asset.

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at the end
of each reporting period. These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering
the potential for default at any point during the life
of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience and
external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The Group would also make individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables.
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2. EEEFEER ()

b}

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Credit loss and impairment of financial 211 SREEEEBEERRBIE (E)

122

assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the past due status.

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

The Group measures the loss allowance of other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increase in
the likelihood or risk of default occurring since initial
recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial assets at the end of each reporting period
with the risk of default occurring on the financial
assets at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Credit loss and impairment of financial
assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in
regulatory, business, financial, economic
conditions, or technological environment that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
and

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor.
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2. EEEFEER ()
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Credit loss and impairment of financial 211 SREEEEBEERRBIE (E)

124

assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the end of each reporting period. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low
risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BIHR A B R S EE
(4

BENL - MRS WmERETE RS
TEANEERRBRE  AEERRE
BT AMNEERR B VIR RZIR
FREILN - WEBTAMNEORRER
K BRABREERBANEITELR
EREANERE N - MERARNEE
REEMRABTHE T —EGRE
ERABITEARERETRE

AlETHARREMNEARR -

HABEERRERNS - AEER
= {hm*ﬁiﬂiﬁﬁl\*ﬁxﬁﬁ &)
BRERMES AT KR sE A EEE A
(BRAKE) ZHENR (TEEAE
BRA 2 EERm) - RIBERD
e

BISERENEMEE
F%i&%ﬁﬁﬂi C AEEFAEREE
BHREERE - ERLHERE
FE’Jﬁuﬁki}(fﬂﬁm%FETﬂg”
M—RAZRENEMNE  Z2BE
ERHREERE -

BARRERZRERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Credit loss and impairment of financial 211 eREEERBERRBE (8)

assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost are set out in note 36.3.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets 212 EMEERE

126

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
right-of-use assets and interests in subsidiaries in the
statement of financial position of the Company, are
subject to impairment testing. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications that
the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets 212 EmEERE (8)

(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-
generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

2.13 Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
on hand and short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)
(CONTINUED)
2.15 Financial liabilities 215 EREaE

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, secured loans, bonds, loans from
controlling shareholders and lease liabilities.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable,
adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group
designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

All interest related charges are recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 2.18).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in
note 2.21.

Trade and other payables and loans from
controlling shareholders

They are recognised initially at their fair values and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.15 Financial liabilities (Continued) 215 ERLE&E (E)

Secured loans and bonds

Borrowings, including secured loans and bonds, are
recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period.

2.16 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2.4) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.11 and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2.4). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2.10).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEFER (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.17 Provision and contingent liabilities 217 BERIAEE
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a MZKE.-ﬂTE%{q:ﬁ//\ﬁKﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ
present obligation (legal or constructive) arising as £ OEESHERE)  BrIgeBBLEE
a result of a past event and it is probable that an *'Jéiﬁu”jl«/(?%/%fé&& £ 54 A] 52 Hb
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle FTEBERTERER - BSEREE -
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount MEEEREEBEAX - BB ERET
of the obligations can be made. Where the time value HRETE R RIREYER
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.
All provisions are reviewed at the end of each FrBBEHIN SR EHRIEL R I
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current VEH F9%E A R BR IR B Y B (1A /T ©
best estimate.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic A BRI A AT RE A+ Sk
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be A SEAET R ZETEHRES
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a HABIE - ﬁ?\iFié/gf'J¥‘}mﬁ SR
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow MERRAE - RIVERIER © VEE (38
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, FRHIERR §X$$$@ﬁ/£n£ 7 |
whose existence will only be confirmed by the M—RAERABEESHMEEELE
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future BHE) TREBEAIABE  RIEL
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the S F 207 B A] B 1R K - BIE R
Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities o
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

2.18 Borrowing costs 2.18 fEEHA
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the EERARE & BEEESER

period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. EEEFEER ()

2.19 Employee benefits 2.19 EEEF

Retirement benefit

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The group entities established in the PRC and Canada
make monthly contributions to a state-sponsored
defined contribution scheme for the local staff. The
contributions are made at a specific percentage on
the salary pursuant to laws and relevant regulations
issued by local social security authorities.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits plan (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

Payments for defined contribution retirement
schemes to local governments in the PRC and
Canada pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC and Canada and the MPF
Scheme in Hong Kong are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the year.
The Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. EEEFEER ()

b}

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued) 219 EEEF (&)

132

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

2.20 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is recognised at the amount of consideration
of shares issued, after deducting any transaction
costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a
lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease.
A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of
a contract, that conveys the right to use an
identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’.
To apply this definition, the Group assesses
whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether:

- the contracts contain an identified asset,
which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made
available to the Group;

- the Group has the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset throughout
the period of use, considering its rights
within the defined scope of the contract;
and

- the Group has the right to direct the use of
the identified asset throughout the period
of use. The Group assesses whether it
has the right to direct ‘how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the
period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
and non-lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices.
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2. EEEFEER ()

(a)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a
lessee (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The right-of-use asset is
measured at cost, which is made up of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset at the end of the lease,
and any lease payments made in advance of
the lease commencement date (net of any lease
incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use
asset on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end
of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or
the end of the lease term unless the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the
end of the lease term. The Group also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments unpaid at that
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.

2. EEEFEUR (4
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)
2.21 Leases (Continued) 221 #E (&)
(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a (a HEWEERZEBERKAE
lessee (Continued) A (%)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability are made up of fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable payments based on an index or rate,
and amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability
will be reduced for lease payments made and
increased for interest cost on the lease liability.
It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or if there are changes in
in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease is remeasured, the
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the
right-of-use asset, or profit or loss if the right-of-
use asset is already reduced to zero.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEFER (&)
(CONTINUED)
2.21 Leases (Continued) 221 FHE (&)
(b) The Group as a lessor (b) ZEBEEBHBEA
As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as EREMEA  AEEKEMEE
either operating or finance leases. DERICESBEHRE -
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it WA ERAEEEMBREMNT
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards B 48 K 30 o B B K2 [B] 3RS 7% -
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, AlE B ARMENREE - BAlH
and classified as an operating lease if it does HRIEEHE -
not.
2.22 Equity-settled share-based payment 222 RESHEE R AERA T
transactions MR 5
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees MEEMEME BIKDHEENALIE
and other eligible participants are measured at the KR AR A E AR AER AT
fair value of the share options at the grant date. TREEE AREREN R EBEE
i o
The fair value determined at the grant date of the RS E RN RER AN FIR
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on HERAEENAAEE  BEAKE
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based Frit st R BB IRE - kBB
on the Group’s estimate of share options that will NEHESH =Ry [ BRER
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in &5 | FRREIE AN ©
“share options reserve” in equity.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises RERSER - AEBEREETHY
its estimate of the number of share options expected TEHG SR B IE RS E - flkE&J?%
to vest. The impact of the revision of the original HErEE (IhE) RiE=ER - &
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such R EASEA G ET - B RE
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised EFEETRETE -
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date AR L B BB/ BB Em
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is T IREBEBRENAABEZAR
expensed immediately to profit or loss. B8 o
When share options are exercised, the amount B BIEEITRR - KRR AR
previously recognised in share options reserve will be HERNSERERERA - WER
transferred to share capital. When the share options R - REBH BN ER
are cancelled, the amount of unvested portion will be 88 - Qe RN IBRRERERERN S
expensed immediately to profit or loss, the amount B EREERGEHE -

previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEZHEBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

2.23 Government grants 2.23 BURFFEED

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that
the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented
in gross under “other income and gain, net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

2.24 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief operating decision-maker for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEFER (&)
(CONTINUED)
2.25 Related parties 2.25 BABE A
For the purpose of these consolidated financial MZEREYBHRERMS + TEUT
statements, a party is considered to be related to the IR A AR A BN R B A R -
Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that (@) TATRTEUTEHEMNAL
person’s family and if that person: g Bz AL :
(i) has control or joint control over of the () HEAEEHEHIESER
Group; PR
(i) has significant influence over the Group; (il HEAEBEEATLEN
or 59
(i) is a member of the key management (i) RAEEIANEEE AT
personnel of the Group or of a parent of MNEZEREKE °
the Group.
(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following (b) ZATREBAEFTEUTENM
conditions applies: et -
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of () ZEBEASEBEARR %
the same group; El:5/p4=UNCIE
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture (il ZEBREMER (XA
of the other entity (or an associate or joint ZEBBSEBEKE QR
venture of a member of a group of which MEE AR HEE D)
the other entity is a member); )N = v
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures (i) ZEBRASERR—%
of the same third party; =HMEERE
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies (Continued):

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective
for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning on 1 January 2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the amended
HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results and
financial position for the current and prior periods have
been prepared and presented.

”

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Definition of a Business

The amendments narrowed and clarified the definition
of a business, with the objective of assisting entities to
determine whether a transaction should be accounted for
as a business combination or as an asset acquisition.

3.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Definition of a Business
(Continued)

”

The amendments:

— clarify that a business is considered as an acquired
set of activities and assets must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. Guidance and illustrative examples are
provided to help entities assess whether a substantive
process has been acquired;

- narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs
by focusing on goods and services provided to
customers and by removing the reference to an ability
to reduce costs;

— add an optional concentration test that permits
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business; and

- remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing
inputs or processes and continuing to produce
outputs.

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

=

—ECERFEF A=t HLEEE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material”

The amendments clarify the definition of material and
state that “information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
the decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity”. Materiality depends on nature or
magnitude of information or both.

The amendments also:

- introduce the concept of obscuring information when
considering materiality and provide some examples of
circumstances that may result in material information
being obscured;

- clarify that materiality assessment will need to take
into account how primary users could reasonably
be expected to be influenced in making economic
decisions by replacing the threshold “could influence”
with “could reasonably be expected to influence” in
the definition of material; and

- clarify that materiality assessment will need to take
into account of information provided to primary users
of general purpose financial statements (i.e. existing
and potential investors, lenders and other creditors
that rely on general purpose financial statements for
much of the financial information they need).

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED

HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

The following new standards, amendments and
interpretations have been published but are not yet
effective, and have not been early adopted by the Group:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Insurance Contract and
related amendments?®

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions®

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or
Non-current?

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards
2018-2020?

Merger Accounting
for Common Control
Combination®

HE-ZT-%

FH-A=1t—RHIFE

ERTBUR BB R R TR BRI
A EEMBEREER ()

EREMEERENZETEMBHHRE

4

AT T 2R - BRI A RREREM - B
RARER - AARNEEIL BT IR

BREWHHRELER
E175%

BBMHRELER
FE 3| IERTA
BBUERELER]
F9% - BB

HRIFE 395 - BB

BT R A
E75% - BEUH
HERIE 4N
ERU B RELER
FE 1657 ZEFTA
BRPBRE LR
F 10K LEE
GETEERIF 2855k
ZERTAN
BBUBRELER
FE 1657 ZEFTAR
BB ERTERIFE 15
paHEN

BAGTERIE 165

2T
&S BRI 37
2 BT
e ]
2T

ERECEIET
(1E7T)

R & ) K ARRE
CHEN
BSHER 2 Rt

MREAENE -

EPEER

WEF A
RNRIKEENE
ZHEMBEELS
FEE 4

2019 A E IR S
RS @R

MEKIERB A E

DHR3

YE S e g
- HUE AEATEY
FSRIA?

BEAKH - BT
BRI A2

BB ISR EER
—E—N\FF
-T2
FRE#E?

HEEHIE R
ABFEEIAS



144

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i\‘/T\

BB HRRWN

For the year ended 31 December 2020

=

—ECERFEF A=t HLEEE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

8 Effective date not yet determined

3 Effective for business combinations /common control

combination for which the acquisition/combination date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. Information on new and amended HKFRSs that
are expected to have impact on the Group’s accounting
policies is provided below. The directors anticipate that
the application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs
and interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions” (“Amendments to HKFRS 16”)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 only apply to lessee accounting
and have no effect on lessor accounting. The amendments
provide a practical expedient that allows a lessee to by-
pass the need to evaluate whether certain qualifying rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 (“COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions”) are
lease modification and, instead, account for those rent
concessions as if they were not lease modifications.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions” (“Amendments to HKFRS 16”)
(Continued)

The practical expedient is only applicable to COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions and only if all of the following
conditions are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021
(for example, a rent concession would meet this
condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or
before 30 June 2021 and increased lease payments
that extend beyond 30 June 2021); and

— there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee that chooses to apply this practical expedient
would be required to apply it consistently to all lease
contracts with similar characteristics and in similar
circumstances. Additional disclosures are required if this
practical expedient are used.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 June 2020. A lessee shall
apply the amendments retrospectively, recognising the
cumulative effect of initial applying the amendment as
an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated
losses (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at
the beginning of the annual period in which the lessee first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted.
The directors expect that the amendments have no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current” (“Amendments to
HKAS 1”)

The amendments provide further guidance to clarify how to
classify debt and other liabilities as current or non-current
which are summarised as follows:

- It clarifies that a liability is non-current if an entity
have a right (instead of unconditional right as stated
before the amendments) to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. This right has to be existed at the
end of the reporting period, regardless of whether the
lender tests for compliance at that date or at a later
date;

- Any expectations about events after the reporting
period do not impact the assessment made at the
end of the reporting period as to the classification of
the liability; and

- “Settlements” are newly defined as a transfer to the
counterparty that results in the extinguishment of the
liability. The transfer could be of cash, other economic
resources (e.g. goods or services), or entity’s own
equity instruments. Thus, if the counterparty
conversion option is classified as liability under HKAS
32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” (“HKAS
32"), the transfer of equity instruments by exercising
the conversion option constitute settlement of liability
for the purpose current or non-current classification
of liabilities. One exception to the definition is that
if the counterparty conversion option is classified
as equity in accordance with HKAS 32, the transfer
of equity instruments by exercising the conversion
option does not constitute settlement of liability and
would be disregarded when determining whether the
liabilities is current or non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current” (“Amendments to
HKAS 1”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 is effective for annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
directors expect that the amendments have no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s significant accounting
policies, which are described in note 2, the directors of
the Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimation uncertainties
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the non-
financial assets including property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets at the end of the
reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment
is identified for property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets, management assesses its recoverable
amount by reference to the transaction prices of similar
assets within the same industry, less costs of disposal for
development land and the present value of discounted
cash flows for resort hotel, other property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets.

When indication of impairment is identified for intangible
assets, management prepares discounted future cash
flows to assess recoverable amount, being value in use,
of the cash-generating unit in which the intangible assets
are included in. Any change in key assumptions (mainly
volatility of income, occupancy rates, discount rates and
retention rates) adopted in the cash flow forecasts or fair
value assessments would increase or decrease in the
provision of impairment loss and affect the Group’s profit or
loss for the year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation uncertainties (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying values of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets of the Group were approximately
HK$85,533,000 (2019: HK$86,724,000), HK$2,894,000
(2019: HK$2,853,000) and HK$20,520,000 (2019:
HK$25,467,000) respectively. Impairment loss of
HK$385,000 (2019: HK$Nil) on intangible assets was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Loss allowance of trade and other receivables

Loss allowance of trade and other receivables are assessed
and provided based on the directors’ regular review of
ageing analysis, evaluation of collectability, comparison with
collection performance against historical trends provision
methodology such as risk of default and expected credit
loss rate. A considerable level of judgement is exercised by
the directors when assessing the credit worthiness and past
collection history of each individual customer, assumption
of default and forward-looking estimates. An increase or
decrease in the above impairment loss would affect the
profit or loss in the year and in future years.

When the actual future cash flows are different from
expected, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade receivables and other financial assets within the
scope of ECL.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation uncertainties (Continued)

Loss allowance of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables of the Group was approximately
HK$11,840,000 (2019: HK$27,008,000), net of loss
allowance of trade receivables and other receivables of
approximately HK$44,346,000 (2019: HK$21,092,000)
and HK$3,655,000 (2019: HK$1,689,000) respectively.
As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of amounts
due from subsidiaries of the Company was HK$55,926,000
(2019: HK$99,381,000), net of allowance for impairment
loss of amounts due from subsidiaries of approximately
HK$218,454,000 (2019: HK$161,439,000).

Amortised cost of amount due to a shareholder
and loans from controlling shareholders

The directors of the Company use their best estimation
to determine the effective interest rate in calculating the
amortised cost of amount due to a shareholder and loans
from controlling shareholders, with reference to the market
rates. Should the estimates applied are different, the
carrying value of these amounts will be changed. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amounts of amount due to a
shareholder and loans from controlling shareholders were
approximately HK$2,841,000 (2019: HK$2,769,000) and
HK$20,558,000 (2019: HK$11,187,000), respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation uncertainties (Continued)
Impairment on interests in joint ventures

As set out in note 20, impairment loss of HK$29,523,000
(2019: HKS$NIl) on interests in joint ventures was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.
The calculation of impairment requires use of estimates,
including the continuous loss making, and loss of control
over the investment properties by the joint ventures as
advised by PRC legal advisor. As at 31 December 2020,
the carrying amount of interests in joint ventures was
HK$NiIl (2019: HK$44,516,000), net of impairment losses
of HK$29,523,000 (2019: HK$Nil).

Critical accounting judgements
Current and deferred income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislation. Details of taxation are set out in note 12.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical accounting judgements (Continued)
Current and deferred income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax loss to
the extent that it is probable that foreseeable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The amount of deferred tax assets recognised
as at 31 December 2020 was HK$3,875,000 (2019:
HK$1,749,000). Further details are contained in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Management's assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been established for income
tax and withholding tax that would be payable on certain
profits of PRC subsidiaries to be repatriated and distributed
by way of dividends as the directors consider that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences
can be controlled and such temporary differences will not
be reversed in the foreseeable future. If those undistributed
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries are considered to be
repatriated and distributed by way of dividends, deferred
tax liabilities of approximately HK$39,000 would be
provided as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$2,040,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

Amortisation charges of intangible assets and
depreciation charges of property, plant and
equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
are amortised or depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking
into account the estimated residual value, if any. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of amortisation
or depreciation expenses to be recorded during each
financial year. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking
into account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation expenses for future periods is adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous estimates. As at
31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment of the Group were
approximately HK$20,520,000 (2019: HK$25,467,000)
and HK$85,533,000 (2019: HK$86,724,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical accounting judgements (Continued)
Going concern and liquidity

As explained in note 2.1, as at 31 December 2020, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$27,316,000 (2019: HK$64,030,000). Such event or
condition indicates that a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. The directors of the Company consider
that the Group has ability to continue as a going concern.
The validity of the going concern basis depends on the
management’s arrangements to address the going concern
issue as described in note 2.1. The assessment of the
going concern assumptions involves making judgement by
the directors of the Company, at a particular point of time,
about the future outcome of events or conditions which are
inherently uncertain.

REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 of
the consolidated financial statements. Revenue from the
Group’s principal activities recognised during the year is as
follows:

4.

EXEABRAFTEEERSR
R E ZRIE (8)

gatFIE (&)
HRERERTBES

kg2 AR RZZTEFTF+ A
=+ —HBH  AEERDEBERERD
B E%273160008 T (Z T — L&
64,030,000/ 7T) - BB EH A B RER
BEERTHETAZE - H%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂt$§%@%ﬁ
BIFBIRENENEEERER - AR
%?.m%ﬁ%lﬂﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ“ﬁi“m E’]
7o BEKEEENERMEANERE
JE S BT 5 2. lﬁﬁﬁtﬂ’ﬁiﬁf,ﬁ%%ﬁ B %
o BERERRNAMPIRARBIES
B@ﬁiﬁvFﬁ%ﬁ?fﬁgt%TﬁEEZ$1¢i
B HY R IR 48 SRAE H FII T o

i 7

AEBZ EBEBNEAMERERMEL
WE -  FRERREAEBEBEKHK
mESIIT

2020 2019

—ECEHF —NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

Hotel operation income S 23,609 44,372
Properties management income YIHEEBUA 35,194 47,856
58,803 92,228
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. Yz (&)
Disaggregation of revenue s 58 Z BR 4R
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and AEBWRKBBERFERERE —RKHEE
services over time and at a point in time in the following THEFEERRERMETSEEER LR
major product lines and geographical markets: 7%
Hotel operation Properties management Total
B NEER @t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBIBE | CTNF| ZBIRE | ZZNF | ZBCSBE | ZENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén FATL TR TFAL TAR FAL
Hotel accommodation BEETE 6,692 15,464 - = 6,692 15,464
Food and beverage 28 12,820 21,645 - - 12,820 21,645
Others 2t 4,097 7,263 - - 4,097 7,263
Properties management NEET - = 35,194 47 856 35,194 47 856
23,609 44 372 35,194 47 856 58,803 92,228
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CECEF | ZT-NE| ZBIEE| ZERNE | ZBCEBE | ZENE
Timing of revenue BRAKGEZEE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
recognition TiEx T TR T TiEx THEr
At a point in time EE—ER% 12,820 21,645 - = 12,820 21,645
Over time [ 10,789 22,721 35,194 47 856 45,983 70,583
23,609 44 372 35,194 47 856 58,803 92,228
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
—?—?ﬁ :%é—j'bﬁ —?——\'ﬁ :g_ﬁ:i —7—7$ Zg_ﬂi
Geographical markets HEMS HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEn TAEL TR FAL FhEr TAL
PRC i - - 35,194 47 856 35,194 47 8%
(Canada =y 23,609 44 372 - - 23,609 44 372
23,609 44 372 35,194 47 856 58,803 92,228
The Group has recognised the aggregated amount of AEEEERNBEHRRD EHEE
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance T*%WE%’JTEE’JX%T%%‘%%& (B =E
obligations as at the end of the reporting period under 25) c REBEBEH - DEERTKENE
contract liabilities (note 25). The Group expects the EFNRSEEERAEBREFERE R
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance S AR T AR A M R ©

obligations will be recognised as revenue when the Group
transfers goods or services to the customers.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s reportable and operating segments, based on
information reported to the Chief Executive Officer, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on goods or services provided are as
follows:

(1) Hotel operation
Operation of a resort in Canada.

(2) Properties management
Properties management in the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
operating decision-maker monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the finance costs, depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,
interest income, amortisation of intangible assets, gain or
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and loss
allowance of trade and other receivables attributable to
those segments.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
bank balances and cash, interest in an associate, interests
in joint ventures, right-of-use assets and unallocated head
office and corporate assets; and all liabilities are allocated
to reportable segments other than loans from controlling
shareholders, bonds, deferred tax liabilities, lease liabilities
and unallocated head office and corporate liabilities.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SHEEHR (&)
DERE - BERARE (F)

(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, (a) AEEIRIEMRLEDEBEID 2K
results and other material items by reportable and W EERHMBBAREEDHAT :
operating segments:
2020 —ECEHF
Hotel Properties
operation management Total
B YEEE st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT FTERT
Revenue from external customers REMFEF 2 Wz 23,609 35,194 58,803
Segment loss derived from REAEENIMPEFZ
the Group’s external customers 2 EBE51E (3,098) (16,724) (19,822)
Finance costs BEKA (1,587) (40) (1,627)
Depreciation of property, M - WRRSETE
plant and equipment (2,592) (229) (2,821)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1 FAEZEITE - (430) (430)
Interest income S - 10 10
Amortisation of intangible assets /& EE# 5 - (4,562) (4,562)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HEWE - #EREE
property, plant and equipment (B518) /e (37) 91 54
Loss allowance of trade and B 5 KA M KRR
other receivables BiERE - (22,613) (22,613)
Segment assets PHEE 87,145 36,661 123,806
Additions to non-current REFRBDHEE
segment assets 592 15 607
Segment liabilities PEERE 37,425 24,360 61,785
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEER (&)

Segment results, assets and liabilities TEEE - EERER (8)

(Continued)

(@) The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, (a) AEEIRIEMRLEDEBEID 2K
results and other material items by reportable and W FBEMHEMERBEESWOT
operating segments (Continued): (%) :

2019 —“E-NF
Hotel Properties
operation management Total
IS MEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Revenue from external customers REMFEF =z Wz 44372 47 856 92,228

Segment profit/(loss) derived from REAEEIMBEF 252

the Group’s external customers  J&#, (E51#8) 817 (2,161) (1,344)
Finance costs BERA (2,131) - (2,131)
Depreciation of property, ME - B RRETE

plant and equipment (3,015) (135) (3,150)
Interest income FEMA = 15 15
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & B 1 - (4,562) (4,562)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYHE « BBERREZER

plant and equipment (34) = (34)
Loss allowance of trade and B 5 L EMBUIR R EEEE

other receivables - (16,509) (16,509)
Segment assets PHEE 87,363 54,280 141,643
Additions to non-current NEIERBDEEE

segment assets 607 1,135 1,742
Segment liabilities PHEE 39,960 18,786 58,746
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SHEEHR (&)
DERE - BERARE (F)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, (b) AIZHHHER BEEKBENY
assets and liabilities: i :
2020 2019
—ECBHF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FERT FAT
Loss from operations REZEKZEER
Segment loss D ERE1E (19,822) (1,344)
Gain on amount due to VR ERFIEAREBERYZ
a shareholder stated e — R AR FIB 2 e
at fair value upon initial
recognition - 241
Gain on loans from TR ERRIZ AR BERYZ
controlling shareholders R R B Was
stated at fair value upon
initial recognition 1,564 -
Depreciation e
— Right-of-use assets - FREEE (1,681) (1,723)
Equity-settled share-based EREE 2 R
payment expenses - (6,290)
Other finance costs Ethgh &R (3,352) (3,840)
Share of (loss)/profit of DME—FEE L AR (E18) /&85
an associate (4,349) 1,171
Share of losses of joint ventures D E& &b ¥ Eia (15,335) (94)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries &M & A 7lE1E - (885)
Impairment loss of interests A& &% 2 iR EEE
in joint ventures (29,523) -
Unallocated head office and &2 AR AR
corporate expenses (7,471) (18,052)
Consolidated loss before LREBRPTIST A& 18
income tax (79,969) (30,816)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6. SERER ()

Segment results, assets and liabilities TEHEE EERAHE (B)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, (b) AIEWmHEER  BEERBEMNYE
assets and liabilities (Continued): (88) :
2020 2019
—ECBHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FERT FAT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AI2/HHEE 123,806 141,643
Bank balances and cash IRITHER IR 47,831 6,898
Interest in an associate 1) kNI o 16,865 21,070
Interests in joint ventures REEDPE I ER - 44516
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 1,172 2,853
Unallocated head office ROBLBHBRARIEE
and corporate assets 1,246 1,426
Consolidated total assets REBERBR 190,920 218,406
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilites A 2WO LB & 61,785 58,746
Bonds B 50,181 60,181
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFRIBEE 5,355 5,849
Lease liabilities HERE 1,257 2,939
Loans from controlling PRI R B SR
shareholders 20,558 11,187
Unallocated head office and KA BLAELRAREE
corporate liabilities 16,058 18,384
Consolidated total liabilities e afEeEsE 155,194 157,286
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets; and the location of the operations to
which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets,
interest in an associate and interests in joint ventures.
Specified non-current assets do not include deferred
tax assets for the purpose of geographical information
disclosure.

The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong
Kong, Canada, Malaysia and the PRC (excluding Hong
Kong).

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its specified non-current assets by
geographical locations are detailed below:

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

SERERL ()

BEF IR B REHRE RN E M
W EET - FEFREEERHIZM
EREENERMLE (WX #BER

MEREEE) RESEEERGHEL
(BPEE R—EBEQARZEDZLER
BEMFRZERD) BT - BibEENIKE
mE  BEFRRDEETBBELHEAE

o4

AEEXBEBMNRES  NEKX - FXK
Pas R P B (BRI ©

AEBRBINGEF W M BBAEREIF
BV EEMERRINIBM BT

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIMBEF 2 Wz REFRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIRE | _E-NF | ZBZEBF| —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TAT TExT FET
Canada JIEYN 23,609 44,372 84,930 85,615
Hong Kong B - = 1,172 2,853
Malaysia SRPETE - = 16,865 21,070
The PRC s
(excluding Hong Kong) (TBEEE) 35,194 47,856 22,845 71,092
58,803 92,228 125,812 180,630
Information about major customers FREEEZPHER

There is no single external customer contributed over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAIN, NET 7. Hi\ R EFRR
2020 2019
HK$ OOO HK$'000
FHET THETT
Interest income from bank deposits T2 LB WA 10 15
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, ﬁ%%% He2s N 75 A
plant and equipment Wz (E18) 54 (34)
Gain on amount due to TR ERRIZ AR BERY 2
a shareholder stated at fair FEf — R RIE 2 W
value upon initial recognition - 241
Gain on loans from controlling A ERRE AR EBERS 2
shareholders stated at fair ERIRRE R W
value upon initial recognition 1,564 -
Government grants (note) BATfRas (PHRE) 5,792 454
Recognition of income attributable — #ERRA{# A B B Hi1E A &R U A
to unused gift certificates - 781
Others HA 884 403
8,304 1,860
Note: BfaE -
The amounts mainly relate to government grants provided as an Z AT ZAMTMHEEER - DRHgREEEREY
incentive for maintaining good quality of properties management XEERGEL 228 WAKEESREVK
service and to provide financial support to retain employees. TR HEZTEF+_A=T—HBLEFE -
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised AEBERREBBEMNRE 2 RS2 A8E
government grants of HK$432,000 and Canadian dollar (“CAD”) ERFT 8 G 432,000 % 7T R B I E KB A BT Rt 2
736,000 (equivalent to HK$4,259,000) which relate to Employment e R E 2 T &R BT FRL 736,000 £ KX
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong Government and 7t ([0t ]) (ABZ1 4,259,000 87T ) © YWERBUT
Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy provided by the Canada Federal APPSR - B IESEIE -

Government respectively. There are no conditions attached to the
receipt of the government grants and they are non-recurring in nature.
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MAEMA
2020 2019
—BEF —ZE-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interests on: FE -
— Secured loans - EHRER 1,587 2,131
— Bonds - & 3,101 3,405
— Imputed interest on amount - BN — BRI E
due to a shareholder 72 199
— Imputed interest on loans from - ERRERERZ HEEFE
controlling shareholders 32 -
— Lease liabilities -HERaE 187 236
4,979 5971
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. MREFBHAEE
Loss before income tax has been arrived at after charging: BRETISHIRIESIERET E E 0Bk ¢
2020 2019
—EETF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration Z SN & 1,088 1,049
Staff costs (including directors’ BT (BIERMEEL0
emolument disclosed in note 10) WEESHM) 30,259 48,155
— salaries, wages, allowances -¥Fe I8 2K
and other benefits in kind HEiEYRF 29,226 39,541
— bonus — {B4T 211 152
— retirement schemes — RURET 82 S0 (BRE)
contributions (note) 822 2,172
— equity-settled share-based - EREE 2R X
payment expenses - 6,290
Cost of inventories HFEKA 4,662 7,915
Depreciation e 4,932 4,873
— Property, plant and equipment - % - WS R (FIEE15)
(note 15) 2,821 3,150
— Right-of-use assets (note 17) - ERAEEE (W 17) 2,111 1,723
Amortisation of intangible assets mEE#H (M3 16)
(note 16) 4,562 4,562
Impairment loss on interests in REErEERREBE
joint ventures (note 20) (Fft3E20) 29,523 =
Impairment loss on intangible \|EEERBEEE (E16)
assets (note 16) 385 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARRERE - 885
Loss allowance of trade H SRS EEE (iE22@a)
receivables (note 22(a)) 20,821 14,820
Loss allowance of other E A AR BB RS (Fisk22(b))
receivables (note 22(b)) 1,792 1,689

Note:

fias -

BE-_Z-ZE+-A=+—HItEE  BK=E
st 8] 2 300 A £ Z R R B i 5 BT A R
2019 YT AR R 506 B 1T DB 1 O BS B S HF BUR T
Mot SRR AEFRATER ©

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the decrease in retirement
benefit scheme contributions was primarily due to the exemption of
social insurance contributions as a result of regulatory supportive
policies issued by the PRC local governments in response to the
outbreak of COVID-19.
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments, disclosed
pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies

10.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

EERITHARHME

RIREE R BERDIE 383(1) R K A R (3%
BESMDER ROIF2HBREESER

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of ITRBENMEIT -
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as
follows:
2020 —EEHF
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits schemes
Fees inkind  contributions Total
R 5:'1 BKER
ik ENEA HEEN st
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TER TER
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Choi Yun Chor =3 Iy
(Co-Chairman) (BEEE) - 320 11 331
Ms. Yeung So Mui BREZL
(Co-Chairman) (BEERE) - 170 9 179
Mr. Chen Jian BRiE 4 - 170 9 179
Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny BT - 170 9 179
Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny REESESE - 460 18 478
Mr. Lin Junwei WERERE - 460 18 478
Independent non-executive directors BV FHITES
Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie Ramgt 145 - - 145
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee TERE 145 - - 145
Dr. Loke Yu e miEL 170 - - 170
460 1,750 74 2,284
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EERITHAZBENE (8)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

2019 —F-NF
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits  Share-based
and benefits schemes payment
Fees inkind  contributions expenses Total
e 2Rk RIKGER PARB (5
e BMEH AR IRMEX @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FET FHL THT
(note h)
(F3zEn)
Executive directors HITER
Mr. Choi Yun Chor (note a) 2B E (Hita)

(Co-Chairman) (BEERE) - 135 5 - 140
Ms. Yeung So Mui (note a) BEigZt (HiFa)

(Co-Chairman) (MEEE) - 54 3 - 57
Mr. Chen Jian (note a) BRiELs (Mizta) = 54 3 = 57
Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny (notea) ~ EiEI3& 5t 4 (Fffsa) — 54 3 - 57
Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny (note a) REELEL (fia) - 135 5 - 140
Mr. Lin Junwei (note a) WEELE (Fita) = 135 3 = 140
Mr. Shen Yong (note b) BELE (HEb) 1,161 — - 63 1,224
Mr. Gan Lin (note c) HEREE (Mitc) - 939 9 252 1,200
Mr. Pang Huan Kun (note d) gt (fid) — 1,438 — — 1,438
Ms. Wang Yi Ya (note e) T—Hat (zte) 63 = = = 63
Non-executive director HTES
Mr. Huang Xiang Yang (note f) EEEE (D) 533 = = 178 711
Independent non-executive directors B EHTES
Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie (note g) ~ BRE @t (fifzFg) 41 - - - 41
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee (note g) TEEE (iitg) 41 - - - 41
Mr. Yu Lei (note f) RERAE (35S 107 - - = 107
Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann (note f) B3 E4 (FIFEf) 160 = = = 160
Dr. Loke Yu FEgMiEL 240 = = = 240

2,346 2,944 33 493 5816
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10. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(h)

O]

Mr. Choi Yun Chor, Ms. Yeung So Mui, Mr. Chen Jian, Mr.
Tai Kwok Keung Kenny, Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny and Mr. Lin
Junwei were appointed as executive directors on 10 October
2019.

Mr. Shen Yong was removed on 19 December 2019.

Mr. Gan Lin resigned on 11 June 2019.

Mr. Pang Huan Kun was appointed as an executive director on
11 June 2019 and resigned on 20 November 2019.

Ms. Wang Yi Ya was appointed as an executive director on
11 June 2019 and was removed on 19 December 2019.

Mr. Huang Xiang Yang, Mr. Yu Lei and Mr. Ernst Rudolf
Zimmermann resigned on 20 November 2019.

Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie and Mr. Ting Wong Kacee were
appointed as independent non-executive directors on 10
October 2019.

The value of share options granted to the directors is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 2.22.

No bonuses were paid to the above directors during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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10. EERITHRMRMME (8)

G

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

()

(g)

0]
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BB HRRWN

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z-ZF+_A=+—HIHFE
11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 1. ESHMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four hEamEemEFMALH BE(ZZE—R

(2019: four) are directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in note 10. The emoluments in
respect of the remaining one (2019: one) individual during
the year are as follows:

F:0O%R) RESE EMEERME 106
2N ARBR - FRBT—B (ZF

—hF:

—%) AR FHEIT

2020 2019
—ETHF = — L&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances e ERRREWEF
and benefits in kind 1,207 1,388
Bonus TEAT 926 107
Retirement benefits schemes BRIRBFIET IR
contributions 18 18
Equity-settled share-based DA RS 2 IR KA
payment expenses - 219
1,321 1,732

The above individual's emolument was within the following
bands:

B AT SEERSIAT

Number of individuals

BEAR
2020 2019
it F—NF
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7#&JT & 1,500,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T E 2,000,000 7% 7T - 1

There was no arrangement during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, under which the directors or
the five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration, and no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

REE

—EFEE-E-NFE+A
E= Etﬁ& BEERRZEEHTHA
TEEAR IR B P S R B P (A

BAREBYERAEEIAERH

A LTZHERBE - AMERMBEAEE
SR MBARESN RS RIERBERE

=y
5 °
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12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

12. Frf:

R BRmkEMEE

re B ERARM R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

SRR
sk A2 BIA

other comprehensive income represents: 15
2020 2019
—BCEF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") HBEIREFER ([REMEH
Provision for the year RFFEHAE 1,326 1,859
Deferred tax (note 28) EEHIE (MI7E28)
Current year KEEZ (2,515) (2,459)
Effect on opening deferred %‘Jiﬁﬂl%ﬂﬂayﬁbiziﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ
tax balance arising from a BEETIBERN T E
change in tax rate during the year - 228
(2,515) (2,231)
(1,189) (372)
Notes: BEE -
(@)  No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in the consolidated (@) HRAARERHZE-_ZT-_ZFR_ZT—NIF
financial statements as the Group had no assessable profit in +-—A=+— Elﬂ:if"i’jﬁﬂgn%ﬁﬁ,mﬂ aéz
Hong Kong for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. WERGRE SRR TR BB MG B S
(b)  Provision for the PRC CIT is calculated at 25% of the estimated (b) HECEMEBHREEINEE_ZE_TFR
assessable profits for the years ended 31 December 2020 and —E-NAF+-A=t+—BI-FEZH5E
2019. ABE IR 25% 5t & o
(c)  Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulation in the PRC, (c) RETBIEEEIENER AEEMESE

Nuofute Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Nuofute Property
Management”) is qualified as small low-profit enterprises
enjoyed a preferential tax rate of 20% for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019. In addition, in accordance with
the “Notice on Preferential Income Tax Policies Applicable to
Small Low-profit Enterprises”, Nuofute Property Management
is also entitled to a tax concession for 75% and 50% of its
taxable income for the annual taxable income of less than
RMB1,000,000 and the portion that exceeds RMB1,000,000
but does not exceed RMB3,000,000 (inclusive) for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BB HRRWN

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Notes (Continued):

(d)

®

Canadian Corporation Tax is calculated at Federal Tax rate of
15% and British Columbia Provincial Tax rate of 12% on the
estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019. No provision for taxation has been made as
there is no assessable profit for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

United States of America (“USA”) Corporation Tax is calculated
at Federal Tax rate of 21% and California State Income Tax
rate of 8.84% on the estimated assessable profits for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. No provision for taxation
has been made as there is no assessable profit for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the BVI, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the BVI for the years ended 31

12. iR e ()

faE () :

(d)

(e)

)

BE_E-TER-_T AL+ A=+
HLEE e AL AR AR AT R
BUEFIRB BB 15% REBFRLTH
BE12%HH - ARHE—S—FFR—
TAEF= A=+ — IS D RER
W B EEHERRRE -

B ([XE]) ARARDHRBEE_T_FF
T NF+-A=1+—RILFE 24t
J@E%ﬁiﬁ?ﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%?21%&7JD7T‘JZE)E§E

MEEBBA%FE - MNBE_T_TFR
“E-AFF A=+ RIEFETEER
Bg Al - B A PR IR R

BEABREZESHRAIRER 225
TER-_E-NE+-_A=+—HILFE -

December 2020 and 2019.

Reconciliation between accounting loss and income tax

REBBARIRB R LB SERMEN -

SETEREZERREFENMEHR (K

(credit)/expenses at applicable tax rate is as follows: %) /A2 EHEERAT
2020 2019
g 53 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FH&T
Loss before income tax BRETISEiRIESIE (79,969) (30,816)
Notional tax on loss before 1RIRE AR RS
income tax, calculated ANARER AR 2 T -
at the rates applicable to RIS AT ET E /Y
profit in the tax jurisdictions BEIE
concerned (16,350) (5,391)
Tax effect of expenses not AR ARG E
deductible for tax purpose 15,075 5318
Effect on opening deferred tax %‘ﬂ‘ilﬁ BRI 5t o A B 72 AE MY HA AT
balance arising from a change BT IBAE R E
in tax rate during the year - 228
Tax effect of income not taxable BEMBUWANTHETE
for tax purpose (329) (362)
Tax effect of utilisation of previously BN % B R RIS EIER
unrecognised tax losses MG E - (165)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRIBBEEORBE
recognised 415 -
Income tax credit for the year REFEMEHRER (1,189) (372)
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is based
on the following:

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

13. R B

BE_T— ?E&:%@—hi—l—:ﬂ
=t+—BLEFE  ¥ERMNSEZK
H B SREPRARIFARES Eﬂﬁ“g °

BREGE

AR A R B MG ) S ALE AN M
BIERATRBFGE

14.

2020 2019
—EC-EF —NnE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT

Loss =]
Loss for the purpose of basic AU ESRERER 2 B8

loss per share
Loss for the year attributable to RRalE=R R EENAFEEE

equity shareholders of the

Company (78,780) (30,444)
Number of shares BB E '000 '000

TR T
(restated)
(&%)

Weighted average number R+ A=+—HHEER

of ordinary shares as at I HE

31 December 924,373 760,734
The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted CEHE—_E-_EEN_ZE-NE+=

in the calculation of basic loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 has been adjusted
to reflect the bonus element of the rights issue during the
year ended 31 December 2020 (see note 26(a)).

The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per
share as the Company did not have any outstanding
dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% - WERR
Freehold land Other
and buildings property,
held for Leasehold Motor plant and
ownuse  improvements vehicles equipment Total
KAFELIHR Eft% -
HEERNET HENERE AE L BERRE &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRL TAL TRL TAL TRL

Cost KA

Asat 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A—-H 91,513 1,594 701 7475 101,283
Exchange adjustments L 3783 - (14) 297 4,066
Additions NE 108 - 933 651 1,742
Disposals i - - - (273) 273)

Asat 31 December 2019and M=Z—-N&+-fA=1+—H
H

1 January 2020 k=E-F4-R— 95,404 1,594 1,670 8,150 106,318
Exchange adjustments B 1,640 = 38 176 1,854
Additions AE 295 - - 312 607
Disposals & - - (413) (335) (748)
As at 31 December 2020 RZZ-EE+-F=1-H 97,339 1,594 1,295 8,303 108,531
Depreciation and impairment TERFE
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A—-H 8,557 1,5% 701 5,693 16,545
Exchange adjustments L 385 = (1) 248 632
Charge for the year TEETH 1,703 = 79 1,368 3,150
Written back on disposals ~ tHER M - - - (233) (233)
Asat 31 December 2019and R=ZF-NF+-A=1—H

1 January 2020 k=E-%4-R-H 10,645 1,594 779 7,076 20,094
Exchange adjustments & 5 AR 269 = 14 183 466
Charge for the year FEEH 1692 = 161 968 2,321
Written back on disposals &R 5 - - (84) (299) (383)
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-F£+-A=1-H 12,606 1,594 870 7,928 22,998
Carrying values FEE
Asat 31 December 2020 R=ZE-EF+-F=1-H 84,733 - 425 375 85,533
Asat31 December 2019  WZF-NF+-A=+-H 84,759 = 891 1,074 86,724
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The fair values of the freehold land and buildings were
HK$8,943,000 and HK$78,480,000 respectively, valued
by independent professionally qualified valuer, Cushman &
Wakefield Limited.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s freehold land and
buildings held for own use located outside Hong Kong with
carrying amount of approximately HK$84,733,000 (2019:
HK$84,759,000) were pledged to the secured loans (see

15.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

ME - WBERRE (F)

KB HEABRGEMEERITEARA
AIEHHE KAEELHWREFHNAR
BB 9 7l /58,943,000 7t & 78,480,000
BT o

RZZB-_ZF+-_A=1+—H xEER
BBIRINEE - FRE{EA) /& 84,733,00078
7T (ZZF— N5 : 84,759,000/ 7T) HYK
AR RFHEARNEFEEMR TR

note 29).

MER (2RME29) -

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B &EE
Customers
relationship
EFBE
HK$'000
FEx
Cost s
As at 1 January 2019, R—ZE—-NF—H—A8 "
31 December 2019, Z-NF+_A=+—H"
1 January 2020 and _?_?E A—Hk
31 December 2020 —E-EF+-_A=+—H 45,616
Amortisation b E
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—HF—H 15,587
Charges for the year REE T IH 4,562
As at 31 December 2019 and RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8K
1 January 2020 —E-TF—H—H 20,149
Charges for the year REEZIH 4,562
Impairment loss REEE 385
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-ZEF+=-A=+—H 25,096
Carrying values REE
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZFEF+=-A=+—H 20,520
As at 31 December 2019 —h&F+=-_A=+—~H 25,467
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NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 6. BMEEE (4)
The amortisation charge for the year is included in AEEHBHEAF AL ERREMEE
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of WP H [1TRAZ BT »

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The customers relationship was acquired from third parties XEPARDERAEGEHBE =T IKE -
through business combinations. It was amortised on a HFEREGEET TFSREE BEEE
straight-line basis over 10 years. The remaining useful life ZHRIBRAIERAFHARF (ZE—N&F:
of the intangible assets was 5 years (2019: 6 years). NEE) o

The discount rates reflect specific risks relation to the ﬁﬁfﬁrﬁﬁﬂ%éﬁﬂﬁfﬁfﬁiﬁi LUEF%Z/E:
relevant cash-generating units. The retention rates within cHMTHAFHE (ZT—N4%F:
the remaining five-year period (2019: six-year period) have $) WZ@ J:I:$75LMETIZ“<E’§&%:IEJ§
been based on the past experience and management’s HMBEE AP AELE -

expectation of market development.

The following table sets forth each key assumption on TEREIR_ZE=_ZTF+=-_A=+—H "
which management has based its cash flow projections to EREEETRERERINHERELEE
undertake impairment testing of intangible assets as at 31 BEARMEANSEEERK
December 2020:
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
Discount rates ARIR % 23.6% 18.2%
Retention rates RE & 50.9% - 66.7% | 85.8% —92.7%
Impairment loss of HK$385,000 (2019: HK$Nil) was B2 ZF+_A=1+—HItFEE "
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020. 2 Wﬁ{ﬁ;ﬁég 18385,0008 T (Z&E— N
¢ ﬁ/%ﬁ>
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EHEESE
Office premises Car parks Total
WREME xS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET
As at 1 January 2019 R-ZE—NF—F—H 4576 = 4576
Depreciation for the year FRITE (1,723) - (1,723)
As at 1 January 2020 RZZE-TEF—F—H 2,853 = 2,853
Additions NE - 2,062 2,062
Depreciation for the year FAME (1,681) (430) (2,111)
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 AR = 90 90
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF+-A=1+—-H 1,172 1,722 2,894
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. KRB AR Z#ERE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December RZEBEZEFRZZT-NF+_A="1—
2020 and 2019 are as follows: HREZMB RGBT -

Place of Particulars of

incorporation/ issued and fully

establishment/ paid share capital/

operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries HRRL/ ML/ EBRTRARRE/ held by the Company Principal activities
WEAREH fepy AfERzHE RAD AR 2 A RRRLA IERH

Directly Indirectly
B A

2020 2019 2020 2019
ZECEE | CE-N\F | ZEZEE| ZEN0F

Times Universal Canada Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited (formerly knownas &5 1% 147 RARK
Forebase Canada Limited)

BRRRNEAARAR
(FRSENEABRAR)

Times Universal Group Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited (formerly knownas &/ 1] 181 REER
Forebase Group Limited)

BREREEERAT
(FREESEARAR)

Times Universal Victoria Canada 1 share, CAD1 - - 100% 100% Hotel operation
Holdings Limited (formerly ~ J1&X 1% 17 BEEE
known as Forebase Victoria
Holdings Limited)

Times Universal Enterprise Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited (formerly knownas &% 1% 1% RERR
Forebase Enterprise Limited)

BREREIFERAT
(MBRELRERRR)

Times Universal China Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(formerly known as Forebase ~ &7& 1% 15T REAR
China Limited)

BRERTEARAR
(R EPEIERAR)
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NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

18. RMB AR ZH# & ()
R-F-FER-FT-AF+-A=+—

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

176

2020 and 2019 are as follows (Continued): AREZEMBARBNT (&) :
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully
establishment/ paid share capital/
operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries HRRL/ ML/ ERTRARRE/ held by the Company Principal activities
WEAREH fepy AfERzHE RAD AR 2 ERRRLA IERH
Directly Indirectly
B 3
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZECRE | ZTNF [ ZB2EBF | ZEF
Times Universal Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Provision of
Limited (formerly knownas &% 1187 administrative
Forebase Hong Kong Limited) support to group
BREXBEERARA companies
(MBERETEERAR) HEBAFRE
BT
Ultimate Frontier Limited BVI 1 share, United - - 100% 100% Investment holding
EBRLHE States Dollar (“US$") 1 REHR
1R 157 (%)
Times Universal Healthcare Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Inactive
and Hotel Management % 1187 e
Service Limited (formerly
known as Forebase
International Healthcare and
Senior Living Hotel Management
Service Limited)
BRERRREEEERE
ERAR (iR EERRE
BZEEEEREERAR)
Capital Knight Limited BVI 1 share, US$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
EBRAHS 1 1% REmR
Easy Chase Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
ERARAA &b 1 1T RERR
Forebase US Holdings Limited ~ USA 100 shares, 100% 100% - - Investment holding
X US$31 each REAR
100/ - B]R31%ET

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fe= AN

w3 /\ﬁﬂvv%$&i§ BTqE\E

2020 and 2019 are as follows (Continued):

For the year ended 31 December 2020

=T —=

RE-F-FF+-A=t-ALFE

18. RMIB AR 2 & ()

R-E-_EER " TE-—NF+-_A=+—
BT EMBARFBUNT (&) :

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully
establishment/ paid share capital/
operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries HRRL/ ML/ EBRTRARRE/ held by the Company Principal activities
WEAREH fepy AfERzHE RAD AR 2 A RRRLA IERH
Directly Indirectly
B 13
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZECRE | ZTNF [ ZBIEBF | ZEF
Wanwei (Chongging) Business ~ PRC US$400,000 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.# * h 400,000% 7T REAR
ER (BF) C¥ERARAR
Chongaing Wanwei Trading PRC Renminbi (“RMB") - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Development Co., Ltd.* * & 1,000,000 REER
EREREHERERLR AR%1,00000070
Nuofute Property Management.? * PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100% 100% Properties
EFRENNEEEERAR H AR¥5,000,0007C management
WxER
Freemaster Limited BVI 1 share, US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
KERARE  1R1ER BB
Cherish Possession Limited BVI 1 share, US$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
EBRAHE 1 1% RERR
Wise Profusion Enterprises BVI 1 share, US$1 100% - - - Investment holding
Limited A RERNES I ERE RERR
Dragon Delight Group Limited A BVI 1 share, US$1 100% - - - Investment holding
EBRAES 1 1%T REBR

Notes:

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

The English translation of the name of the companies
established in the PRC is for reference only. The official names
of the companies are in Chinese.

These entities were established in the PRC and are wholly-

owned foreign enterprises.

Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2020.

the end of both years or during both years.
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NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R—EBE AR ZHES
2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Share of net assets EREEFE 3,057 7,406
Amount due from an associate eI — R B & R B FE 13,808 13,664
16,865 21,070
Represented by: Bl -
Investment costs & E KA 6,235 6,235
Share of post-acquisition reserves  JE{HURBE TR 5 (3,178) 1,171
3,057 7,406
Amount due from an associate FEUS — B A R IE 13,808 13,664
At 31 December RNt+=-—A=+—H 16,865 21,070
The following list contains the particulars of the associate, TEREVEERRBEAEER_T_FTF
which is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market NZZF-NF+_A=1+T—HBHEEXE
price is not available, which in the opinion of the directors EFEREAFENHMERTZFFSE T
principally affected the results or net assets of the Group as BEtE AR RIIELTRARER  WEM
at 31 December 2020 and 2019. HER(E o
Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ and fully paid
operation share capital Proportion ownership interest
Name RIIEVYe R held by the Company Principal activities
£ B RRAFE HERDTRE A ERERL A TEEE
Indirectly
R
2020 2019
- 7 —% ﬁ :g_ﬂi
Total Blossom Malaysia 1,000 shares, 49% 49% Properties investment
SRAR Malaysian Ringgit for rental
1 each MEREELRRS
1,000 - &k
1ERAELE
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The Group holds 49% of the ordinary shares in Total
Blossom. As major operating decisions are made by
another shareholder which holds 51% of the ordinary
shares, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group has significant influence in Total Blossom and Total
Blossom was accounted for as an associate of the Group
by using the equity method.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and not expected to be repaid within one
year. The Controlling Shareholders have undertaken to
indemnify the Group against any losses that may result
from the non-recovery of the amount due from an associate
of HK$13,808,000 (2019: HK$13,664,000).

Set out below are the summarised financial information

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

19. R—EBERRAZER (F)

7K/ B1#5 8 Total Blossom B9 49% 3@ o
HREAREERRBRFELL% TBERD
EMREEL A2 T%$u/b\%$ﬁlﬁ
Total Blossom & B & K 5 £ 71+ # Total

Blossom J3 LA a2 A 1 /3 AR SR B Bt & 1 B
N
El —HBE AR REAEER . @

BRBHASE— ilﬁfai@ 22 {5 %
ﬁﬁxuﬂdﬁkﬁ B[O fE W — R Bt & R A
X TH13,808,000% T ( = & — 1L F:
13,664,000,%7c) Fr8iz R ERmAE

EELE -

TR # 7! Total Blossom FIE Z A 75 & Kt

of Total Blossom which is accounted for using the equity EEAEREAR
method:
2020 2019
—EZHF — &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current assets EMBNEE 34,419 43,000
Current asset MENEE - 2
Current liabilities nBBE (28,179) (27,885)
Net assets BEFE 6,240 15,117
Included in the above assets FEERBERE
and liabilities:
Current financial liabilities nHEREE (TERESK
(excluding trade and other HAb BT BRI 1)
payables and provisions) (28,179) (27,885)
Revenue Wz - -
(Loss)/ Profit before income tax BrFTSELAT (B518) s Al (8,877) 2,390
(Loss)/ Profit and total RFEE (BB SaFkERE
comprehensive (expense)/ income  (FsZ) /UM A 4258
for the year (2019: period from (ZZ—N&F : ZE—h&F
17 April 2019 (date of MA++R (KEBE) =
acquisition) to —E-NFT+ZA=1+—HHHE)
31 December 2019) (8,877) 2,390
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REEttEZHER

2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE - 14,993
Amount due from a joint venture B —EAE & ERIA 29,523 29,523
Impairment loss RIEEE (29,523) -
- 44 516

Represented by: B :
Investment costs WEKAR 15,758 15,758
Share of post-acquisition reserves  FE{RUREE 14 (# S (14,876) 459
Exchange adjustments bE A EE (882) (1,224)
- 14,993
Amount due from a joint venture fEU— & E bR 29,523 29,523
Impairment loss (note) BEEE () (29,523) -
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H - 44516
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(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The following list contains the particulars of joint ventures,
all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted
market prices are not available, which in the opinion of the

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

bk

pirly

sEhFRZED ()

4,

>

20.

2

TREFIESAR/UAKRER T -F
FRZB-NFT+ZA=+—BHEEX
BEFEEEAFENALLRZFHE

directors principally affected the results or net assets of the FIBEEErERIFLMARER  WE
Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. MSME o
Particulars of
Place of issued and fully
incorporation/ paid
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion ownership interest
operations registered capital held by the Company
Name HMRYL/HY,/ BRIRSRRL/ Y ONGEE2 = Principal activities
8 feny EMERFE GIEeL: 4 5] TEXH
Indirectly
[t
2020 2019
et 22 “INE
Triple Market Limited BVI 1 share, US$1 49% 49% Investment holding
(“Triple Market") AERARE 1k 1%7n REER
Subsidiaries of Triple Market:
Triple Market 2B AR :
Daily Host Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 49% 49% Investment holding
ERABRAT Eh 1 15T REER
Chongging Shandu Corporate PRC US$300,000 49% 49% Investment holding
Management Limited* i 300,000%7T REER
BEERMEERERAR
Chongging Shance Limited* PRC RMB10,000,000 49% 49% Investment holding
BREREXARARA t AR¥10,000,0007 REAR
Chongging Xingling Limited* PRC RMB49,658,200 49% 49% Property holding for rental
(“Chongqing Xingling”) i AR 49,658, 2007 FEMELA
BREREXERAT
([EEEK])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

/T\

BB HRRWN

For the year ended 31 December 2020

=

20.

—ECERFEF A=t HLEEE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, unanimous
consent from both shareholders are required for certain
key corporate matters of Triple Market and its subsidiaries
(“Triple Market Group”). Therefore, Triple Market Group
is under the joint control of the Group. The Group has the
right to the net assets of Triple Market Group. Accordingly,
the investment in Triple Market Group was accounted for
as joint ventures of the Group by using the equity method.

The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or
other commitments relating to its interests in the joint
ventures (2019: Nil).

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and not expected to be repaid within one
year.

Note:

In July 2019, all the investment properties of Chongging Xingling
were seized by the Intermediate People’s Court of Chongging (EE
F—Fh P/ ARER) (the “Court”) in relation to a loan dispute with
a financial institution. As at 31 December 2020, as advised by the
Company’s PRC legal advisor, the joint ventures do not possess control
over the seized investment properties because the seized investment
properties of the joint ventures are held under a compulsory auction as
ordered by the Court during the year ended 31 December 2020. The
management of the Company is of the opinion that the joint ventures
are unlikely to repossess the investment properties and therefore
impairment loss on the interests in joint ventures of HK$29,523,000
was made during the year ended 31 December 2020.

* The English translation of the names of the companies
established in the PRC is for reference only. The official names
of the companies are in Chinese.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

20. k&

BhEZER (E)
BAEZ W 7% - Triple Market &2 £ i B

2~ Al ([Triple Market’i ) weETEEZE
NAIEEHAESMERRN—HAE - B
Itk Triple Market%@ﬁﬂ$% FEEEH] o
REBEBHE=ZATriple Market%l K FE &
B o AL R Triple Market & B #7388 A
BREANRSAREENEE R -

AEETERERE LR ERES
EAHAR B BEREMEE (ZT-NF:
&) o

R —HaELEFARELT 28R
BHArEE—FAEERE -

BT

AZE—NF+LA - FIEEBREBNIRENER
HREACHEBEONBERUDMBERSE —F R
ARZER (AR B8 - R=ZZT=FTF+=A
E-I-—EI CBEAAGFBEEERNER &
ErEVERBWETREMENIZHIE - DA
HE-_Z-_ZF+=-A=+— EIJJ:@*W(:}%*TE
XWEHMRBYRB AR H<RE - AR
BERE  A¥LETKAH H&Z@&éﬁ%% Eﬁ(
Fﬁi*7_7¢+ B=+—HLEEERRE
B SRR (EETE 29,523,000 /8T ©

03

* RARBIK AR BIGEREHRBE - %
ERAZBEHBBURNER °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REELEZES (8)
(Continued)
Set out below are the summarised financial information AT &7 A RE 22 )5 A BR B Triple Market &
of Triple Market Group which is accounted for using the ErMBEEREE
equity method:
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets mENEE 2 1
Non-current assets EMBNEE - 86,133
Current liabilities nBBE (57,134) (54,977)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (593) (559)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE)/ EE%#E (57,725) 30,598
Included in the above assets HEERAERE
and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents Re REEEEY 2 1
Current financial liabilities nEemBE (TERESH R
(excluding trade and other o FE A BR AR R B4
payables and provisions) (56,602) (54,525)
Non-current financial liabilities IEnBeRaE (TeRESR
(excluding trade and other H fth FE{SBR R R F 1)
payables and provisions) (593) (559)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REELXZERE (B)
(Continued)
Set out below are the summarised financial information AT &7 A RE 22 )5 A BR B Triple Market &
of Triple Market Group which is accounted for using the B BERBIE (&)
equity method (Continued):
2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Revenue e - 251
Other income and gain, net EMUA KU ESF 5 - 13
Total operating expenses AR BRR (89,021) (455)
Loss before income tax BRFT/S T AT ES 18 (89,021) (191)
Income tax expenses FriSfiA - =
Loss for the year rEEEE (89,021) (191)
Other comprehensive income AFEEHMEEmKE
for the year
Exchange differences on translation #EGINA & 1>
of financial statements of kBN AR
the overseas joint ventures 698 11
Total comprehensive expense SHEBXEE (88,323) (180)
The Group has not recognised losses amounting to AEEREE-_ZE-_TF+_A=1+—8H
HK$28,285,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 1EFE I #E 5 Triple Market 5 B #E 2 &5 18
(2019: HK$Nil) for Triple Market Group. The accumulated 28,285 OOO?%T_E (ZZE—hEF: THET)
losses not recognised were HK$28,285,000 as at T IEEF+ A=+ —HZKRER
31 December 2020 (2019: HK$Nil). /\H+E5$az%28,285,000,%7u (ZZ—h%F -

THT) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. &
2020 2019
e —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Food and beverages By &R 443 697
Hotel merchandise B B 7 141 131
584 828
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B REMEWERTX
2020 2019
—EZTHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Trade receivables, net of loss B RWERR - kR EERE
allowance (note (a)) (FF5E (a))
— with third parties -EB=% 5,915 18,923
— with related companies B NS - 421
5,915 19,344
Other receivables, net of loss EEUNERSR - fIBRE 1B RHE
allowance (note (b)) (F3E (b)) 1,493 1,527
Amounts due from third parties, FERE=F5IE - MBS ERE
net of loss allowance (note (b)) (FF5E (b)) 3,316 4,888
Deposits i) 1,116 1,249
Prepayments AT RIE 978 1,293
12,818 28,301
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B REMBUER (48)

(Continued)

(@) Trade receivables (@) EZEUWERM
The Group allows an average credit period of O to 30 rEBGLTEESRFPZFHEER
days to its trade customers. Further details on the BOZE30RH - R AKEEFEEBR
Group’s credit policy are set out in note 36.3. The B — B EF BN MIFE36.3 c AT A
following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, BREZNEMH BB R RS A
net of loss allowance, based on the date of delivery H (BRER W= BERE) 258
of goods or date of rendering of services which R EERENE S RBEEFTRR D
approximated the respective dates on which revenue il

was recognised.

2020 2019
— ? — E'E :%—jl$
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Within 90 days 90HMA 2,719 3,685
91 to 180 days 91F180H 613 1,638
181 to 365 days 181 & 365H 476 3,582
1to 2 years —EWF 1,533 4,344
2 1o 3 years WE=F 51 4,502
Over 3 years FRiE=F 523 1,593
5,915 19,344
The movements in loss allowance of trade receivables FRNE S REINBRIR Z BB 2 &
during the year are as follows: s
2020 2019
HK$ OOO HK$'000
FET THTT
As at 1 January n—HA—H 21,092 6,611
Loss allowance of trade FRERZEDEKEER 2
receivables recognised Eria
during the year 20,821 14,820
Exchange adjustments PE 5 % 2,433 (339)
As at 31 December R+—A=+—8H 44,346 21,092
Trade receivables due from related companies as at R-ZT—hF+-_A=+—08 " EK
31 December 2019 were unsecured, interest-free AN RN E S EWERER B -
and repayable on demand. EENBRENRERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(b) Other receivables and amounts due

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

22. E5 R HEMBKERR (48)

(b) HifEIARAREBHE=ZAHK

from third parties 17
The movement of gross balances of other receivables H {th FE AR SR SR FE IR SR = 5 RRIB RV 45
and amounts due from third parties are as follows: RGBT -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
F-RE FIRER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NFE-A—-B0ke 8,126 = 8,126
New amounts originated EANGER 1,455 = 1,455
Amounts recovered or FERKEREENSE
repaid during the year (1,513) = (1,513)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 R 36 = 36
Transfer from Stage 1 fE-RRBYEZE_RE
to Stage 2 (6,291) 6,291 -
Balance at 31 December 2019 RIE-NE+ZA=+-8k
and 1 January 2020 “EoZF-A-ANEER 1,813 6,291 8,104
New amounts originated EENFEE 2,858 = 2,858
Amounts recovered or repaid FERNEHEENEE
during the year (2,939) = (2,939)
Exchange adjustments P H AR 57 384 441
Balance at 31 December 2020 A=-ZE-ZF
+TZRA=+—HHEEH 1,789 6,675 8,464
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NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. E5 R HEMBKERR (48)

(Continued)
(b) Other receivables and amounts due (b) HittEWERAEEWE=FAK
from third parties (Continued) 15 (#8)
The movement of ECL allowance of other receivables H bW AR SR & JEUREE = 5 BUIEMTE
and amounts due from third parties are as follows: HEEEEREZESNT -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
F-RE 124 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FEL FEL
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-A—-B0E - - -
ECL allowance recognised ERHER E’Jﬁﬁﬂﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
during the year 286 1,403 1,689
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=+-BR
and 1 January 2020 “E-EF-A-BREHR 286 1,403 1,689
ECL allowance recognised FERBRNEDREEEERE
during the year 18 1,774 1,792
Exchange adjustments P 5 AR 8) 182 174
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZZZZF+-A=T—ARNEH 296 3,359 3,655
As at 31 December 2020, the amounts due from third R_ZE-_FTF+-_A=+—H &
parties mainly included an amount of HK$3,316,000 WE = FIAEE 53,316,000 7T
(2019: HK$4,733,000) which is unsecured, (ZZF— N %F 4,733,000 L) &
interest bearing at 8% per annum and repayable on mIEA EEEWJT’SJ_%E - MR
demand. Impairment loss of HK$1,618,000 (2019: EZREE -BHE_T-_FTF+ A
HK$854,000) has been made for the year ended =t+—HIEFE BEHHORES
31 December 2020. B A1618000F T (ZE—N%F:
854,000 7T) °
23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND OTHER 23. RITHERREESREMBRERE
CASH FLOW INFORMATION ﬁﬂ'—l—
(@) Bank balances and cash (@) SRITEREHAE

Bank balances and cash of HK$10,544,000 (2019:
HK$4,555,000) denominated in RMB are placed with
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.
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RITEEER IR E 10,544,000 87T (=
T — N5 : 4,555,000 7T) HAA
REFHE - FRRPBENRT - AR
KW EHABMNEE - Rig$
SNEE IR IRBI MINEREE - SHE K
RERBIRD - NREBEEA S BERE
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SNEE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities:

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

23. RITHEBRERBEEREMRERE
&8 (R

(b)

MEEIEERNBEHRER

TRAMIERE RS MELHNAE
EaEEY A MERSNE
B REERBMEENREDNRARE
MEBFARKBRERERAREFAR
EREBRPOABIBOBLBMED
BELNRERENEAE

Loans from
Other ~ Secured controlling Lease
payables loans  shareholders Bonds  liabilities Total
BRER
HEARR  ERER &X % HESE Ch)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén BT TExn TR TEx  TEn
(note 24)  (note29)  (note 30)  (note 31)  (note 32)
(Witod)  (WHE20)  (M&E30)  (ME3D  (MEE32)
At 1 January 2020 RZE-5E-F-H 9,512 34,275 11,187 60,181 2,939 118,094
Changes from financing cash flows: HERLTERY
Advance from sharehalders kzas - - 10903 - - 10903
Repayment of secured loans FEERER - (1132 - - - (1,132
Repayment of bonds FEES - - - (10,000) - (10,000
Payment of lease liabilties FULHEE - - - - (1,854 (1,854)
Interest paid ERFE - (1,58)) - (2,49) (187)  (4,270)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BEEB 4 FE 2828 - (2719 10903  (1249%)  (2,04)  (6353)
Exchange adjustments BiAE - 524 - - 103 627
Other changes: 28
Finance costs (note 8) BERNA () 72 1,587 kY] 3,101 187 4,979
Entering into new lease HRE ik - - - - 2,062 2,062
Interest payable EfIFIE - - - (605) - (605)
Gain on loans from controling MBI EA R BEZSZ
shareholders stated at fair value BRRR AT e (H3E7)
upon initial recognition (note 7) - - (1,564) - - (1,564)
Total other changes A EEEE 72 1587 (1532 249 2,249 4,872
At 31 December 2020 RZB-ZE+ZB=1-H 9,584 33,667 20,558 50,181 3,250 117,240
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NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND OTHER 23. RITHEBRREAGREMBBEERE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) & (&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEEFHMEENABHIER
financing activities (Continued) (#8)
Amounts due Amount
torelated  Secured Loan from duetoa Lease
Other payables  companies loans shareholders Bonds director liabilities Total
E EAER -4

ERRR  AFME  ERER  BRER % EEpA HERE ot
HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00
Thr TEr  TEr TR TEn  TEr TR TEm

(note 24) (ote29) ~ (note30)  (note 31) (note 32)

(Hizto4) (Wko0)  (Bsao) (3L (hE32)
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NE-A-H - 7157 36013 - 60,181 3315 4604 111270
Changes from financing cash flows: RERSHESD.
Advance from shareholders e - - - 18 - - -1
Repayment of secured loans [BEEER - - (3168) - - - - (Bl
Repayment to a director BE-12E5TE - - - - - (546) - (546)
Repayment to related companies [ERERLTNE - (298) - - - - = (298)
Payment oflease liabites $HEEEE - - - - = - (1665 (1,669)
Interest paid Bfi7lE - N VAK]) - 280 (199) (230)  (5,366)
Total changes from financing cash flows HERERERYLE - (29) (5299 1L187  (2800) (745 (1901) 144
Eichange adjustmens Ei - (1160 1430 = - - - 131
Other changes: AfhgE:
Finance costs (note 8) BENK (His) = -l - 346 199 %6 5971
Interest payable IS - - - - (605) - - (605)
Transfer fo other payables EREMERED 9512 (6/43) - - - 2769 - -
Total other changes Efp2Ees 9512 (6743 2131 - 280 (2570 % 536
At 31 December 2019 R=B-NE+-R=1-H 9512 - 327 11,187 60,181 - 2939 118094
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

24. B 5 R H BT RRRK

2020 2019

—BEF —ZE-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Trade payables = AL N 417 1,148
Accruals JEEtE A 2,220 5,264
Bond interest payable FERESFIE 2,929 2,324
Other payables (note a) EM AR (H5Ea) 14,821 13,697
Amount due to a shareholder (note b) Bt — AR IE (M3Eb) 2,841 2,769
23,228 25,202

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice

REZZAPNBFERRZIINE HEN

date, at the end of the reporting period, is set out as RFERERDOITAT -
follows:

2020 2019
ZBCEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Within 90 days 90 HX 321 640
91 to 180 days 912180 H 23 21
181 to 365 days 181 =365 H - 1
Over 365 days 365 HIA F 73 486
417 1,148

The average credit period on purchases of goods is O to 90

days.

Notes:

a) Certain payables amounts included in the balances
HK$7,156,000 (2019: HK$6,743,000) were unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

b) The amount was unsecured, interest bearing at 2.7% (2019:

2.7%) per annum and repayable in June 2021 (2019:
December 2020).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN R RSk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. EHIEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Contract liabilities BRAaE
— related to hotel operation - BB gE 3,262 3,639
— related to properties management — BRIVIEEIE 1,022 768
4,284 4,407
The movements in contract liabilities during the year are as BHRERFRZEEIT :
follows:
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-—NF—H—H 5,019
Decrease in contract liabilities AERNERR _ZE—NF—HA—H
as a result of recognising FAGHBECWEEHED
revenue during the year that BERRL
was included in the contract
liabilities at 1 January 2019 (3,485)
Decrease in contract liabilities EFAERAREAD DS EEKRA
as a result of recognising (Bt AZZE—NF—A—HHEHER)
income attributable to unused BYEHNBERRD
gift certificates during the year
that was included in the contract
liabilities at 1 January 2019 (781)
Increase in contract liabilities REBE-_ZT—NF+-A=1T—HLFE
as a result of receiving advance WA T e RIEMNYHEERBEE
deposits and properties BHBERIEM
management fee in advance
during the year ended 31 December 2019 3,654
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R-E—-IWEFE+=-A=+—HRK
—B-EF—-A—H 4,407
Decrease in contract liabilities HFAERN_ZT_TF—H—H
as a result of recognising revenue FAGHBEZWEEHEN
during the year that was included in BERRLD
the contract liabilities at 1 January 2020 (3,090)
Increase in contract liabilities AT -_TF+-_A=+—HIEFE
as a result of receiving advance deposits WFENEe MENYEERE
and properties management fee in advance BEERMAGEIEM
during the year ended 31 December 2020 2,967
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EE+-A=+—H 4,284
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

25.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group assesses
that the balance of contract liabilities will be fully
recognised as revenue as below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

BHaR (8)

R-E-_EER " TE-—NF+-_A=+—
B NEBFEE OB EELBIZATE
M2 EimER AUk -

2020 2019

—EBC-EF —T-NEF

HK$’000 HK$' 000

FERT THET

Within one year —FR 2,802 3,127
More than one year BA—F 1,482 1,280
4,284 4,407

Note: The Group receives payments from customers based on the
terms established in the contracts. Payments are usually
received in advance of the performance under the contracts
such as advance deposits for reservation of hotel rooms and
properties management fee received in advance.

BieE © AEBEREAS DRI GFBREE PN
e NFBEERLEITZATREL - 1178
ABEEENBMNES RAKDRERE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R
Number of shares Share capital
&R BRA
2020 2019 2020 2019
It i 33 “ENE It g 3:3 “ENE
'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i ik TEn TET
Ordinary shares issued ERTRBEN
and fully paid: LER:
As at 1 January »—A—H 728,586 670,058 388,883 368,984
Issuance of shares on RZZE-ZF+A+0A
14 July 2020 (note (a)) BT (FsE(a) 364,292 - 52,823 -
Share issuance expenses RinBTX M (M (a)
(note (a)) - - (356)
Issuance of shares on RZE-NFNA++A
17 April 2019 (note (b)) BRG (HE () - 8,528 - 19,899
As at 31 December W+-R=1+—H 1,092,878 728,586 441,350 388,883

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company
do not have a par value.
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

27.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 14 July 2020, the Company completed a rights issue on
the basis of one rights share for every two shares held on
the record date. 364,292,398 ordinary shares were issued
at the subscription price of HK$0.145 per rights share, with
net proceeds of HK$52,467,000, after considering the share
issuance expense of HK$356,000.

On 17 April 2019, the Company has issued 58,527,776
ordinary shares at the issue price of HK$0.34 per share to
independent third parties, of approximately HK$19,899,000 as
the consideration in respect of the acquisition of 100% equity
interests in Cherish Possession Limited.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Merger reserve

Merger reserve was created as a result of the
acquisition of common control entities. It represents
the difference between the carrying amount and fair
value of subsidiaries acquired. The acquisition was
accounted for using merger accounting.

Contribution reserve

Contribution reserve represents contributions from
shareholders for indemnity liabilities payable for
periods prior to 30 June 2003.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC laws applicable to wholly-
foreign owned investment enterprises, subsidiaries
of the Company operating in the PRC are required
to set up a general reserve fund and appropriate at
least 10% of respective company’s annual profit after
tax, as determined under the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, to the general reserve fund until the
balance of the reserve equals to 50% of its registered
capital. This fund can be used to make good losses
and to convert into paid-up capital.
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27. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(d) Share options reserve

The share options reserve represents the cumulative
charge to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for employee share
options awards.

(e) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchanges differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2.7.

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 28.

The following is the deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

27.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

f#tE (8)

(d) EEBERHEE
BREEEELERBRERR TS
FAaBmkEteEkaR AR
B o

(e) ERf#E
PE 5L et B A R B IR N SR A RO B 75
BERMELNMBENZRE - LB
RIEMITE2.7 PRE M @ St IR R BRI -

ECHEEE (AE)

AT AREEMBEIRARAERZ EEE
ERIEEE (BF) ARERSHRESRR

position and the net movement thereon at the end of each 2 EEERE
reporting period:
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Balances presented in FREPBARRKTR 2T
the consolidated statement
of financial position
Deferred tax assets BERIBE = 3,875 1,749
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE (5,355) (5,849)
Net balance EERFEE (1,480) (4,100)
The net movement on the BTSN EFRAT ¢
deferred income tax
is as follows:
At the beginning of the year REA) (4,100) (6,305)
Credited to profit or loss (note 12) st A (H:E12) 2,515 2,459
Effect on opening deferred tax HENEH RSB ELNERY
balance arising from a change in BERIBESRNTE (fiFE12)
tax rate during the year (note 12) - (228)
Exchange adjustments bE 5 S 105 (26)
At the end of the year RER (1,480) (4,100)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HIFE

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 28. EEXEFBIEEE (&E)(HE)
(Continued)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities without TXHEHINELEMEREERBENE S
taking the consideration the offsetting of balances within (W fmEt RIS R — MG el A E AR 4
the same tax jurisdictions, were as follows: £R) ¢
Deferred tax assets arose from: BERIBEERS :
Loss allowance of
trade and other
receivables
ESREMERK
RNEERE
HK$'000
THET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H =
Credited to profit or loss FFABER 1,775
Exchange adjustments PE 5 SR (26)
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZE—AF+_A=+—HBK 1,749
—ZT-TF—-H—H
Credited to profit or loss FFAEZE 2,021
Exchange adjustments ME A 105
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZEF+=-A=+—H 3,875
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 28. BEEBIEEE (&E)(HE)

(Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities arose from: EEFARGRY
Withholding
tax on
undistributed
profits from
the PRC
subsidiaries
RETHEH
WELE Intangible
MR DB assets Total
R WHENBH BREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET THL TAET
As at 1 January 2019 n=E-NF—HF—H 1,800 4,505 6,305
Credited to profit or loss FABR - (684) (684)
Effect on opening deferred tax HENAREREEELR
balance arising from a change HERHIBEGSNY E
in tax rate during the year - 228 228
As at 31 December 2019 and RZZE-NF+-A=1T—H
1 January 2020 k=E-FF—-H—H 1,800 4,049 5,849
Credited to profit or loss FABR - (494) (494)
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-BE+-A=+-H 1,800 3,555 5,355

The Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$94,162,000
(2019: HK$91,640,000) to carry forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses do not expire under
current legislation. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the above tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

The Group is also liable to withholding tax on dividends to
be distributed from the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises
in the PRC in respect of its profits generated from
1 January 2008. No deferred tax liability was recognised
for the distributable profits not yet paid out as dividends
that are generated by the PRC subsidiaries of the Company
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

=

29.

30.

—ECERFEF A=t HLEEE

SECURED LOANS

As at 31 December 2020, the mortgage loans of
HK$32,023,000 and HK$1,644,000 are repayable on 15
September 2031 and 15 September 2029 respectively,
bear an interest rate of 2% (2019: 2%) plus prime rate per
annum and jointly and severally guaranteed by Mr. Choi
Yun Chor and Ms. Yeung So Mui. As at 31 December 2020
and 2019, the banking facilities are secured by freehold
land and buildings held for own use with carrying amount
of approximately HK$84,733,000 (2019: HK$84,759,000)
and are reviewed periodically.

The secured loans are subject to bank’s overriding right to
demand repayment even though the scheduled repayment
dates are twelve months after the date of the reporting
period. As at 31 December 2020, none of the portion
due for repayment after one year which are subject to
bank’s overriding right to demand repayment and that was
classified as current liabilities were expected to be settled
within one year.

LOANS FROM CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the loan was unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on 30 November 2020.

In 2020, the Company has signed supplementary
agreement with the Controlling Shareholders to extend the
repayment date of the borrowings. As at 31 December
2020, the the loan is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on 30 June 2022.
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HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

31. BONDS 31. &%
2020 2019
i g 2 —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FExT FAET
Current portion: BIEAER 5
Bonds carried at fixed coupon rate 3% &4 8 [B B iF =M F FI| K
of 8% per annum (note (b)) T EMES (MiEE(b) - 10,000
Bonds carried at fixed coupon rate 3% &4 3 [E B F =@ F FI XK
of 3% per annum (note (d)) STEHES (MEE(d) 10,181 -
10,181 10,000
Non-current portion: FERNEREL 5 -
Bonds carried at fixed coupon rate IR E4F 6 [E B F =@ F F K
of 6% per annum (note (a)) FFEMES (MiiE@) 20,000 20,000
Bonds carried at fixed coupon rate 12 &4 8 [E B F =@ F F K
of 8% per annum (note (b)) FFEMES (M () 10,000 10,000
Bonds carried at fixed coupon rate 2 &4 3 [E B FE ZmF K
of 3% per annum (note (c)) FFEMES (MiEE () 10,000 10,000
Bonds carried at fixed coupon rate  IRE 4 3 [E B F ZmE &F FI| R
of 3% per annum (note (d)) FFEMES () - 10,181
40,000 50,181
50,181 60,181
Notes: BfaE -
(@  The Company entered into two placing agreements with a (@) ARAHE—FEENREITIMOEERE -

(b)

(d)

placing agent issued two 6% coupon unlisted bonds on 6
August 2014 and 10 October 2014 with the aggregate principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 each within the placing period. The
amounts are repayable within 96 months from the date of issue,
which are 5 August 2022 and 9 October 2022 respectively.

The Company issued two 8% coupon unlisted bonds with the
aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 each on 23
January 2015 and 1 June 2015 respectively. The amounts are
repayable within 96 months and 60 months respectively from
the date of issue, which are 22 January 2023 and 31 May 2020
(the “2020 Bond”) respectively. The 2020 Bond was repaid in
2020.

The Company issued a 3% coupon unlisted bond with the
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 on 1 December 2017 to
Mr. Shen Ke, a former director of the Company. The amount is
repayable within 84 months from the date of issue, which is 30
November 2024.

The Company issued a bond with the principal amount of
HK$10,181,000 as part of the consideration in respect of the
acquisition of the joint ventures on 6 March 2018. The bond
bears interest rate at 3% per annum and is unsecured. The
amount is repayable within 36 months from the date of issue,
which is 5 March 2021.
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. HEAE
The following table shows the remaining contractual AEBHEECFHBRENEBBRARRAT
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities: TR -
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Total lease payments: FEREss
Within one year —FNR 2,644 1,822
In the second to fifth years REZFEFRF 743 1,329
3,387 3,151
Less: future finance charges B HEAERNARKRIEER
on leases liabilities (137) (212)
Present value of lease liabilities HESEHRE 3,250 2,939
Present value of the lease payments: A& IFRIR(E -
Within one year —FR 2,518 1,740
In the second to fifth years RE_FEFRF 732 1,199
3,250 2,939
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total REE—_E-_ZTF+_A=+—HItE
cash outflows for the leases are HK$2,041,000 (2019: - MEMIReREATEL2 041,000
HK$1,901,000). oL (ZZF—A4 : 1,901,000/87T) °
Details of the lease activities HEEHFE
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has entered into RZZEZZTF+A=+—0 ' x&EEZ
certain leases. The leases do not have any extension or SIVATHE - HEwETMAERSRILE
termination options. IRIERE o
Types of right-of-use assets Number of leases Remaining lease term
FEREEESER HEHE FIsrfEEH
Office premises 1(2019: 1) 0.6 year (2019: 1.6 years)
WRAEYE 1(ZE—hF: 1) 0.6F (ZZ—NF :16%F)
Car parks 1 (2019: Nil) 1.6 years (2019: Nil)
FHEI5 1(Z2—NEF : F) 16F (ZE—h&FE: &)
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

CONTRIBUTIONS

Hong Kong

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employers and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income. The mandatory contributions from each
of the employer and employees are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately.

The PRC

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the PRC municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the scheme.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
scheme.

Canada

Employees in Canada participate in a Canada Pension
Plan (the “Plan”) which is a mandatory scheme under
Canada Pension Plan Regulations. The employer and
the employees are required to make a total contribution
of 9.9% on the pensionable earnings, subject to a cap
of pensionable earnings of CAD58,700 (equivalent to
approximately HK$357,000) (2019: CAD57,400 equivalent
to approximately HK$343,000).
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

34. EXFAR 5

BRAGE M BRREMBT FAIREZRS

elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the T aEERAN - REBEFT A TERNBB R
Group entered into the following material related party VE
transactions:
(@) Transactions with related parties (@) BExS
The Group had the following material transactions RAERE  AEBD L T EARS
with related parties during the year: B35 5
Name of company Nature of transactions 2020 2019
AR ERB REUE —EBCEF —E-NE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FTERT FET
Related companies Properties management (a) - 6,667
under control of service fee received
Mr. Shen Yong or receivables
RBBREEHNERLR SRSEEMEERREE
Chongaing Xingling * Properties management (c) 350 143
EEEIL service fee received
or receivables
B EKMEER R E
Mr. Shen Ke Bond interest paid or payables  (b) & (c) - 205
B St 4 BRI ERES TS
* The English translation of the name of the company * PP BRI AR Z B GERERS

established in the PRC is for reference only. The official
name of the company is in Chinese.

Notes:

(a)  These transactions were carried out at terms determined
and agreed by the Group and the relevant parties. The
contracts do not have any expiry date until the owners’
committee is formed and the owners’ committee can re-
appoint the service provider. These companies were no
longer related to the Group after 6 September 2019.

(b)  Mr. Shen Ke was no longer related to the Group since
September 2019.

(c) The related party transactions above constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, those transactions are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as they are conducted on normal commercial
terms or better and not secured by the assets of the
Group under Rule 14A.90.
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34. EXFER G ()

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel
compensation

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management personnel during the year were as

(b) TEEEBASZHME

EERHMWIBEERBAERERNY
5T -

follows:

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term benefits 5 HAfE 7 2,956 5,558
Bonus TE4L 926 107
Post-employment benefits BERL 2 1R A 91 49

Equity-settled share-based VARRHE A E 2 B S 3 2
payments expenses - b34
3,143 6,248

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

Other than the related party transactions disclosed
above, no other transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a connected entity
of the director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

EEREBTHRAB ZH MY B3
ZEREREARELMSBEME

—
iE °

B EXBRBE B SN  RERRARE
EAREREE > NABMETAERAARE
ERARREETC AEERERARER
BEARBZEARS  RHRAH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i\‘/T\

BB HRRWN

For the year ended 31 December 2020

=

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

—ECERFEF A=t HLEEE

THE COMPANY

35. ARRAZMBERIAF

2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ ﬂE = _j-LﬂE
Note HK$ 000 HK$'000
B 5T FHT T
Non-current assets IREBEE
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,172 2,853
Interests in subsidiaries AN A 24 24
1,196 2,877
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b W BR 3R 1,234 1,411
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A R FR0R 55,926 99,381
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS 35,895 11
93,055 100,803
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables E AT ARRK 8,636 9,151
Current taxation BNHEARL TR 4,000 4,000
Loans from controlling shareholders 2R E R - 11,187
Bonds &% 10,181 10,000
Lease liabilities HEAaE 1,257 1,740
24,074 36,078
Net current assets REBEEFE 68,981 64,725
Total assets less current liabilities ZEZAERRIBAERZ 70,177 67,602
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Loans from controlling shareholders  #2I& AR & 7% 20,558 -
Bonds B 40,000 50,181
Lease liabilities HEAE - 1,199
60,558 51,380
Net assets EEFE 9,619 16,222
Capital and reserves BEARRHE
Share capital [N 441,350 388,883
Reserves i (a) (431,731) (372,661)
Total equity R 9,619 16,222

R-ZB-_—F=-ZA-tNAEEESHE
R AR PEEET

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 29 March 2021.

Choi Yun Chor Yeung So Mui
9B BEE
Director Director

EF EF

204  TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED RREBEREEIZERERA T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

35. AR A ZMBERRF (B)

Note (a): FizE ()
Share
Contribution options Exchange Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve Losses* Total
HERE BRERE ERGE ES M b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAL AT TAL FAT
As at 1 January 2019 R=E-15-A—-H 8,478 12,579 (12,623) (368,999) (360,565)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFEREH
expense for the year Fx 5 - - - (18,386) (18,386)
Transaction with owners: HEFANRS
Recognition of equity-settled BRARRLEE 2 RD
share-based payments NEST
transactions - 6,290 - - 6,290
Transfer upon cancellation RS ER
of share options = (18,869) - 18,869 -
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+ZA=1+—AH
1 January 2020 R=E-F&F-f-H 8,478 = (12,623) (368,516) (372,661)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEBFRRZARYAR
expense for the year - - - (59,070) (59,070)
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-ZEF+-A=+-H 8,478 - (12,623) (427,586) (431,731)

Company.

Accumulated losses represented the distributable reserve of the

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations.
The financial risks include foreign currency risk, credit
risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner. The most significant financial risk to
which the Group is exposed as discussed below.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risks.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HIFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EREAREER A AEBEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (48)
(Continued)

36.1 Categories of financial assets and 361 ERMEEREEBRSE

206

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position related to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

N

EMBIRR 2 2 AREETIREE

RUATEREEREMBEDSE -

2020 2019
—EEHF —NF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FH&T
Financial assets: SMEE -
Financial assets measured REERATEC SREBE
at amortised cost
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 & E b fEW IR 11,840 27,008
— Amount due from - JEU— B N AR IR
an associate 13,808 13,664
— Amount due from - B —FEEE R EFIA
a joint venture - 29,523
— Bank balances and cash —RITERLIRS 47,831 6,398
73,479 77,093
Financial liabilities: SEMEE
Financial liabilities measured  IZEERAAEZ S RIBE
at amortised cost
— Trade and other payables - B 5 REMBERERRK 23,228 25,202
— Secured loans - EHER 33,667 34,275
— Loans from controlling — R ERE R
shareholders 20,558 11,187
- Bonds - &5 50,181 60,181
— Lease liabilities -HEaE 3,250 2,939
130,884 133,784

BARRERZRERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EREAREER A AEBEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (48)
(Continued)

36.2 Foreign currency risk 36.2 5 = B

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases which give
rise to receivables, payables and bank balances that
are denominated in foreign currency i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The Group does not expose to significant foreign
currency risk as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

36.3 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting
credit to customers in the ordinary course of its
operations and from its investing activities.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
note 36.1.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 27%
(2019: 34%) and 71% (2019: 84%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EREAREER A AEBEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (48)
(Continued)
36.3 Credit risk (Continued) 363 EEEMR (&)
(i) Trade receivables (i) ESEHER

The Group’s policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties. Credit terms
are granted to new customers after a
creditworthiness assessment by the credit
control department. Where available at a
reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or
reports on customers are obtained and used.
Customers who are not considered creditworthy
are required to pay in advance or on delivery
of goods. The payment record of customers is
closely monitored. It is not the Group’s policy to
request collateral from its customers.

In addition, as set out in note 2.11, the Group
assesses ECL under HKFRS 9 on trade
receivables based on the provision matrix, the
expected loss rates are based on the payment
profile for sales in the past 36 months as well as
the corresponding historical credit losses during
that period. The management would also make
a periodic collective and individual assessment
on the recoverability of trade receivables.
The historical rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking macroeconomic
factors affecting the customer’s ability to settle
the amount outstanding. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed. In applying the forward-
looking information, the Group has taken into
account of the possible impacts associated with
the overall change in the economic environment
arising from COVID-19.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e.
derecognised) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Failure to engage with
the Group on alternative payment arrangement
amongst other is considered indicators of no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

36.3 Credit risk (Continued)

36. &EtE
(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

BEERANREBEE

36.3 FEER (4)

(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) EZEWERK (F)
On the above basis, the ECL for trade BELAERE RZE-FF
receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 kZF— ﬁﬁ-ﬁ—I— A=+—H
was determined as follows: B RKEERNEREEESE
EEEMT :
Expected (Gross carrying ECL Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
LI
BFRS BEEE FREE BEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T#n T
Asat 31 December 2020 R=E=ZF+-B=1-A
Collective assessment R
- within 1 year -—EpR 55,0% 4,206 2311 1,895
-lto2yearspastdue - BE-ZME 66.8% 4,622 3,089 1,533
-2003yearspastdue - WEWE=E 77.4% 226 175 51
- Over 3 years -BR=F 88.1% 4,381 3,858 523
Individual assessment {ERIFHA
- within 1 year -—FpR 56.2% 4,367 2,454 1913
~lto2yearspastdue - BE-ZRF 100% 9,106 9,106 -
“2t03yearspastdue - BEME=E 100% 8,959 8,959 -
- Over 3 years -BR=E 100% 14,394 14,394 -
50,261 44,346 5915
Asat31 December 2019 RZE-AETZA=1-H
Collective assessment R
- within 1 year -—ER 32.6% 12,693 4132 8,561
~lto2yearspastdue - BE-ZRE 45.0% 852 3837 4,689
-2t03yearspastdue - BEWE=E 60.0% 11,254 6,752 4502
- Over 3 years -BR=E 80.0% 7963 6,371 1,592
40,436 21,092 19344
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EREAREER A AEBEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (48)
(Continued)

36.3 REER (&)
BEMHEA A BN M SR E

36.3 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)  Other financial assets at amortised cost (i)

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables, bank balances and cash,
amount due from an associate and amount due
from a joint venture. In order to minimise the
credit risk of other receivables, the management
of the Group has designated a team responsible
for the determination of credit limits and credit
approvals. The management would make a
periodic collective and individual assessments
on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and
past experience as well as current external
information and adjusted to reflect probability-
weighted forward-looking information, including
the default rate where the relevant debtors
operates. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

Besides, the management of the Company
is of opinion that credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition for
amounts due from third parties and amount
due from a joint venture with carrying
amount of approximately HK$3,316,000
(2019: HK$4,888,000) and HK$Nil (2019:
HK$29,523,000), respectively. ECL recognised
for these receivables is based on lifetime ECL.
As at 31 December 2020, the ECL rate applied
for these receivables ranged from 50% to
100% (2019: 5% to 68%). A loss allowance of
HK$31,297,000 (2019: HK$1,403,000) was
made against the gross amount of these other
receivables during the year ended 31 December
2020.

E
REEKATTENEtMERHE
EREEMBEURER - IR1TH
BRES - EBR—EBE AT
REREKR —EEeELENR
IE B EE A FEUBR SR A 5
ERR ASEBEREEDZRIK
—EAEFEaEETCEERER
ZE#HZ BEEEBREESL
EEEE N BATEH A NIRE
SNERE R - E b FE UK AR RAY
A] Uy O] 14 F HA 3 17 £ R X @ B
FFAE o 30 3 DA = Bl AE R
AIEEER - BIEHEBERA
KEXEBEHEHNER - REBK
EHMEIRIBF - AHEREKE
BB UL B e B E TS o

toh s KRR BEEERE
BR M B 5 J,n3,316,ooo,?§7z
( = F — N5 : 4,888,000/
TT) WEWE = REREHE
7T (= Z — AL : 29,523,000
BIT) MEKR—FEeELER
EREE R 8 B ERIAR
AR S o ek & B W BR SR i
pua’ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁfﬁéﬁaﬁwﬁ%ﬁ
HEEEBAEE R
§¢+ B=+—8B AR
ERWEREFR CTEREEHEL
+)|‘1’u50%1100%(_f n
F:5%E68%)  HE-_T -
T+-_A=+—BULtEE" B
S E M ERERKBTEIED
31,297,000t (= —NF :
1,403,000 7T ) E5i8B4E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EREAREER A AEBEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (48)
(Continued)

36.3 Credit risk (Continued) 363 EERR (&)

(ii) Other financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)

For the remaining other receivables, there is
no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition as the risk of default is low after
considering the factors as set out in note 2.11
and, thus, ECL recognised for the remaining
other receivables is based on 12-month ECL.
Details are set out in Note 22(b).

(iii) Bank balances and cash

The credit risks on bank balances and cash
are considered to be insignificant because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

36.4 Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to the amount due to a shareholder (note
24), bonds (note 31) and lease liabilities (note 32)
bearing fixed rates. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action
when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits and secured loans
(see note 29) bearing variable rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of (i) prevailing
market rates arising from the Group'’s secured loans
and bank balances denominated in HK$, US$ and
CAD and (ii) RMB base deposit rate stipulated by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s bank
balances denominated in RMB.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HIFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. e EREERAREEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#)
(Continued)
36.4 Interest rate risk (Continued) 36.4 FZEE B (48)
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRFAINAEENFESRBERR
the Group’s interest bearing financial liabilities at the HHEIREFEIER -

end of the reporting period.

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-hF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BEBRR= VB
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FHET &L
Fixed rate EEEE:
borrowings:
Amount due to BT —%

a shareholder % B 58 2.7 2,841 2.7 2,769
Bonds &% 6.2 50,181 5.7 60,181
Lease liabilities HEAE 3.7 3,250 5.1 2,939

56,272 65,889
Variable rate ZEBE:

borrowings:

Secured loans EIHER 4.5 33,667 6.0 34,275
Total borrowings BE®EE 89,939 100,164
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EREAREER A AEBEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (48)
(Continued)

36.4 Interest rate risk (Continued) 36.4 FIERERR (8)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments as at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. The
amount due to a shareholder (note 24), bonds (note
31) and lease liabilities (note 32) bearing fixed rates is
not exposed to material interest rate risk, therefore, no
sensitivity analysis is presented. If interest rates had
been 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 would increase/decrease HK$168,000 (2019:
HK$171,000).
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36. '(%:n%}—l AREERAAEEFE
"'E

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

36.5 Liquidity risk 36.5 MENE & E kR

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserve of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The secured loans are subject to the relevant bank’s
overriding right to demand for repayment even
though the scheduled repayment dates are twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

The following table show the details of the remaining
contractual maturities as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 and the Group’s non-derivative liabilities and
derivative liabilities which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current as at the end of each reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

For the purpose of the below analysis, the secured
loans are included within current liabilities and
analysed as on demand or within one year.

AEBZBERAEHREERDEST
2 UEREERTERREH BN
RE G REEIRG ERNEAEE SR
B ftmmeEERLRERDES

== dh
™ 2= °

B E BN AR RE2RARR T =
@A - EREFDERNBRRITE
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TRHAINR _ZB_ZFN_FT—IF
TZA=tT—BARKEFTEEER
ITERBRTEHNIIHBER - JH1R
TJ? ljfkﬁﬁfﬁfﬁimi (@?ﬁ{i};ﬁ/\
WM EY (MRER) REREHR
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

36.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)

=
“rak

For the year ended 31 December 2020
FT_A=t—HILEFE
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36. tRAEREERAALBEFE

(%)

365 MENEEREMR (8

2020 —ECEF
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
or within  but less than  but less than  undiscounted
one year two years five years cash flows Carrying
BRERS BB—F BBmME KERHE amount
£ EFI@E EFRIEF mERE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THERT THERT THERT
Non-derivative financial FITESREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMERR 23,264 - - 23,264 23,228
Secured loans HRER 33,667 - - 33,667 33,667
Loans from controlling PR ER
shareholders - 22,090 - 22,090 20,558
Bonds &% 10,235 13,671 31,163 55,069 50,181
Lease liabilities HERRE 2,644 743 - 3,387 3,250
69,810 36,504 31,163 137,477 130,884
2019 —T-NF
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
orwithin -~ butlessthan  but less than  undiscounted
one year two years five years cash flows Carrying
RERK iR —F BAME  ARREE amount
—fR  ErEmE  ETHREF MERE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FiET FiET FiET FiET
Non-derivative financial TESRAE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMER 25,353 = = 25,353 25,202
Secured loans BRER 34,275 - - 34,275 34,275
Loans from controlling ERERER
shareholders 11,187 - - 11,187 11,187
Bonds &% 12,936 12,535 42,534 68,005 60,181
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,822 1,329 = 3,151 2,939
85,573 13,864 42,534 141,971 133,784
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZE+_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. TRLEMREERNABERE

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#4&)

(Continued)

36.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 365 mEE & EK ()
The table that follows summarises the maturity TREGABRERE R BE TS H e st 2
analysis of secured loans based on agreed scheduled EBRNERBEREBEINT - &8
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The BIEFEAEOMNEFAENN SN -
amounts include interest payments computed At - ZESBAR EXEHE ST
using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts [BREXRK—FA] KEHEEEN
were greater than the amounts disclosed in the “on SR

demand or within one year” time band in the maturity
analysis above.

More than More than

one year two years Total

but less than  but less than More than  undiscounted
Within two years five years five years cash flows Carrying
one year BB—F BBME fiveyears AERESE amount
—FR  EFIWF EFRIEF BBEF RELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET THERT THERT THER THERT

2020 “ECEF

Secured loans BEAER 3,864 3,864 11,593 23,582 42,903 33,667

2019 “E-NE

Secured loans HHEAER 4,093 4,093 12,279 26,952 47417 34,275
36.6 Fair value estimation 36.6 N REEMF

All financial instruments are carried at amounts FrEemIAMNKREELE S -TF

not materially different from their fair values as at rZZE—NF+ZA=+—HHAA

31 December 2020 and 2019. BETESEAEZER -
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37.

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of
risk and securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
The Group’s strategy in monitoring its capital structure,
which was unchanged from the prior year, was to maintain
a sufficient cash level to meet its liquidity requirements. In
order to maintain or adjust the cash level, the Group may
issue new shares, raise new debts financing or sell assets
to increase the cash level.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentation.
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Five-year Financial Summary

FFEEEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“ENF ZT+tF ZE-N\F ZT-NF | ZBCEF
(Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (E751)
Consolidated Statement SRBER
of profit or loss and other Hit2m
comprehensive income e
(HK$'000) (Fi&m)
Revenue from PBEREETS
Continuing operations ey 84,943 87,588 94,582 92,228 58,803
Loss before tax from BELE
continuing operations XBkAE
HAIEE (18,334) (17,834) (20,584) (30,816) (79,969)
Loss after income tax and BRETE MR
attributable to owner of the iUNGI 2]
Company ANELEE (26,074) (8,529) (21,820) (30,444) (78,780)
Basic (loss)/earnings BREX (B8B) /
per share/(HK cents) &M,/ (L)
— From continuing operations - RELEEK (6.44) (4.98) (4.11) (4.00) (8.52)
— From discontinued operations - BAR IHE & ¥ 0.03 3.11 = = -
Diluted (loss)/earnings ShEE (58) /
per share/(HK cents) &7,/ (%4L)
— From continuing operations - BECEER (6.44) (4.98) (4.11) (4.00) (8.52)
— From discontinued operations - BAR M 7% 0.03 3.11 = = -
Consolidated Statement of SERBMRRE
financial position (F&Rr)
(HK$'000)
Non-current assets FRBEE 143,402 131,521 159,371 182379 | 129,687 |
Current assets REEE 177312 47343 46,306 36,027 61,233
Current liabilities REBE (161,238) (30,700) (37,756) (100,057) (88,549)
Net current assets MEEE
(Iiabilities)_ - (E\_%) /%E o _16,0& o 16,_643 o _8,550_ _(64@0) B (ZL3IGL
Non-current Liabiies ~ #FRBRE  (153963)  (141919)  (103802)  (57,229) [  (66,645) |
Net assets (liabilities) BE (BR) #E 5513 6,245 64,119 61,120 35,726
Share Information (HK$) BHER (Bx)
Highest share price RaiE $2.00 $0.49 $0.58 $0.55 $0.26
Lowest share price IEMRE $0.48 $0.39 $0.26 $0.22 $0.12
Year end closing share price FRTRE $0.48 $0.40 $0.34 $0.26 $0.13
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors
Executive directors

Mr. Choi Yun Chor (Co-Chariman)
Ms. Yeung So Mui (Co-Chariman)
Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny

Mr. Chen Jian

Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny

Mr. Lin Junwei

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee

Audit Committee

Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Ting Wong Kacee
Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie

Nomination Committee

Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie
Dr. Loke Yu
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee

Company Secretary
Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Lin Junwei
Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie

Registered Office and Principal Place of Business

Room 3805, 38/F, Lee Garden One
33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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NRIBHMRRHEER

Auditor

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Tricor Standard Limited
Level b4

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Stock Code
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 2310

Company Website

www.timesuniversal.com

Shareholders’ Calendar
Announcement of 2020 Final Results
29 March 2021

Closure of Registrar of Members
22-29 June 2021
(both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
29 June 2021
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